
               

 
                                                                                        
 

 

Regular Meeting 
of the 

Yonkers Industrial Development Agency 
 

PRELIMINARY 
AGENDA 

  
September 13, 2022 

At  
11:00 a.m. 

 
Agenda Subject to Change 

 
 

1) Roll Call  
 

2) Minutes for July 5, 2022 
 

3) Financials for May and June 2022 
 

4) Resolutions for Consideration: 
 

I.   Final Resolution – The Plant Manor LLC (Phase 2)   
 

II.   Resolution – Yonkers Property Management LLC (969A Central Ave) Sales and Use Tax    
                    Exemption Increase  

 
III.   Inducement Resolution – Wheeler Block Yonkers LLC  

 
IV.   Inducement Resolution – WY Manor LP 

 
V.   Inducement Resolution – Assignment as Needed of All or a Portion of its Private Activity   

                    Bond Volume Allocation for Calendar Year 2022 to the YEDC for WY Manor LP 
 

VI. Inducement Resolution – Mary the Queen Housing Development Fund Corp. 
 
 

5) Other Business/and Any Other Business that Comes Before the Board 
 

6) Legal Updates    
 

7) Adjournment 



1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13

Yonkers Industrial Development Agency Regular 
Board of Directors Meeting

 July 5 2022

14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 1

Diamond Reporting
800.727.6396 A Veritext Company www.veritext.com

DRAFT



Minutes 
of The City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency 

Regular Board of Directors Meeting
July 5, 2022 at 11:30 a.m.

Join Zoom Meeting
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/82871740816?pwd=FwSeh5bWQaju2hDbpxBikOtOSxse3m.1

Meeting ID: 828 7174 0816
Passcode: 262263

One tap mobile
+16465588656,,82871740816#,,,,*262263# US (New York)

+16469313860,,82871740816#,,,,*262263# US

Dial by your location
        +1 646 558 8656 US (New York)

        +1 646 931 3860 US
        +1 301 715 8592 US (Washington DC)

        +1 312 626 6799 US (Chicago)
        +1 253 215 8782 US (Tacoma)
        +1 346 248 7799 US (Houston)

        +1 669 444 9171 US
        +1 669 900 9128 US (San Jose)

Meeting ID: 828 7174 0816
Passcode: 262263

Find your local number: https://us02web.zoom.us/u/kgmqxc3Uj

BEFORE:
Mayor Mike Spano - Chairman 
Melissa Nacerino - Treasurer  
Marlyn Anderson Secretary
Cecile D. Singer - Member
Henry Djonbalaj - Member
Roberto Espiritu - Member (excused)

IDA STAFF:
Jim Cavanaugh - President/CEO
Jaime McGill - Executive Director
Siby Oommen - Chief Fiscal Officer
Fiona Khan - Administrative Assistant
Michael Bennis - Financial Assistant

OTHERS:
Michael Curti Esq. - Harris Beach PLLC, Transaction Counsel
Larry Sykes, Esq. - IDA Counsel
Dean Bender - Thompson and Bender
Joseph Apicella - St. Clair - Macquesten Companies
Diana Bunin Kolev, Esq. - DelBello Donnellan Weingarten Wise & Wiederkehr, LLP



1 JAIME MCGILL:  Mayor Mike Spano's here.
2 Marlyn Anderson?
3 MARLYN ANDERSON:  Here.
4 JAIME MCGILL:  Melissa Nacerino?
5 MELISSA NACERINO:  Here.
6 JAIME MCGILL:  Cecile Singer?  Cecile
7 Singer is on --
8 CECILE SINGER:  Here.  Here.
9 JAIME MCGILL:  Thank you, Cecile.  We -

10 - Henry Djonbalaj is -- should join us any
11 moment, and Roberto Espiritu, actually we have
12 Henry Djonbalaj just joining us.  Henry, are you
13 on?  It's just connecting to his audio.
14 MAYOR MICHAEL SPANO:  Hey, all right.
15 Good, so we have a quorum.
16 JAIME MCGILL:  We have -- Henry, do we
17 have you on?
18 HENRY DJONBALAJ:  Yes.
19 JAIME MCGILL:  Okay, great.  And
20 Roberto Espiritu could be joining us later, we
21 have a quorum, Mayor.
22 MAYOR MICHAEL SPANO:  Okay, great.
23 Good morning, everyone, and I'll try to get
24 everyone onto their business as soon as we can,
25 as soon as we're done with ours.  Jaime, do we

Page 2

Diamond Reporting
800.727.6396 A Veritext Company www.veritext.com



1 have minutes from the last meeting?
2 JAIME MCGILL:  We do, we have minutes
3 from the March 31st and the April 20th meeting.
4 MAYOR MICHAEL SPANO:  Okay, so we have
5 minutes from the March 31st and the April
6 meeting, so without any exception (indiscernible)
7 any -- unless someone objects, we're going to
8 take both of them at the same time.  Are there
9 any questions?

10 HENRY DJONBALAJ:  I make a motion to
11 accept.
12 MAYOR MICHAEL SPANO:  Okay, Henry --
13 CECILE SINGER:  I second the motion.
14 MAYOR MICHAEL SPANO:  Seconded by
15 Cecile Singer.  All in favor?
16 HENRY DJONBALAJ:  Aye.
17 MELISSA NACERINO:  Aye.
18 MAYOR MICHAEL SPANO:  Negatives?
19 Hearing none, the item has passed.  Okay, Siby.
20 SIBY OOMMEN:  Hey, good morning.  For
21 the months of December 2021 through April 2022 we
22 have closed out five projects, which have
23 resulted in agency fees of $1,096,054.  We have
24 also induced four new projects during that time,
25 and our cash on hand at the end of April was 4.83

Page 3

Diamond Reporting
800.727.6396 A Veritext Company www.veritext.com



1 million dollars.  Thank you.
2           MAYOR MICHAEL SPANO:  Thank you, Siby.
3 Are there any questions?
4           CECILE SINGER:  Motion.
5           MAYOR MICHAEL SPANO:  Hearing no
6 questions, Cecile has made a motion, seconded by
7 --
8           HENRY DJONBALAJ:  I'll second it.
9           MAYOR MICHAEL SPANO:  By Henry
10 Djonbalaj.  All in favor?
11           MARLYN ANDERSON:  Aye.
12           HENRY DJONBALAJ:  Aye.
13           MAYOR MICHAEL SPANO:  Any negatives?
14 Hearing no negatives, item is passed.
15           JAIME MCGILL:  Our next item is our
16 resolutions for consideration, we have one item
17 on, which is the final resolution for the St.
18 Clair Development, LLC project.  We have Michael
19 Curti here to represent a transaction and Joe
20 Apicella to represent the project.
21           MICHAEL CURTI:  Hey.  Good morning,
22 members of the Board and Mr. Mayor.  This is the
23 final resolution for the St. Clair Development
24 Project, which is located at 32-36 38 Main Street
25 and 103 Riverdale Avenue.  It's section one,

Page 4

Diamond Reporting
800.727.6396 A Veritext Company www.veritext.com



1 block 501, lots 18, 19, 20, 22, and 23.
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

This project involves the construction 
and improvement and equipping of a 10-story 
mixed-use residential and commercial building 
comprising of 76 affordable rental units, 12 
studios, 36 one-bedrooms, 23 two-bedrooms, five 
three-bedrooms, commercial space on the ground 
floor, and 34 off street parking spaces.  The 
applicant is making a contribution to the city's 
parking fund of, I think five million dollars to 
fund some of the other spaces that will be 
provided onsite.

The total size of the project is 81,105 
square feet.  I will note, for the record, there 
is a cost benefit analysis that has been provided 
to all of the Board members.  In arriving at this 
pilot, I will note that there was an analysis 
done of the other recent new build affordable 
projects that we've done in the past two years. 
That will include the Dayspring property, the 
Locust Hill property, and also the Point and 
Ravine property.

Dayspring and Locust Hill were both 
Westhab projects, the Point and Ravine project is 
a Conifer project, and the pilot that is being

Page 5

Diamond Reporting
800.727.6396 A Veritext Company www.veritext.com



1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 6

provided is in line with the abatements that were 
provided with regard to those two projects.  If 
there's any questions I'm sure applicant's 
counsel, Ms. Kolev or Mr. Apicella would be happy 
to answer them.  Thank you.

MAYOR MICHAEL SPANO:  Joe.  Have 
anything to add?

JOSEPH APICELLA:  No, absolutely not. 
We went through, I think a pretty exhaustive 
review.  Ron Schulman, our Financial Analyst and 
partner on this project Mr. Mayor went through a 
detailed analysis with your consultant, who I 
believe is in Buffalo or Albany, I forget where, 
but this went on for about two weeks, and we 
believe we have satisfied her, and that's why we 
have an affirmative recommendation for the Board.

MAYOR MICHAEL SPANO:  Okay.  Jaime, we 
had -- we did a report on this?

JAIME MCGILL:  We did, Mayor.  The 
report was circulated with the Board packets, we 
are -- we're now providing them to the Board 
along with the packets.  It does indicate that 
the project is in line with the HFA supported 
range of return on this project.  There is a 
benefit cost ratio to the city of 2.36 benefit to

Diamond Reporting
800.727.6396 A Veritext Company www.veritext.com



1 the city for every dollar of benefit provided, so
2 this should have a positive fiscal impact on the
3 city.
4           MAYOR MICHAEL SPANO:  Okay.  All right.
5 Are there any questions from any members?
6           CECILE SINGER:  We have built a
7 considerable number of affordable housing units.
8 How does this fit in with the total plan for a ho
9 -- affordable housing?
10           JIM CAVANAUGH:  I don't think we have a
11 plan for affordable housing.  I mean, the City
12 Council is wrestling with updating the Affordable
13 Housing Ordinance per market rate, which as you
14 know until now has required 10 percent of the
15 units to be affordable.  It looks like that might
16 go to 13 percent.  27 percent of all IDA-assisted
17 units over the last 11 years have been
18 affordable, and about 22 percent of all units in
19 total built in the city, which would include
20 those that don't get IDA assistance, have been
21 affordable.
22           So, you know, a little over 20 percent
23 of all the new housing stock in the city has been
24 affordable.  You know, there are those who think
25 that should be a higher number, and there are

Page 7

Diamond Reporting
800.727.6396 A Veritext Company www.veritext.com



1 those who think it's a perfectly acceptable
2 number.  But, it's very hard to plan because it's
3 very much up to the development community to
4 approach us, you know, with projects.  One of the
5 things that we wrestled with here, and Joe
6 Apicella mentioned it, is that we've gotten a
7 little more particular in how we're analyzing
8 affordable housing projects.
9 Because the developers do get a fee, in

10 this case it's -- the fee is shaking out at about
11 11 percent of the total project, which is about
12 right, that's pretty much what HFA feels is
13 appropriate.  One of the reasons it took us a
14 while to analyze this one is that we -- there --
15 it took us a while to wrap our heads around some
16 of the numbers.  At first the developer fee was
17 awfully low, then it went awfully high, and so
18 our consultant finally got it right.
19 It came in 11 percent, which is where
20 it should be.  I don't know if that answers your
21 question, but you know, that's the picture of
22 where we are.
23 CECILE SINGER:  Well, that certainly
24 gives us a picture of where we are.  The total
25 structure is numerical, in this case.  And

Page 8

Diamond Reporting
800.727.6396 A Veritext Company www.veritext.com



1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 9

certainly we've made good progress in changing 
the face of a lot of areas with affordable 
housing, so I think that that's something very 
important.  The only other thing that I would ask 
is for, in the big five cities, so in the four 
others that are second class cities, what the -- 
their ratios are any different of what a -- is 
what we're doing consummate with all the best 
development thinking and I know that we've had, 
you know, a lot of changes in the city.

And I find it very interesting when I 
drive down Ashburton Avenue to see what's 
happening there, and there are pockets in other 
areas.  So, it just -- so, when you say 20 
percent, 22 percent, that seems to me a very 
significant percentage of the housing, and --

JIM CAVANAUGH:  It did.  It --
CECILE SINGER:  Yes.  And also, I'm 

always interested in the market rate ratio, 
because what we're trying to do is build the tax 
base as well in the city, and that's a very 
important function, too.  So, somewhere there's a 
balance and it seems to me that we've done very 
well with this.  So, I'm pleased to support the 
development.

Diamond Reporting
800.727.6396 A Veritext Company www.veritext.com



1 JIM CAVANAUGH:  I want to point out one
2 thing, because you mentioned Ashburton Avenue.
3 You know, one of the goals has been not to have
4 all the affordable housing in one area of the
5 city, and all the market rate in another, which
6 is, you know, something that got Yonkers into
7 trouble in previous generations.
8 CECILE SINGER:  Yes.
9 JIM CAVANAUGH:  And I would note that

10 this particular project, the St. Clair is
11 literally next to Sawyer Place, which is a market
12 rate project.  So, this is a very desirable, or
13 is becoming a very desirable location.  And, a
14 couple of months ago we were approached by a
15 developer who wants to build 350 units off of
16 Ashburton Avenue, and normally that would be an
17 affordable location.  This developers wants to
18 build market rate.
19 So, you're seeing some market rate
20 folks go into areas that were previously viewed
21 as only suitable for affordable assisted housing,
22 and you see the city encouraging affordable
23 housing in some of the neighborhoods that, you
24 know, previously you might have said oh no, only
25 market rate developers will go there.

Page 10

Diamond Reporting
800.727.6396 A Veritext Company www.veritext.com



1 So, you get, you know, you get a mix of
2 housing in neighborhoods that -- the market rate
3 and the affordable side by side, which I think is
4 a worthy goal.
5 CECILE SINGER:  No, that's certainly
6 commendable, and certainly what our ultimate
7 objective has been, so thank you so much, Jim,
8 for the explanation.  It helps.
9 MAYOR MICHAEL SPANO:  Any other

10 questions?  All right.  Hearing none, I -- Joe --
11 CECILE SINGER:  I make the motion.
12 MAYOR MICHAEL SPANO:  And Joe, thank
13 you, I know you've been patient with us trying to
14 kind of shepherd this thing along.  Should be a
15 beautiful project, so.
16 JOSEPH APICELLA:  Thank you.  Mr.
17 Mayor, I just want to interject, because this is
18 one of the last regulatory items we have with the
19 city as it relates to this project that both
20 (indiscernible) and I, very excited about it, we
21 -- our whole theme is let -- is blurring the line
22 between what we've been looking and feeling and
23 acting like market rate versus affordable.  You
24 shouldn't be able to discern the difference, and
25 our buildings, if you look at what we built,

Page 11

Diamond Reporting
800.727.6396 A Veritext Company www.veritext.com



1 that's where -- the building right in back of me,
2 by way of example, that's how we do it.
3           Everyone, you know, everyone who's in
4 our buildings are gainfully employed, they're
5 going to work hard and be part of the community,
6 and I have to tell you, Mayor, notwithstanding
7 what you said, the process in Yonkers has been an
8 incredibly good experience, and I mean that
9 sincerely.
10           MAYOR MICHAEL SPANO:  Thank you, Joe.
11 Cecile's made a motion, seconded by Melissa --
12           HENRY DJONBALAJ:  I'll second it.
13           MAYOR MICHAEL SPANO:  Or seconded by
14 Henry.
15           HENRY DJONBALAJ:  Yes.
16           MAYOR MICHAEL SPANO:  All in favor?
17 Negatives?
18           MARLYN ANDERSON:  Aye.
19           HENRY DJONBALAJ:  Aye.
20           MAYOR MICHAEL SPANO:  Hearing no
21 negatives, the item has passed.
22           JOSEPH APICELLA:  Thank you very much.
23           JAIME MCGILL:  Thank you.
24           MELISSA NACERINO:  Congratulations
25 (overlapping conversation).

Page 12

Diamond Reporting
800.727.6396 A Veritext Company www.veritext.com



1 MAYOR MICHAEL SPANO:  Jaime, anything
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

else?
JAIME MCGILL:  We have no other 

resolutions Mayor, although I know we do have a 
legal update.

MICHAEL CURTI:  Yes, there's one legal 
update Mayor, from the transaction side, so I'll 
borrow a little bit of Mr. Sykes time, if you'll 
allow me.  There is a project known as Warburton 
Manor, where Manor Bagels, the old State Farm is 
located across the street from the Larkin Garage.  
There are some ground for retail, with regard to 
that project, and some -- a few units, 
approximately eight units above that ground floor 
retail.

That's been an outstanding project of 
the agency for quite some time.  The developer 
was L+M development.  L+M is looking to sell the 
property to another affordable housing developer. 
There's a letter included in the Board packet 
detailing the circumstances of that sale.  I will 
note, for the record, that that project is ending 
as of the end of this year, and the final years 
in which the pilot will govern that project is 
the city 2022/23 budget year, fiscal year.

Page 13

Diamond Reporting
800.727.6396 A Veritext Company www.veritext.com



1 And also, the county 2023 fiscal year.
2 The applicant has asked to terminate the pilot
3 early, given the time of the year, essentially
4 it'll be a six-month early termination.  The
5 reason they're asking to do that is to facilitate
6 the sale, and also to be able to market the
7 properties as market rate units as opposed to
8 affordable units.
9 Our documents have a requirement that,

10 for so long as they receive the IDA benefits,
11 they have to keep a number of the units
12 affordable.  So, that is the request.  We are
13 bringing it up to the Board, not to approve the
14 termination, because they do have a right to
15 terminate the project, but they do have to
16 understand that they will not get the benefit of
17 the real property tax abatement for that cycle of
18 22/23 for the city year, and also for the county
19 year of 2023.  If there's any questions I'm happy
20 to answer them.
21 MAYOR MICHAEL SPANO:  Questions?  Okay.
22 If there are no questions -- thank you, Michael.
23 Jaime, I'm just going to ask you.  I -- remember
24 that (indiscernible) we had an IDA-sponsored
25 project I think from Horizon, which would be the

Page 14

Diamond Reporting
800.727.6396 A Veritext Company www.veritext.com



1
2
3
4
5
6
7
8
9

10
11
12
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

opposite side of that seller project?
JAIME MCGILL:  Okay.
MAYOR MICHAEL SPANO:  It went in the

ground months ago and has stopped.  It's been no 
activity there at all.  Check into it.

JAIME MCGILL:  Okay.  Yup.  I know -- I 
spoke to them probably two months ago, and they 
were held up with getting some of their 
approvals, and then they said they were just 
getting their approvals for the Building 
Department and ready to proceed, but I'll get 
another update from them.

MAYOR MICHAEL SPANO:  Yeah, if you
don't mind.  because (overlapping conversation).

JAIME MCGILL:  Yup.
MAYOR MICHAEL SPANO:  They're losing

(indiscernible).
JAIME MCGILL:  That's 9-11 Riverdale, 

next to Blue Door, right?
MAYOR MICHAEL SPANO:  Yes, yeah. 

Thanks.  All right.  Jim, you got anything?
Tower?  (indiscernible)

JIM CAVANAUGH:  No, that's it.
MAYOR MICHAEL SPANO:  All right.  So,

is someone going to make a motion we adjourn?

Page 15

Diamond Reporting
800.727.6396 A Veritext Company www.veritext.com



1 HENRY DJONBALAJ:  I'll make a motion.
2 MARLYN ANDERSON:  I --
3 MAYOR MICHAEL SPANO:  Okay, Henry
4 you've made a motion, seconded by Marlyn.  All in
5 favor?
6 MARLYN ANDERSON:  Aye.
7 HENRY DJONBALAJ:  Aye.
8 MAYOR MICHAEL SPANO:  Okay, we're
9

10
11
12

adjourned.  Nice to see everybody.
JAIME MCGILL:  Bye, thank you everyone. 

13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 16

Diamond Reporting
800.727.6396 A Veritext Company www.veritext.com



1 C E R T I F I C A T I O N
2
3 I, Sonya Ledanski Hyde, certify that the
4 foregoing transcript is a true and accurate
5 record of the proceedings.
6
7 <%12151,Signature%>
8
9 __________________________________

10
11 Veritext Legal Solutions
12 330 Old Country Road
13 Suite 300
14 Mineola, NY 11501
15
16 Date: July 19, 2022
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25

Page 17

Diamond Reporting
800.727.6396 A Veritext Company www.veritext.com



1

1,096,054 3:23
10 5:3 7:14
103 4:25
11 7:17 8:11,19
11501 17:14
12 5:5
12151 17:7
13 7:16
18 5:1
19 5:1 17:16

2

2.36 6:25
20 5:1 7:22 9:14
2021 3:21
2022 1:13 3:21

17:16
2022/23 13:25
2023 14:1,19
20th 3:3
22 5:1 7:18 9:15
22/23 14:18
23 5:1,6
27 7:16

3

300 17:13
31st 3:3,5
32-36 4:24
330 17:12
34 5:8
350 10:15
36 5:6
38 4:24

4

4.83 3:25

5

5 1:13
501 5:1

7

76 5:5

8

81,105 5:13

9

911 15:18

a

abatement 14:17
abatements 6:1
able 11:24 14:6
absolutely 6:8
accept 3:11
acceptable 8:1
accurate 17:4
acting 11:23
activity 15:5
add 6:7
adjourn 15:25
adjourned 16:9
affirmative 6:16
affordable 5:5,18

7:7,9,11,12,15,18
7:21,24 8:8 9:2
10:4,17,21,22
11:3,23 13:19
14:8,12

agency 3:23 13:17
ago 10:14 15:4,7
albany 6:13
allow 13:9
analysis 5:15,17

6:12
analyst 6:10
analyze 8:14
analyzing 8:7
anderson 2:2,3

4:11 12:18 16:2,6
answer 6:5 14:20

answers 8:20
apicella 4:20 6:4,8

8:6 11:16 12:22
applicant 5:9 14:2
applicant's 6:3
approach 8:4
approached 10:14
appropriate 8:13
approvals 15:9,10
approve 14:13
approximately

13:14
april 3:3,5,21,25
area 10:4
areas 9:2,14 10:20
arriving 5:16
ashburton 9:12

10:2,16
asked 14:2
asking 14:5
assistance 7:20
assisted 7:16

10:21
audio 2:13
avenue 4:25 9:12

10:2,16
awfully 8:17,17
aye 3:16,17 4:11

4:12 12:18,19
16:6,7

b

back 12:1
bagels 13:10
balance 9:23
base 9:21
beautiful 11:15
becoming 10:13
bedrooms 5:6,6,7
believe 6:13,15
benefit 5:15 6:25

6:25 7:1 14:16

benefits 14:10
best 9:8
big 9:5
bit 13:8
block 5:1
blue 15:19
blurring 11:21
board 4:22 5:16

6:16,20,21 13:20
14:13

borrow 13:8
bringing 14:13
budget 13:25
buffalo 6:13
build 5:18 9:20

10:15,18
building 5:4 12:1

15:10
buildings 11:25

12:4
built 7:6,19 11:25
business 2:24
bye 16:10

c

c 17:1,1
case 8:10,25
cash 3:25
cavanaugh 7:10

9:17 10:1,9 15:23
cecile 2:6,6,8,9

3:13,15 4:4,6 7:6
8:23 9:18 10:8
11:5,11

cecile's 12:11
certainly 8:23 9:1

11:5,6
certify 17:3
changes 9:10
changing 9:1
check 15:5

[1,096,054 - check] Page 1

Diamond Reporting
800.727.6396 A Veritext Company www.veritext.com



circulated 6:20
circumstances

13:21
cities 9:5,6
city 6:25 7:1,3,11

7:19,23 9:10,21
10:5,22 11:19
13:25 14:18

city's 5:9
clair 4:18,23 10:10
closed 3:22
commendable

11:6
commercial 5:4,7
community 8:3

12:5
comprising 5:5
congratulations

12:24
conifer 5:25
connecting 2:13
considerable 7:7
consideration

4:16
construction 5:2
consultant 6:12

8:18
consummate 9:8
contribution 5:9
conversation

12:25 15:14 16:12
cost 5:15 6:25
council 7:12
counsel 6:4
country 17:12
county 14:1,18
couple 10:14
curti 4:19,21 13:6
cycle 14:17

d

date 17:16
dayspring 5:20,23
december 3:21
department 15:11
desirable 10:12,13
detailed 6:12
detailing 13:21
developer 8:16

10:15 13:17,19
developers 8:9

10:17,25
development 4:18

4:23 8:3 9:9,25
13:18

difference 11:24
different 9:7
discern 11:24
djonbalaj 2:10,12

2:18 3:10,16 4:8
4:10,12 12:12,15
12:19 16:1,7,11

documents 14:9
doing 9:8
dollar 7:1
dollars 4:1 5:10
door 15:19
drive 9:12

e

e 17:1
early 14:3,4
eight 13:14
employed 12:4
encouraging

10:22
equipping 5:3
espiritu 2:11,20
essentially 14:3
everybody 16:9

example 12:2
exception 3:6
excited 11:20
exhaustive 6:9
experience 12:8
explanation 11:8

f

f 17:1
face 9:2
facilitate 14:5
farm 13:11
favor 3:15 4:10

12:16 16:5
fee 8:9,10,16
feeling 11:22
feels 8:12
fees 3:23
feet 5:14
final 4:17,23 13:23
finally 8:18
financial 6:10
find 9:11
first 8:16
fiscal 7:2 13:25

14:1
fit 7:8
five 3:22 5:6,10

9:5
floor 5:8 13:15
folks 10:20
foregoing 17:4
forget 6:13
four 3:24 9:5
function 9:22
fund 5:10,11

g

gainfully 12:4
garage 13:12
generations 10:7

getting 15:8,10
given 14:3
gives 8:24
go 7:16 10:20,25
goal 11:4
goals 10:3
going 3:7 12:5

14:23 15:25
good 2:15,23 3:20

4:21 9:1 12:8
gotten 8:6
govern 13:24
great 2:19,22
ground 5:7 13:12

13:15 15:4

h

hand 3:25
happening 9:13
happy 6:5 14:19
hard 8:2 12:5
heads 8:15
hearing 3:19 4:5

4:14 11:10 12:20
held 15:8
helps 11:8
henry 2:10,12,12

2:16,18 3:10,12
3:16 4:8,9,12
12:12,14,15,19
16:1,3,7,11

hey 2:14 3:20 4:21
hfa 6:23 8:12
high 8:17
higher 7:25
hill 5:21,23
ho 7:8
horizon 14:25
housing 7:7,9,11

7:13,23 8:8 9:3,16
10:4,21,23 11:2
13:19

[circulated - housing] Page 2

Diamond Reporting
800.727.6396 A Veritext Company www.veritext.com



hyde 17:3

i

ida 1:13 7:16,20
14:10,24

impact 7:2
important 9:4,22
improvement 5:3
include 5:20 7:19
included 13:20
incredibly 12:8
indicate 6:22
indiscernible 3:6

6:4 9:6 11:20 13:8
13:12 14:24 15:17
15:22

induced 3:24
interested 9:19
interesting 9:11
interject 11:17
involves 5:2
it'll 14:4
item 3:19 4:14,15

4:16 12:21
items 11:18

j

jaime 2:1,4,6,9,16
2:19,25 3:2 4:15
6:17,19 12:23
13:1,3 14:23 15:2
15:6,15,18 16:10

jim 7:10 9:17 10:1
10:9 11:7 15:21
15:23

joe 4:19 6:6 8:5
11:10,12 12:10

join 2:10
joining 2:12,20
joseph 6:8 11:16

12:22

july 1:13 17:16

k

keep 14:11
kind 11:14
know 7:14,22,24

8:4,20,21 9:9,10
10:3,6,24 11:1,13
12:3 13:4 15:6

known 13:9

l

l 13:18,18
ledanski 17:3
legal 13:5,6 17:11
letter 13:20
line 6:1,23 11:21
literally 10:11
little 7:22 8:7 13:8
llc 4:18
located 4:24 13:11
location 10:13,17
locust 5:21,23
long 14:10
look 11:25
looking 11:22

13:18
looks 7:15
losing 15:16
lot 9:2,10
lots 5:1
low 8:17

m

m 13:18,18
main 4:24
making 5:9
manor 13:10,10
march 3:3,5
market 7:13 9:19

10:5,11,18,19,25
11:2,23 14:6,7

marlyn 2:2,3 4:11
12:18 16:2,4,6

mayor 2:1,14,21
2:22 3:4,12,14,18
4:2,5,9,13,22 6:6
6:11,17,19 7:4
11:9,12,17 12:6
12:10,13,16,20
13:1,4,7 14:21
15:3,13,16,20,24
16:3,8

mcgill 2:1,4,6,9,16
2:19 3:2 4:15 6:19
12:23 13:3 15:2,6
15:15,18 16:10

mean 7:11 12:8
meeting 3:1,3,6
melissa 2:4,5 3:17

12:11,24
members 4:22

5:16 7:5
mentioned 8:6

10:2
michael 2:14,22

3:4,12,14,18 4:2,5
4:9,13,18,21 6:6
6:17 7:4 11:9,12
12:10,13,16,20
13:1,6 14:21,22
15:3,13,16,20,24
16:3,8

mike 2:1
million 4:1 5:10
mind 15:14
mineola 17:14
minutes 3:1,2,5
mix 11:1
mixed 5:4
moment 2:11
month 14:4

months 3:21 10:14
15:4,7

morning 2:23 3:20
4:21

motion 3:10,13
4:4,6 11:11 12:11
15:25 16:1,4

n

n 17:1
nacerino 2:4,5

3:17 12:24
negatives 3:18

4:13,14 12:17,21
neighborhoods

10:23 11:2
new 3:24 5:18

7:23
nice 16:9,11
normally 10:16
note 5:14,17 10:9

13:22
notwithstanding

12:6
number 7:7,25 8:2

14:11
numbers 8:16
numerical 8:25
ny 17:14

o

o 17:1
objective 11:7
objects 3:7
oh 10:24
okay 2:19,22 3:4

3:12,19 6:17 7:4
14:21 15:2,6 16:3
16:8

old 13:10 17:12
onsite 5:12

[hyde - onsite] Page 3

Diamond Reporting
800.727.6396 A Veritext Company www.veritext.com



oommen 3:20
opposed 14:7
opposite 15:1
ordinance 7:13
outstanding 13:16
overlapping 12:25

15:14 16:12

p

packet 13:20
packets 6:20,22
parking 5:8,10
part 12:5
particular 8:7

10:10
partner 6:11
passed 3:19 4:14

12:21
patient 11:13
percent 7:14,16,16

7:18,22 8:11,19
9:15,15

percentage 9:16
perfectly 8:1
picture 8:21,24
pilot 5:17,25 13:24

14:2
place 10:11
plan 7:8,11 8:2
pleased 9:24
pockets 9:13
point 5:21,24 10:1
positive 7:2
pretty 6:9 8:12
previous 10:7
previously 10:20

10:24
probably 15:7
proceed 15:11
proceedings 17:5
process 12:7

progress 9:1
project 4:18,20,24

5:2,13,24,25 6:11
6:23,24 8:11
10:10,12 11:15,19
13:9,13,16,22,24
14:15,25 15:1

projects 3:22,24
5:19,24 6:2 8:4,8

properties 14:7
property 5:20,21

5:22 13:19 14:17
provided 5:12,15

6:1,2 7:1
providing 6:21

q

question 8:21
questions 3:9 4:3

4:6 6:3 7:5 11:10
14:19,21,22

quite 13:17
quorum 2:15,21

r

r 17:1
range 6:24
rate 7:13 9:19

10:5,12,18,19,25
11:2,23 14:7

ratio 6:25 9:19
ratios 9:7
ravine 5:22,24
ready 15:11
real 14:17
reason 14:5
reasons 8:13
receive 14:10
recommendation

6:16
record 5:14 13:22

17:5

regard 6:2 13:13
regulatory 11:18
relates 11:19
remember 14:23
rental 5:5
report 6:18,20
represent 4:19,20
request 14:12
required 7:14
requirement 14:9
residential 5:4
resolution 4:17,23
resolutions 4:16

13:4
resulted 3:23
retail 13:13,15
return 6:24
review 6:10
right 2:14 7:4 8:12

8:18 11:10 12:1
14:14 15:19,21,24

riverdale 4:25
15:18

road 17:12
roberto 2:11,20
ron 6:10

s

s 13:25
sale 13:21 14:6
satisfied 6:15
sawyer 10:11
schulman 6:10
second 3:13 4:8

12:12
seconded 3:14 4:6

12:11,13 16:4
section 4:25
see 9:12 10:22

16:9
seeing 10:19 16:11

sell 13:18
seller 15:1
shaking 8:10
shepherd 11:14
siby 3:19,20 4:2
side 11:3,3 13:7

15:1
signature 17:7
significant 9:16
sincerely 12:9
singer 2:6,7,8 3:13

3:15 4:4 7:6 8:23
9:18 10:8 11:5,11

six 14:4
size 5:13
solutions 17:11
sonya 17:3
soon 2:24,25
space 5:7
spaces 5:8,11
spano 2:14,22 3:4

3:12,14,18 4:2,5,9
4:13 6:6,17 7:4
11:9,12 12:10,13
12:16,20 13:1
14:21 15:3,13,16
15:20,24 16:3,8

spano's 2:1
spoke 15:7
sponsored 14:24
square 5:14
st 4:17,23 10:10
state 13:11
stock 7:23
stopped 15:4
story 5:3
street 4:24 5:8

13:11
structure 8:25
studios 5:6

[oommen - studios] Page 4

Diamond Reporting
800.727.6396 A Veritext Company www.veritext.com



suitable 10:21
suite 17:13
support 9:24
supported 6:23
sure 6:3

t

t 17:1,1
take 3:8
tax 9:20 14:17
tell 12:6
terminate 14:2,15
termination 14:4

14:14
thank 2:9 4:1,2

6:5 11:7,12,16
12:10,22,23 14:22
16:10

thanks 15:21
theme 11:21
thing 9:4 10:2

11:14
things 8:5
think 5:10 6:9

7:10,24 8:1 9:3
11:3 14:25

thinking 9:9
three 5:7
time 3:8,24 13:8

13:17 14:3
total 5:13 7:8,19

8:11,24
tower 15:22
transaction 4:19

13:7
transcript 17:4
trouble 10:7
true 17:4
try 2:23
trying 9:20 11:13
two 5:6,19 6:2,14

15:7

u

ultimate 11:6
understand 14:16
units 5:5 7:7,15,17

7:18 10:15 13:14
13:14 14:7,8,11

update 13:5,7
15:12

updating 7:12
use 5:4

v

veritext 17:11
versus 11:23
viewed 10:20

w

want 10:1 11:17
wants 10:15,17
warburton 13:10
way 12:2
we've 5:19 8:6 9:1

9:9,23 11:22
weeks 6:14
went 6:9,11,14

8:17 15:3
westham 5:24
work 12:5
worthy 11:4
wrap 8:15
wrestled 8:5
wrestling 7:12

y

yeah 15:13,20
year 13:23,25,25

14:1,3,18,19
years 5:19 7:17

13:23
yonkers 10:6 12:7
yup 15:6,15

[suitable - yup] Page 5

Diamond Reporting
800.727.6396 A Veritext Company www.veritext.com















THE PLANT MANOR LLC  

1097 North Broadway 



Page 1 

 
FINAL RESOLUTION 

(The Plant Manor LLC Project) 
 

A regular meeting of the City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency was convened 
in public session on September 13, 2022. 
  

The following resolution was duly offered and seconded, to wit: 
 

Resolution No. 09/2022 - 12 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF YONKERS INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY (THE “AGENCY”) (i) ACKNOWLEDGING THE PUBLIC 
HEARING HELD BY THE AGENCY WITH RESPECT TO THE PLANT 
MANOR LLC PROJECT, (ii) AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND 
DELIVERY OF AN AGENT, FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AND PROJECT 
AGREEMENT, LEASE AGREEMENT, LEASEBACK AGREEMENT, TAX 
AGREEMENT, TAX AGREEMENT MORTGAGE AND RELATED 
DOCUMENTS; (iii) AUTHORIZING FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE TO THE 
PLANT MANOR LLC IN THE FORM OF (A) A SALES AND USE TAX 
EXEMPTION FOR PURCHASES AND RENTALS RELATED TO THE 
ACQUISITION, CONSTRUCTION, RECONSTRUCTION, RENOVATION 
AND EQUIPPING OF THE PROJECT, (B) A REAL PROPERTY TAX 
ABATEMENT STRUCTURED THROUGH A TAX AGREEMENT, AND (C) 
A MORTGAGE RECORDING TAX EXEMPTION AS PERMITTED BY NEW 
YORK STATE LAW; AND (iv) AUTHORIZING THE EXECUTION AND 
DELIVERY OF A MORTGAGE AND RELATED DOCUMENTS.   
 
WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of New 

York, as amended, and Chapter 83 of the Laws of 1982 of the State of New York, as amended 
(hereinafter collectively called the “Act”), the CITY OF YONKERS INDUSTRIAL 
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (the “Agency”) was created with the authority and power to own, 
lease and sell property for the purpose of, among other things, acquiring, constructing and 
equipping civic, industrial, manufacturing and commercial facilities as authorized by the Act; and 
 

WHEREAS, THE PLANT MANOR LLC, for itself or on behalf of an entity to be formed 
(the “Company”) has submitted an application (the “Application”) to the Agency requesting the 
Agency's assistance with a certain project (the “Project”) consisting of: (i) the acquisition or 
retention of approximately 6.5 acres of land containing an abandoned building commonly known 
as 1097 N. Broadway (Section 3, Block 3515, Lot 80) (the “Land”); (ii) the construction, 
renovation, improving, maintaining and equipping on the Land of the existing, vacant 
improvements into an approximately 70,000 square feet event venue with space for professional 
events, weddings and celebrations, film, photo, and audio production, including 25 guest rooms 
(the “Improvements”); and (iii) the acquisition and installation in and around the Improvements of 
certain items of equipment and other tangible personal property (the “Equipment”, which together 
with the Land and Improvements are the “Facility”); ands 

DRAFT 



YIDA Resolution No. 09/2022-12 
Final Resolution – The Plant Manor LLC  
September 13, 2022 
TC: Harris Beach PLLC 
 

Page 2 

 
WHEREAS, on March 31, 2022, the Agency adopted a resolution with respect to the 

Project: (i) accepting the Application of the Company, (ii) directing that a public hearing be held, 
and (iii) describing the Financial Assistance (as hereinafter defined) being contemplated by the 
Agency with respect to the Project; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is contemplated that the Agency enter into an agent, financial assistance 
and project agreement, pursuant to which the Agency will designate the Company as its agent for 
the purpose of constructing and equipping the Project (the “Agent Agreement”), (ii) negotiate and 
enter into a lease agreement (the “Lease Agreement”), leaseback agreement (the “Leaseback 
Agreement”) and tax agreement (the “Tax Agreement”) with the Company, and, if required by the 
Agency, a Tax Agreement mortgage (the “Tax Agreement Mortgage”), (iii) take a leasehold 
interest in the Land, the Improvements and personal property constituting the Project (once the 
Lease Agreement, Leaseback Agreement and Tax Agreement (and Tax Agreement Mortgage, if 
applicable have been negotiated), and (iv) provide Financial Assistance to the Company in the 
form of (a) a sales and use tax exemption for purchases and rentals related to the acquisition, 
construction and equipping of the Project, (b) a partial real property tax abatement structured 
through the Tax Agreement, and (c) a mortgage recording tax exemption as permitted by New 
York State Law (collectively, the “Financial Assistance”); and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to General Municipal Law Section 859-a, on May 10, 2022, at 3:30 

p.m. local time, at the offices of Agency at 470 Nepperhan Avenue, Suite 200, Yonkers, New York 
10701, the Agency held a public hearing with respect to the Project and the proposed Financial 
Assistance being contemplated by the Agency (the “Public Hearing”) whereat interested parties 
were provided a reasonable opportunity, both orally and in writing, to present their views.  A copy 
of the Notice of Public Hearing - published and forwarded to the affected taxing jurisdictions with 
Notice Letter at least ten (10) days prior to said Public Hearing - is attached hereto as Exhibit A, 
along with the Affidavit of Publication of The Journal News, and Minutes of the Public Hearing; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the City of Yonkers Planning Board (“Yonkers Planning Board”), as lead 

agency, conducted a review of the Project pursuant to the New York State Environmental Quality 
Review Act, Article 8 of the Environmental Conservation Law and its implementing regulations 
at 6 N.Y.C.R.R. Part 617 (collectively referred to as “SEQRA”), which resulted in the issuance of 
a negative declaration by the City of Yonkers City Council dated June 8, 2022 (the “Negative 
Declaration”) attached hereto as Exhibit B, concluding the SEQRA process; and  

 
WHEREAS, the Company has or will obtain a mortgage loan or loans (collectively, the 

“Mortgage”) to finance all or a portion of the financing or re-financing of the costs of the Facility 
from a lender to be identified by the Company, which Mortgage will secure an aggregate principal 
amount of approximately $30,518,191.00; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Company has requested a mortgage recording tax exemption upon the 

recording of the Mortgage in the approximate amount of up to $457,772.87;   
 



YIDA Resolution No. 09/2022-12 
Final Resolution – The Plant Manor LLC  
September 13, 2022 
TC: Harris Beach PLLC 
 

Page 3  

WHEREAS, the number of jobs to be created or maintained at the Facility are projected to 
be forty-one (41); and  
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF CITY OF 
YONKERS INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. The Public Hearing held concerning the Project and the Financial 
Assistance was duly held in accordance with the Act, including, but not limited to, the giving of at 
least ten (10) days published notice of the Public Hearing (such notice also provided to the Chief 
Executive Officer of each affected tax jurisdiction), affording interested parties a reasonable 
opportunity, both orally and in writing, to present their views with respect to the Project. The 
Agency hereby determines that the Project is a “commercial” project under the Act, and that 
undertaking and providing financial assistance to the Project (i) will promote and maintain the job 
opportunities, health, general prosperity and economic welfare of the citizens of the City and the 
State of New York (“State”) and improve their standard of living, (ii) will preserve the competitive 
position of the Project and will not result in the removal of an industrial, manufacturing or 
commercial plant of the Company or any occupant of the Project from one area of the State to 
another area of the State or in the abandonment of one or more plants or facilities of the Company 
or any occupant of the Project except as permitted by the Act, and (iii) is authorized by the Act 
and will be in furtherance of the policy of the State as set forth therein.   

 
Section 2. The Agency is hereby authorized to provide to the Company the Financial 

Assistance in the form of (a) a sales and use tax exemption for purchases and rentals related to the 
acquisition, construction, reconstruction, renovation and equipping of the Project, (b) a real 
property tax abatement structured through the Tax Agreement, and (c) a mortgage recording tax 
exemption for the Mortgage as permitted by New York State Law, except for an amount 
representing the “additional tax” imposed on each mortgage of real property situated within the 
state imposed by paragraph (a) of subdivision (2) of Section 253 of the Tax Law. 

  
Section 3. Subject to the Company executing an Agent Agreement (in a form to be 

approved by Counsel to the Agency and/or Transaction Counsel) and the delivery to the Agency 
of a binder, certificate or other evidence of liability insurance policy for the Project satisfactory to 
the Agency, the Agency hereby authorizes the Company to proceed with the acquisition, 
construction and equipping of the Project and hereby appoints the Company as the true and lawful 
agent of the Agency: (i) to acquire, construct and equip the Project; (ii) to make, execute, 
acknowledge and deliver any contracts, orders, receipts, writings and instructions, as the stated 
agent for the Agency with the authority to delegate such agency, in whole or in part, to agents, 
subagents, contractors, and subcontractors of such agents and subagents and to such other parties 
as the Company chooses; and (iii) in general, to do all things which may be requisite or proper for 
completing the Project, all with the same powers and the same validity that the Agency could do 
if acting in its own behalf; provided, however, the Agent Agreement shall expire on December 
31, 2023 (unless extended for good cause by the Executive Director of the Agency) if the Lease 
Agreement, Leaseback Agreement, Tax Agreement and Tax Agreement Mortgage contemplated 
have not been executed and delivered. 

 



YIDA Resolution No. 09/2022-12 
Final Resolution – The Plant Manor LLC  
September 13, 2022 
TC: Harris Beach PLLC 
 

Page 4 

Section 4.  Based upon the representation and warranties made by the Company in its 
Application for financial assistance, the Agency hereby authorizes and approves the Company as 
its agent to make purchases of goods and services relating to the Project and that would otherwise 
be subject to New York State and local sales and use tax in an amount up to $22,000,000.00, which 
result in New York State and local sales and use tax exemption benefits (“sales and use tax 
exemption benefits”) not to exceed $1,925,000.00.  The Agency agrees to consider any requests 
by the Company for increase to the amount of sales and use tax exemption benefits authorized by 
the Agency upon being provided with appropriate documentation detailing the additional 
purchases of property or services. 

 
Section 5. Pursuant to Section 875(3) of the New York General Municipal Law, the 

Agency may recover or recapture from the Company, its agents, consultants, subcontractors, or 
any other party authorized to make purchases for the benefit of the Project, any sales and use tax 
exemption benefits taken or purported to be taken by the Company, its agents, consultants, 
subcontractors, or any other party authorized to make purchases for the benefit of the Project, if it 
is determined that: (i) the Company, its agents, consultants, subcontractors, or any other party 
authorized to make purchases for the benefit of the Project, is not entitled to the sales and use tax 
exemption benefits; (ii) the sales and use tax exemption benefits are in excess of the amounts 
authorized to be taken by the Company, its agents, consultants, subcontractors, or any other party 
authorized to make purchases for the benefit of the Project; (iii) the sales and use tax exemption 
benefits are for property or services not authorized by the Agency as part of the Project; or (iv) the 
sales and use tax exemption benefits are taken in cases where the Company, its agents, consultants, 
subcontractors, or any other party authorized to make purchases for the benefit of the Project, fails 
to comply with a material term or condition to use property or services in the manner approved by 
the Agency in connection with the Project.  As a condition precedent of receiving sales and use 
tax exemption benefits, the Company, its agents, consultants, subcontractors, or any other party 
authorized to make purchases for the benefit of the Project, must (i) cooperate with the Agency in 
its efforts to recover or recapture any sales and use tax exemption benefits, and (ii) promptly pay 
over any such amounts to the Agency that the Agency demands. 
 
 Section 6. The Chairman, Vice Chairman, President, Executive Director, Secretary 
and/or the CFO of the Agency the Agency are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to 
negotiate and enter into (A) the Agent Agreement, (B) the Lease Agreement, pursuant to which 
the Company leases the Project to the Agency, (C) the related Leaseback Agreement, pursuant to 
which the Agency leases its interest in the Project back to the Company, and (D) the Tax 
Agreement and Tax Agreement Mortgage; provided, that, (i) the rental payments under the 
Leaseback Agreement include payments of all costs incurred by the Agency arising out of or 
related to the Project and indemnification of the Agency by the Company for actions taken by the 
Company and/or claims arising out of or related to the Project; and (ii) the terms of the Tax 
Agreement are consistent with the Agency's Uniform Tax Exemption Policy (“UTEP”) or the 
procedures for deviation have been complied with. 

 
Section 7. The Chairman, Vice Chairman, Executive Director and/or the Secretary of 

the Agency are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to execute, deliver and record any 
mortgage, security agreement, UCC-1 Financing Statements and all documents reasonably 



YIDA Resolution No. 09/2022-12 
Final Resolution – The Plant Manor LLC  
September 13, 2022 
TC: Harris Beach PLLC 
 

Page 5 

contemplated by these resolutions or required by any Lender identified by the Company (the 
“Lender”) up to a maximum principal amount necessary to refinance existing Company debt and 
to undertake the Project, acquire the Facility and/or finance or refinance the Facility or equipment 
and other personal property and related transactional costs (hereinafter, with the Agent Agreement, 
Lease Agreement, Leaseback Agreement, Tax Agreement and Tax Agreement Mortgage, 
collectively called the “Agency Documents”); and, where appropriate, the Secretary or Assistant 
Secretary of the Agency is hereby authorized to affix the seal of the Agency to the Agency 
Documents and to attest the same, all with such changes, variations, omissions and insertions as 
the Chairman, Vice Chairman, Executive Director and/or the Secretary of the Agency shall 
approve, the execution thereof by the Chairman, Vice Chairman, Executive Director and/or the 
Secretary of the Agency to constitute conclusive evidence of such approval; provided in all events 
recourse against the Agency is limited to the Agency’s interest in the Project. 
 

Section 8. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized 
and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required and 
to execute and deliver all such certificates, instruments and documents, to pay all such fees, charges 
and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may be necessary or, in the opinion of 
the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable and proper to effect the purposes of the foregoing 
resolutions and to cause compliance by the Agency with all of the terms, covenants and provisions 
of the documents executed for and on behalf of the Agency. 

 
Section 9. The Yonkers Planning Board (the “Lead Agency”) has conducted a review 

pursuant to SEQRA and issued a Negative Declaration, determining that the Project did not present 
a potential significant adverse environmental impact.  Having reviewed the Negative Declaration, 
as well as the other representations and information submitted with the Application, the Agency 
concurs with the Lead Agency's findings and Negative Declaration.  The Agency further 
determines that the Project does not pose a potential significant adverse environmental impact. 

 
Section 10. This resolution shall take effect immediately upon adoption.  

 
The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on roll call, 

which resulted as follows: 
 

    Yea  Nay  Abstain Absent 
 

Mayor Mike Spano   [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 
Marlyn Anderson   [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 
Melissa Nacerino  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 
Hon. Cecile D. Singer  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 
Henry Djonbalaj  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 
Roberto Espiritu  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 
 
  
 The Resolution were thereupon duly adopted. 
 



YIDA Resolution No. 09/2022-12 
Final Resolution – The Plant Manor LLC  
September 13, 2022 
TC: Harris Beach PLLC 
 

Page 6 

CERTIFICATION 
(The Plant Manor LLC Project) 

 
 
STATE OF NEW YORK  ) 
COUNTY OF WESTCHESTER ) ss.: 
 

I, MARLYN ANDERSON, the undersigned Secretary of the City of Yonkers Industrial 
Development Agency DO HEREBY CERTIFY: 
 

That I have compared the annexed extract of minutes of the meeting of the City of Yonkers 
Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”), including the resolution contained therein, held 
September 13, 2022 with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the same is a true and 
correct copy of the proceedings of the Agency and of such resolution set forth therein and of the 
whole of said original insofar as the same related to the subject matters therein referred to. 
 

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that all members of said Agency had due notice of said meeting, 
that the meeting was in all respects duly held and that, pursuant to Article 7 of the Public Officers 
Law (Open Meetings Law), said meeting was open to the general public, and that public notice of 
the time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with such Article 7. 
 

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that there was a quorum of the members of the Agency present 
throughout said meeting. 
 

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that as of the date hereof, the attached resolution is in full force 
and effect and has not been amended, repealed or modified. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of said Agency 
this __ day of September, 2022. 
 
 
              
        Marlyn Anderson, Secretary 
 
[SEAL] 
 
 

 
 



YIDA Resolution No. 09/2022-12 
Final Resolution – The Plant Manor LLC  
September 13, 2022 
TC: Harris Beach PLLC 
 

Page 7 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Notice of Public Hearing 
Notice Letter 

Evidence of Mailing Notice Letter 
Affidavit of Publication of The Journal News 

Minutes of Public Hearing 
 

[Attached hereto] 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



YIDA Resolution No. 09/2022-12 
Final Resolution – The Plant Manor LLC  
September 13, 2022 
TC: Harris Beach PLLC 
 

Page 8 

 
EXHIBIT B 

 
Negative Declaration 

 
[Attached hereto] 

 



 

STATE OF NEW YORK 
CITY OF YONKERS 
 
 

 

 

Minutes of 
Yonkers Economic Development Corporation 

Public Hearing –The Plant Manor 
Date:  May 10, 2022 at 3:30 p.m. 

 
 

 

BEFORE: 
 
Michael Curti, Esq. – IDA Counsel 
 

 
IDA STAFF: 
 
Mary Lyras – Chief Fiscal Officer 
Fiona Rodriguez – Administrative Assistant 
Samantha Young – Bookkeeper 
 

 
OTHERS: 
 
Ray Ocasio – The Plant Manor LLC 
 

 

Good afternoon my name is Michael Curti, Counsel to the City of Yonkers IDA.  It is Tuesday, May 10th. 

The time is 3:32 p.m. I will note that the public hearing room has been open since at least 3 o’clock.  We’re 

here again this afternoon on the 10th of May 2022 at 3:30 p.m. to open the public hearing on The Plant 

Manor project in accordance with Section 859A Subdivision 2 of the general municipal law. Notification 

for this hearing appeared in The Journal News on April 26, 2022. If there’s anyone who would like to speak 

on this project we would ask that they raise their hand, give their name and address and if they are here 

representing an organization to please identify the same. 

The public is advised that reasonable amount of time will be allowed for comments to be made relevant 

to the project before us. They will be allotted three minutes to make their statement.  If there’s a written 

statement or documentation they would like to submit for the record they may do so the hearing is open 

again at 3:32 p.m. to members of the public who wish to speak in favor or in opposition to this project.  

The transcript of this public hearing will be reviewed by the entire IDA board in determination of this 

project and for the record is The Plant Manor LLC for itself or an entity to be formed which is the company 

has submitted an application to Agency requesting the Agency’s assistance with certain project consisting 

of the acquisition or retention of 6.5 acres of land containing an abandoned building (inaudible) 1097 

North Broadway that’s section 3 block 35,15 lot 80 the construction, renovating, improving, maintenance 

DRAFT 



and equipping on the land of this land to an event venue totaling approximately 70,000 square feet for 

professional events, wedding, film, phot and audio production with 25 guest rooms.  The acquisition and 

install in and around the land and these improvements that just described of certain items of equipment 

and other tangible personal property.  This equipment together with the land and improvements are the 

facility.  The Agency will acquire or retain title to or at least hold interest in the facility back to the 

company.  The company will operate the facility during the term of the lease at the end of the lease term 

the company will purchase the facility from the Agency or if the Agency holds a leasehold interest, the 

leasehold interest will be terminated.  The Agency contemplates that it will provide financial assistance to 

the company in the form of 1) sales and use tax exemption for purchases and rentals related to the 

acquisition and equipping of the project. 2) An exemption from New York State mortgage recording taxes 

as permitted by law both consistent with the policies of the Agency and a partial tax abatement structure 

under a tax agreement.  Again, the hearing was opened at 3:32 p.m. and we will keep the public hearing 

open until 4 o’clock.  Thank you. 

The time now 4:01 p.m. I will note for the record the public hearing at 3:32 p.m. and the public hearing 

room has been open continuous since 3 o’clock to 4:01 or 4:02 p.m. no one has asked to speak as result I 

will now close the public hearing.  Thank you very much. 



raymondocasio
Rectangle

raymondocasio
Rectangle

raymondocasio
Rectangle



























ALDER MANOR 
YONKERS IDA AMENDED APPLICATION 
DATE: January 3rd, 2022 

 
 
Project Narrative Statement 
 
Built in 1912 as the private estate of a Gilded Age copper baron, The Manor will be 
transformed into a 70,000+ square-foot, eco-chic venue for weddings and celebrations; 
professional events; and film, photo, and audio production. Accompanied by 25 guest 
rooms, The Manor will enable truly special overnight events and immersive retreats. 
The Manor will serve as the sister property to The Plant, just a seven-minute drive 
away, and open in Q4 2023. 
 
The Plant Manor LLC, a New York based development company, acquired the property 
and has worked closely with the City of Yonkers and the State Historic Preservation 
Office to complete Parts 1 and 2 of the Nation Parks Service Historic Preservation 
Certification to achieve Historic Tax Credits. 
 
The Property consists of approximately 6.5 acres and contains four structures:  Alder 
Manor residence (50,000 GSF) will be restored, including improvements to the exterior 
envelope, new mechanical systems design to make the campus Zero E and Carbon 
Neutral, and interior upgrades such as new bathrooms. Bosch Hall, a non-historic 
building was partially demolished in 2019 to restore the Hudson River views from the 
property; the remaining space will be renovated into the Cliff House, a modern event 
space (12,000 GSF).  The final two structures, a small chapel (2,000 GSF) and an even 
smaller detached cottage (600 GSF), will undergo exterior envelope upgrades.  The site 
will be upgraded with new pervious parking, lighting, and landscaping.   
 
Historic preservation is inherently a sustainable practice because the urban built 
environment causes 75% of annual global greenhouse gas emissions. Buildings alone 
account for nearly 40% through building materials/construction and building operations, 
and embodied carbon will contribute 50% of total new construction emissions between 
now and 2050. 
 
These striking and concerning figures are among the main drivers behind our efforts to 
adaptively reuse The Manor, because the greenest buildings are the ones already built, 
and succinctly expresses the relationship between preservation and sustainability. 
Repair, Retrofitting and Repurposing existing an historic building is considered by many 
to be the ultimate recycling project with many local, regional, and statewide benefits, but 
they come at a cost. 
 
Development with Purpose 
As impact-driven developers, we took on the voluntary task of placing The Manor on the 
State and National Historic Registers. Historic restoration projects are often passed by 
typical developers, despite the advantages of Historic Tax Credits, because they add 
considerable time and costs to their development budget. When proformas are viewed 



from a ROI and IRR perspective, time is of the essence and so is the time value of 
money. The Manor is a model for sustainable practices that reduce energy consumption 
while maintaining the characteristics that make historic properties significant, making 
the building and its practices accessible to the whole whole community of Yonkers and 
beyond. With the aid of GKV architects, ME-Engineers, WSP, and future partners, we 
are poised to address these challenges through targeted design solutions. 
  

  
Figure 1. Environment, Society, and Economy 

 
 
Status of Entitlements 
Site Plan approval for The Manor, Chapel and Cottage Use is complete per the 
Planning Board resolution dated February 14, 2020. The Cliff House Parking Variance 
is complete and was approved at the Zoning Board of Appeals (“ZBA”) meeting on June 
16, 2020, which allows for the Cliff House to be added to the Site Plan. Traffic and 
parking studies have been completed with City of Yonkers (“COY”) approvals, as have 
emergency access and egress approvals. The Department of Housing and Buildings 
(“DHB”) Permit for Exterior Envelope Restoration has been approved, as well as a work 
permit. The combined Site Plan amendment for all buildings including the Cliff House 
was approved by the ZBA on July 8, 2020, and will be reviewed for approval by the 
Planning Board on February 9th 2022.  
 
The project voluntarily submitted to the National Park Service (“NPS”) and the SHPO to 
seek Historic Preservation Certification Tax Incentives. The Plant is two-thirds the way 
through the three-part NPS application to qualify for the 20% rehabilitation tax credit. 
Part 3 of the application will be submitted after we have finished documenting that the 
work was completed as proposed in the approved Part 2 application. The COY 
Landmarks Commission has approved the project, allowing The Plant to pull permits to 
commence roof work with exterior facade work to follow. Permitting for the interiors of 
The Manor, Chapel, and Cottage will be submitted in January 2022, with approvals by 
the Yonkers Building Department anticipated in late Q1 2022.     
 
Increase Costs of Building Design & Construction: 



Since our original application to the YIDA, the design of The Manor and Cliff House 
have evolved to include details from our discussions with SHPO, sustainability 
interventions to make the facility Zero E an Carbon Neutral, and construction costs have 
been increased due to reflect current market pricing. The one-time construction costs 
have increased from $18.3M to $29.1M. Similarly private equity increased from an 
anticipated $9.6M equity investment to $13.9M. 
 
The total increase to project budget has grown from $40M to over $48M (not including 
$10.3M in Acquisition & predevelopment costs) since the project was last presented to 
the YIDA.   
 
The Plant Manor LLC is unable to secure convention construction financing without a 
significant increase to equity and economic assistance from entities like the YIDA. 
Considering the extended timelines, increased scope of work, and inability to generate 
revenues during the development process, The Plant Manor LLC is seeking a 15-year 
extension to the PILOT plan (based on updated improvement assessments), and 
revisions to the Sales and Use Tax and Mortgage Record Tax benefits to facilitate the 
ongoing investment and restoration of Alder Manor.  
 

Potential Impact and Benefits 
The Manor project demonstrates the incredible potential for public subsidies to enable 
private developers to effectively redevelop properties with historic significance and 
simultaneously employ innovative and cutting-edge clean technologies to modernize our 
building stock and decrease harmful emissions. These technologies are costly to deploy 
in any development, but are exponentially more expensive to deploy in older, historic 
structures that need the benefit of improved energy efficiency that much more.  
 
Furthermore, The Manor falls in a geographical region that comes with a number of 
additional challenges for securing financing that are unusual, but unfortunately not 
totally uncommon in the State of New York. Despite being in an economically 
disadvantaged community; The Manor falls between the cracks of current legislation 
aiming to improve financing opportunities for real estate developers. Namely, The 
Manor sits just outside of census tracts identified as Opportunity Zones, as qualifying for 
NMTCs, and designated as Disadvantaged Communities through NYSERDA. Economic 
fundamentals show, however, that the communities surrounding The Manor experience 
equal or higher income inequality than many of these areas designated as Opportunity 
Zones, NMTCs, or Disadvantaged Communities (see Figure 6). The poverty rate for the 
census tract containing The Manor, 13.3%, is significantly higher than the Westchester 
County average of 7.6%.  
 
Located just beyond the boundaries of these as-of-right financing incentives, the census 
tract containing The Manor is rendered less appealing to traditional lenders seeking 
yield but is no less deserving of the economic development that results in a project such 
as this. In this way, The Manor project is an exceptional example of how NYGB can 
supplement the existing State and Federal programs to encourage sustainable 



economic growth and the proliferation and accessibility of clean energy solutions for the 
State’s most deserving communities.   
 

 
Figure 2. Income Inequality Surrounding The Manor 

 

Why the Project should be undertaken by the Agency 

The YIDA should amend the Alder Manor’s benefits because the project costs and 
improvements will add additional economic impact to Yonkers, contribute millions of 
dollars to Yonkers schools without adding any new burdens to the schools, improve the 
quality of life for city residents, and provide dozens of construction and long-term 
occupational jobs.  

Economic Impact: Per an economic study conducted by Urbanomics in 2019, the 
construction and operation of Alder Manor will bring millions of dollars to the local 
economy. The one time historic renovation of the Manor will bring $10.8 million of 
economic output/business revenues to Yonkers, and the operations will bring up to an 
additional $6 million each year.  

Tax Contribution: Since acquisition, The Plant Manor LLC has paid $165,000 annually 
in PILOT payment. Alder Manor is a strictly commercial enterprise and does not 
generate any new school children to the neighborhood. Once improved the property will 
generate approximately $17M over 15 years. The proportion of those taxes going 
directly to the Yonkers School district will therefore directly benefit the District without 
any off-setting costs. No additional city services are requested nor anticipated by the 
future event and hotel use. Any event over the permitted number of guests (435 guests 
for 145 parking spaces) would be by special permit only, which mandates that the hotel 



and event venue pay additional costs if needed to facilitate the event. In short, any costs 
for city services for a larger event would be above the obligation of the annual tax or 
PILOT payment.  

Improve the Quality of Life for the Residents of the City: Alder Manor will contribute 
to the quality of life in Yonkers and enhance the growing business district on North 
Broadway by preserving a local historic asset and by providing the community with a 
place to gather. Furthermore, as an example of Adaptive and Sustainable Reuse the 
project, along with The Plant will generate international interest to Yonkers and further 
draw events and visitors to the City. 

Local Employment: In Yonkers, the project will create, directly up to 61 jobs from the 
operations of Alder Manor. The Plant Manor LLC, is targeting a 40% local hire rate and 
has already initiated local hiring initiatives. The project partnered with Greyston Bakery 
to hire temporary workers and will hire local staff for operational needs. Regarding the 
construction team, the partial demolition of Bosch Hall was conducted by local Yonkers 
demolition company Capital Industries. The consulting team includes five Westchester 
companies, three of which are from Yonkers. Lastly, the Operating Partner - Abigail 
Kirsch - is a seasoned Westchester operator (Abigail Kirsch runs Tappan Hill Mansion 
in Tarrytown) and is already recommending local talent to the project.  
 

In summary 

1. Project will bring 30 Part Time (PT) and 31 Full Time (FT) new employees to 
Yonkers to maintain and operate the facility.  

2. Based on a 2019 Urbanomics Report the annual operations will generate $1.1 
$2.2 million in wages to the City of Yonkers. 

3. Will generate over $17M in Real Estate Taxes (based on 15 year PILOT 
program) 

4. Regionally expand indirect wages and tax revenues through new and existing 
business.   

A new Urbanomic report will be completed in Februarys 2022. Those direct and indirect 
impacts will be provided in a supplemental submission for YIDA that will reflect the 
increased investment and improvement to the property that will also increase the 
anticipated benefits listed above.  

Construction and repairs of The Manor’s Roof began in late 2021 and is anticipated to 
be complete by March of 2022. Upon completion of the Site Plan review by the Planning 
Department, The Plant Manor LLC, will close private financing for the Manor and 
commence construction on the Exterior and Interior of the building this Spring.  The Cliff 
House construction will begin in late Summer with both projects complete by Fall of 
2023.  Operations at The Manor are slated to commence in Oct 2023.  

All of this upcoming work will greatly benefit from the sales tax and mortgage recording 
tax exemptions; along with the PILOT amendment to a 15 year benefit commencing at 



project stabilization (2025 Tax Year) and we would be grateful to the YIDA to consider 
this amendment to our existing application. 

 

Sincerely,  

 

Ray Ocasio 

Head of Development 
 
 
 
 
 

 

























































   0 | PAGE 
   0 | PAGE 
 

 

 

  

The Manor  
 The Plant Manor, LLC 

FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AND IMPACT ANALYSIS FOR THE                                                                                                        

CITY OF YONKERS INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

AUGUST 29, 2022 

THIRD DRAFT 



STORRS ASSOCIATES FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AND IMPACT ANALYSIS OF THE PLANT MANOR PROJECT, YONKERS IDA   1 | PAGE 
 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
PURPOSE OF THIS ANALYSIS 
The Plant Manor, LLC (Applicant) requests financial assistance 
from the City of Yonkers IDA (Agency) for The Manor, part of a 
phased redevelopment of a historic manor home and power plant 
into a conference and event center (Project.)  Storrs Associates, LLC 
has been engaged by the Agency to conduct an objective, third-
party analysis to assist the Agency with its evaluation of the 
application. The Project includes: 

 70,000+ square foot venue for weddings and celebrations, 
events, and film, photo, and audio production 

 25 guest rooms for overnight events and retreats 

 $8.3 million Federal and State historic tax credits  

Financial assistance requested includes: 

 15-Year PILOT schedule with a 35% maximum abatement, 
present value of savings of $3,100,280 

 Mortgage Recording Tax abatement of $280,633 

 Construction Materials sales tax abatement of $1,998,809 

CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATION 
This analysis concludes that the financial assistance is necessary 
for financial feasibility, and without it, the Project would not be 
built. With assistance, the Project is likely to meet investor 
expectations and therefore be built. 

 
1 “An Introduction to Impact Investing,” 10/26/21, Forbes Advisor. 

Equity will be provided by the Applicant and additional 
philanthropic1 Impact Investors, who are willing to accept lower 
returns to promote public benefits such as a reduced 
environmental footprint. The Global Impact Investing Network 
uses a 10-year Internal Rate of Return to measure performance, 
which averages 3.70%2. The Project achieves 3.77% over ten years, 
slightly exceeding the average but below the median of 6.40%. 

This analysis further estimates the following benefits: 

 Project construction is expected to generate 107 direct jobs plus 
another 55 indirect and induced jobs,  and add $19.3 million to 
the city’s Gross Regional Product (GRP), the local version of U.S. 
GDP.  

 Annual operations are estimated to support 55 jobs: 12 
permanent on-site employees plus an estimated 41 hires for 
events, and 2 jobs in the city from spending on local goods and 
services. This activity adds an estimated $9.6 million annually to 
GRP in Yonkers. 

The benefit/cost ratio within Yonkers is $2.60/$1.00. 

The net fiscal benefit is estimated to be $6,002,841 over 15 years. 

CONTENTS OF THIS REPORT: 

IDA BENEFITS TO PROJECT 3 
PROJECT BENEFITS TO YONKERS 4 
FISCAL BENEFITS AND COSTS 6 
PROJECT OPERATIONS 7 
FINANCING PLAN 8 
PILOT ANALYSIS 9 

2 Impact Investing Decision-Making: Insights on Financial Performance. 
January 2021, Global Impact Investing Network, p.17. 



STORRS ASSOCIATES FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AND IMPACT ANALYSIS OF THE PLANT MANOR PROJECT, YONKERS IDA   2 | PAGE 
 

SUMMARY OF RESULTS  
ESTIMATED BENEFITS AND COSTS FOR YONKERS 

ESTIMATED RETURNS FOR APPLICANT 

Equity investors, including the Applicant and philanthropic Impact 
Investors, are estimated to earn 3.77% over ten years, slightly 
above the 3.70% average and below the median of 6.40%. 

 
3 Totals and averages in tables may not calculate because jobs are 
rounded to the nearest whole number. 

ESTIMATED ECONOMIC IMPACT & OUTPUT3 

 55 ongoing jobs created in the City of Yonkers, and a $9,631,869 
estimated annual increase to the Gross Regional Product (GRP), 
the local equivalent of US GDP. 

  Construction spending creates 107 direct jobs, plus another 55 
indirect and induced jobs (163 jobs) and adds $19,256,167 to 
GRP during a 24 month construction period. 

 Direct Jobs are at the Project during construction or operation 
 Indirect Jobs are supported by business to business purchases 
 Induced Jobs are supported by employee spending 

Jobs and Worker Income During Construction Period
Direct Indirect Induced Total

New Jobs 107 54 1 163
Labor Income $8,513,792 $6,874,947 $67,494 $15,456,233
Average Income $79,368 $126,704 $59,205 $95,016

Value Added, or Contribution to Yonkers GRP $19,256,167

Applicant estimates 100-200 on-site jobs. Here, construction payroll is used to estimate jobs.

Jobs and Worker Income for Project Employees
Direct Indirect Induced Total

New Jobs 53 2 0 55
Labor Income $4,771,799 $89,537 $18,998 $4,880,335
Average Income $90,034 $57,766 $63,326 $88,976

Value Added, or Contribution to Yonkers GRP $9,631,869

Per the Applicant, 12 new jobs will be permanent full time and 41 hired for events.

Estimated Fiscal Benefits and Costs for Yonkers

Fiscal Benefits (Total New Revenue over 15 Years)
Sales Tax from Construction Materials Purchases, Table 2 $1,013,396

Sales Tax from Construction Worker Spending, Table 5 27,270

Sales Tax from On-Site Worker Spending, Table 5 36,126

Sales Tax from Operations, Taxable Purchases, Table 5 1,409,509

Mortgage Recording Tax, Table 2 77,960

Real Property Tax, Table 2 7,192,759

Total Fiscal Benefits $9,757,019

Fiscal Costs (Foregone Revenue)
Property Tax, Table 6 ($2,662,823)

Mortgage Recording Tax, Table 6 (77,960)
Construction Sales Tax, Table 6 (1,013,396)

Total Fiscal Costs (Foregone Revenue) ($3,754,179)

Net Benefit to Yonkers $6,002,841
Benefit/Cost Ratio $2.60 to $1.00

Note: Taxes are calculated for PILOT period, then discounted by 3%.



STORRS ASSOCIATES FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AND IMPACT ANALYSIS OF THE PLANT MANOR PROJECT, YONKERS IDA   3 | PAGE 
 

IDA BENEFITS TO PROJECT 
Storrs Associates analyzed pro forma cashflows and project 
financing details submitted by the Applicant. With Agency 
assistance: 

 The Project is estimated to deliver a Modified Internal Rate of 
Return (MIRR) of 3.77% over 10 years, slightly exceeding the 10-
year  impact investing average of 3.70%. 

 Project operations will generate net cash flow at stabilization in 
the fifth year, and every year thereafter. 

 Table 2 summarizes the value of the assistance over 15 Years. 
Details of the PILOT are provided below in the PILOT Analysis.  

Table 1 
Project Financial Performance Measures

15 Year PILOT, 
35% Abatement No PILOT

Project Cost $58,011,940 $58,011,940
Initial Equity  $13,470,024 $13,470,024
Initial Equity as a % of Project Costs 23.22% 23.22%

Applicant's Performance Measure, Average 3.7% Internal Rate of Return to Impact Investors
Assumes Equity Investment is Returned; Annual Net Cash is Reinvested at 3.70%
Modified Internal Rate of Return over 10 Years 3.77% 1.79%
Modified Internal Rate of Return over 15 Years 4.41% 3.02%

Progress Toward Repaying Construction Cost Debt
Annual Debt Service is Covered by Operating
Cash Flow Each Year

Assumes a 24-month construction period. An earlier Certificate of Occupancy may improve financial performance.

Applicant is pre-funding reserves to prepare for potential shortfalls. Net Income may be needed to supplement.

No, Uses Reserves 
in Years 2-4

No, Reserves 
Insufficient

Table 2 

Estimated Financial Assistance Requested Total Project City of Yonkers 
Yonkers School 

District
Westchester 

County State, MTA Table Reference
Sales Tax Exemption on Construction Materials
Construction Materials Costs, Estimated (1) $22,521,792 $22,521,792 $0 $0 $22,521,792
Sales Tax Rate Subject to Exemption (2) 8.875% 4.500% 0.000% 4.000% 4.375%
Estimated Sales Tax Exemption (3) $1,998,809 $1,013,396 $0 Included with State $985,413 This table

Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption (4)
Estimated Mortgage Amount 18,708,847 18,708,847 0 18,708,847 0
Mortgage Recording Tax Benefit, Percent of Mortgage (4) 1.50% Note 4 Note 4
Estimated Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption 280,633 77,960 0 202,673 0

Real Property Tax Abatement
Estimated Real Property Taxes if no PILOT, Present Value $8,374,408 $2,349,627 $4,843,132 $1,181,649 n/a Tables 11 - 14
Less: Estimated PILOT Tax Payments, Present Value (5,274,129) (1,479,775) (3,050,162) (744,192) n/a Tables 11 - 14

Real Property Tax Abatement, Present Value 3,100,280 869,853 1,792,970 437,457 0

Estimated Financial Assistance Requested, Total Present Value $5,379,721 $1,961,209 $1,792,970 $640,130 $985,413

Present Value Discount Rate is 3%

(1) All materials are estimated to be purchased in Yonkers, using a retail or wholesale supplier.

(2) City of Yonkers retains 50.7% of the total rate of 8.875% on purchases within the City, or 4.5%. Source: City of Yonkers IDA. 

(3) Total is maximum abatement assuming all materials purchases owe the full 8.875%. Actual abatement will vary depending on sales tax rates at the location of purchase.

(4) Westchester County rate is 1.5%. City of Yonkers retains 27.78% of the total collected. Source: City of Yonkers IDA.



STORRS ASSOCIATES FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AND IMPACT ANALYSIS OF THE PLANT MANOR PROJECT, YONKERS IDA   4 | PAGE 
 

PROJECT BENEFITS TO 

YONKERS 
163 jobs are estimated4 to be required to design, build, and 
finance the Project, including site work and infrastructure, building 
rehabilitation and reconstruction, architecture and engineering, 

 
4 Jobs, wages, and GRP calculated with the IMPLAN input-output model. 
5 Applicant estimates a 16-month construction period; 24 months are 
used throughout this analysis to be conservative.  

and professional fees. Purchase of property, reserves, and IDA 
fees are not included.  

All of the construction jobs contribute to the Yonkers economy 
because the Project is in Yonkers, regardless of where the workers 
live5. The Applicant expects that approximately 30% of on-site 
workers will originate within the 100-mile local hiring radius.  

The impact of Project operations1 is calculated with the IMPLAN 
Input-Output model, using as inputs the stabilized effective gross 
income of the facility, employee payroll, and management fee. This 
approach also incorporates annual purchases needed for 
operations, such as marketing, insurance, and utilities.6 

 

6 Purchases estimated by IMPLAN are intended to project future jobs, 
wages, and other purchases and will not match exactly the expenses listed 
in the Applicant’s pro forma, which are used to determine feasibility and 
sales taxes. These analyses are therefore treated separately in this report. 

Table 3 

Table 4 

Economic Impact of Construction in Yonkers
Basic Information
Timeframe 24 Months, Treated as 1 Year for Calculations
Construction Costs $41,342,383 Not including bank fees or reserves

Jobs and Worker Income During Construction Period
Direct Indirect Induced Total

New Jobs 107 54 1 163
Labor Income $8,513,792 $6,874,947 $67,494 $15,456,233
Average Income $79,368 $126,704 $59,205 $95,016

Value Added, or Contribution to Yonkers GRP $19,256,167

Applicant estimates 100-200 on-site jobs. Here, construction payroll is used to estimate jobs.

Construction Trades Workers Detail, All Jobs are Direct
Direct Trades

New Jobs 47
Hours Worked 91,226
Compensation $3,523,181
Days Worked 11,403          
Avg Hourly Rate $39

Economic Impact of Project Operations in Yonkers
Basic Information
Timeframe 2027 Stabilized Operations, 2027 "Dollar Year" for Inflation
Input $12,321,570 2027 Effective Gross Income

Jobs and Worker Income for Project Employees
Direct Indirect Induced Total

New Jobs 53 2 0 55
Labor Income $4,771,799 $89,537 $18,998 $4,880,335
Average Income $90,034 $57,766 $63,326 $88,976

Value Added, or Contribution to Yonkers GRP $9,631,869

Per the Applicant, 12 new jobs will be permanent full time and 41 hired for events.



STORRS ASSOCIATES FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AND IMPACT ANALYSIS OF THE PLANT MANOR PROJECT, YONKERS IDA   5 | PAGE 
 

The economic activity from Project construction and operation 
generates sales taxes on a portion of the goods and services 
purchased. New sales tax revenue generated by the Project is 
estimated as follows, and shown in Table 5.  

 Within Yonkers a sales tax rate of 8.875% applies, with 4.5% of 
collected taxes retained as city revenue. 

 Construction workers purchase meals, gas, and workday 
incidentals for each day worked. The NYS per diem for 
Westchester County, $50, is used. Workdays are hours worked 
from Table 3, above, divided by 8-hour days. 75% of purchases 
are expected to be taxable. 

 The 12 permanent full time workers are expected to purchase 
meals, gas, and incidentals, but to spend only $25 per day 
because of the ongoing nature of the job. 75% of purchases are 
expected to be taxable. Workers hired for specific events are not 
included in the calculation of workday spending. 

 Based on the Applicant’s pro forma cash flows, taxable 
purchases directly by the facility, or by the catering management 
business (food, beverage), are projected, with 75% of the 
purchases in Yonkers and paying 4.5% sales tax to the City.  

  

Table 5 

Sales Tax Revenue from Project Construction and Operation
On-Site Construction Worker Spending, Construction Period Only (75% Taxable)
Construction Worker Per Diem, $50 for 16,160 workdays $807,987
Taxable Spending by Construction Workers 605,991
4.5% Sales Tax Retained by City of Yonkers $27,270

On-Site Worker Spending over 15 Years (100% in Yonkers, 75% Taxable)
12 Full-Time Worker Per Diem, $25 for 245 annual workdays $1,025,266
4.5% Sales Tax Retained by City of Yonkers over 15 Years 46,137
Present Value of Annual Tax over 15 Years $36,126

Facility Operations, Taxable Purchases over 15 Years (75% in Yonkers)
Estimated Value of Taxable Purchases $53,422,770
Taxable Purchases Made in Yonkers $40,067,077
4.5% Sales Tax Retained by City of Yonkers over 15 Years 1,803,018
Present Value of Annual Tax over 15 Years 1,409,509

Sales Taxes from Operations over 15 Years $1,445,634

Present Value discount rate is 3%.



STORRS ASSOCIATES FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AND IMPACT ANALYSIS OF THE PLANT MANOR PROJECT, YONKERS IDA   6 | PAGE 
 

FISCAL BENEFITS AND COSTS 
FISCAL BENEFIT / COST RATIO 

A ratio of tax benefits to foregone tax revenue, or savings to the 
Project, can help evaluate the effects of both the Project and the 
financial assistance. This is a hypothetical analysis only, as without 
the requested financial assistance the Project would not be built.  

 

 

 

 

New York State requires Industrial Development Agencies to 
conduct a cost/benefit analysis but does not establish a ratio or 
benchmark. Storrs Associates calculates a benefit/cost ratio that 
the Agency can use to compare similar projects over time, and to 
understand how the Project affects different jurisdictions. 

  
Table 6 

Estimated Fiscal Benefits and Costs of Financial Assistance in Yonkers

Fiscal Benefits  City of Yonkers
Yonkers School 

District
Total Effects in 

Yonkers Table Reference
One-time Sales Tax Revenue from Construction Materials Purchase $1,013,396 $0 $1,013,396 Table 2
One-time Sales Tax Revenue from Construction Labor Per Diem 27,270 0 27,270 Table 5
Sales Tax Revenue from On-Site Employee Per Diem, Present Value 36,126 0 36,126 Table 5
Sales Tax Revenue from Purchases for Operations, Present Value 1,409,509 0 1,409,509 Table 5
Mortgage Recording Tax 77,960 0 77,960 Table 5
Property Tax Revenue from Project if No PILOT is Awarded 2,349,627 4,843,132 7,192,759 Tables 11 - 14

Total Fiscal Benefits $4,913,887 $4,843,132 $9,757,019

Fiscal Costs (Foregone Revenue)
Foregone One-Time Sales Tax on Construction Materials Sales ($1,013,396) $0 ($1,013,396) Table 2
Foregone One-Time Mortgage Recording Tax (77,960) 0 (77,960) Table 2
Foregone Property Tax Revenue, Present Value (Exemption) (869,853) (1,792,970) (2,662,823) Tables 11 - 14

Total Costs of Financial Assistance ($1,961,209) ($1,792,970) ($3,754,179)

Benefit to Cost Ratios 2.51 2.70 2.60
Net Fiscal Benefit $2,952,679 $3,050,162 $6,002,841



STORRS ASSOCIATES FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AND IMPACT ANALYSIS OF THE PLANT MANOR PROJECT, YONKERS IDA   7 | PAGE 
 

PROJECT OPERATIONS 
OPERATING SNAPSHOT AT PILOT YEAR 5 

The fifth year of operations is used to create a snapshot of Project 
performance. Storrs Associates researched but was not able to 
obtain performance benchmarks for this type of facility. This is not 
unexpected, as event and conference centers, particularly with a 
small lodging component, are each unique in terms of location, 
customers, services, and costs charged to customers. 

The Applicant provided clear, detailed operating information for 
the full PILOT period. The following factors were reviewed and 
found to be reasonable: 

 A five year ramp-up period to full operation, as the facility is 
completed and begins to attract more meetings and 
conferences. 

 After stabilization, the Applicant expects income to increase at 
an average rate of 3.16% per year. Operating expenses are 
expected to increase at a slightly lower average rate of 2.70% 
per year, and debt service is fixed. These projections indicate 
continued operations and increased profitability as fixed 
expense (debt service) declines as a percentage of income, 
improving annual cash flow even as the PILOT payments 
increase each year.7 

 
7 Storrs Associates flags projects where expenses increase faster than 
income as potentially non-feasible over the long term and notifies the 
Agency of concerns. Here, where expenses are expected to grow more 
slowly than revenues, the Applicant may experience lower net cashflows 
if expenses actually increase faster but the costs cannot be passed 

 Net Operating Income (NOI) as a percent of Effective Gross 
Income (EGI) is negative even with stabilization if no PILOT is 
awarded, indicating annual cash losses. With the PILOT, NOI is 
3% of EGI in the fifth year. 

 

  

through to customers. However, this is an operating risk for all projects 
and reflects ordinary uncertainty when making long-term projections, 
rather than an expectation of declining financial performance at the 
outset, which could be of concern. 

Table 7 

Comparison of Operating Results, Stabilization in Year 5
15 Year PILOT No PILOT

Net Operating Income
Gross Operating Income after Vacancy $12,321,570 $12,321,570
Less: Operating Expenses ($7,917,127) ($8,414,517)
  Non-Tax Operating Expenses and Reserve (7,640,101) (7,640,101)
  Real Property Tax Expense (277,026) (774,416)
Net Operating Income (NOI) $4,404,443 $3,907,053

Net Income after Debt Service
Debt Service ($4,069,115) ($4,069,115)
Net Operating Income after Debt Service $335,329 ($162,062)

NOI after Debt Service as a % of EGI 3% -1%
Non-Tax Operating Expenses as a % of EGI 62% 62%
Real Property Tax Expense as a % of EGI 2% 6%



STORRS ASSOCIATES FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AND IMPACT ANALYSIS OF THE PLANT MANOR PROJECT, YONKERS IDA   8 | PAGE 
 

FINANCING PLAN 
CAPITAL STRUCTURE 

The Applicant expects to fund construction with a combination of 
debt, State and Federal Historic Tax Credits, and equity provided 
directly by the Applicant and by participating investors. The 
Applicant describes participants as philanthropic Impact Investors, 
individuals or funds that accept a reduced financial return in 

exchange for promoting intangible public goods, for example 
environmental goals.  

Storrs Associates researched the investment return expectations 
of philanthropic Impact Investors, as described above in the 
Executive Summary, reviewed the capital structure, and confirmed 
that the Applicant’s return expectations and the terms and costs 
of the long-term debt are reasonable in the current market for this 
type of project. The mortgage applies to the Long Term 
Construction Financing, not the C-PACE loan. 

   

Financing Terms, Long Term Debt
C-PACE Loan
Principal $17,489,018
Term in Years 25
Interest Rate 5.45%
Years of Interest Only 0

Long Term Construction Financing
Principal $18,708,847
Term in Years 30
Interest Rate 3.50%
Years of Interest Only 0

Market Value (NOI/CapRate) after 15 Years
Net Operating Income (NOI) $6,902,199
Capitalization Rate (CapRate) 9.25%
Market Value (NOI/CapRate) $74,618,365
Market Value Exceeds Outstanding Principal

Table 8 
Table 9 

Sources and Uses of Funds
Sources of Funds
Debt Financing Paid by Operations
C-PACE Loan $17,489,018 30%
Long Term Construction Financing 18,708,847 32%

Tax Credits
Federal Historic Tax Credits (Net) $4,544,051 8%
State Historic Tax Credits (Net) 3,800,000 7%

Equity
Direct Developer Equity $11,750,360 20%
Impact Investor Equity 1,719,664 3%
Total Sources $58,011,940 100%

Uses of Funds
Property Acquisition $10,344,366 18%
Hard Costs 31,509,981 54%
Soft Costs 9,832,402 17%
Financing Costs 6,325,191 11%
Total Uses $58,011,940 100%



STORRS ASSOCIATES FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AND IMPACT ANALYSIS OF THE PLANT MANOR PROJECT, YONKERS IDA   9 | PAGE 
 

PILOT ANALYSIS 
NOTES AND DISCLAIMERS: 

This PILOT analysis is an estimate based on currently available 
information, including operating information from the Applicant, 
and the actual Project revenue, assessed value, tax rates, and tax 
obligations may be different. 

If construction is completed in fewer than 24 months and a 
Temporary Certificate of Occupancy (TCO) is issued prior to Year 3, 
the PILOT abatement will begin in that year. 

METHODOLOGY 

1. Calculate the taxes on the current, or Unimproved, value and 
escalate by 1% annually.  

2. Calculate an estimated future/full market value after completion 
of the Project, and estimate taxes using the income approach 
recommended by the city’s Assessor. 

3. Calculate the increase in assessment from the Project and 
create a PILOT schedule that (1) pays taxes only on the 
Unimproved value during construction, and (2) reduces taxes on 
the completed Project by no more than 35% in total when 
measured over the life of the PILOT.  

4. Calculate the savings to the Project from the PILOT, annually and 
over 15 years, discounted to present value. Calculate the 
percent abatement over the PILOT period. 

 

Summary results are presented in Table 10 and Figure 1. Full tables 
follow on the next pages. 

  

Table 10 
Figure 1 

Comparison of Taxes on Full Value of Project, and Project with PILOT
City of Yonkers School District County All Jurisdictions

Taxes without PILOT $2,349,627 $4,843,132 $1,181,649 $8,374,408
Less: PILOT Payments (1,479,775) (3,050,162) (744,192) (5,274,129)

Foregone Revenue $869,853 $1,792,970 $437,457 $3,100,280
Abatement Percent 35% 35% 35% 35%

Net New Taxes Compared with No Project
PILOT Payments $1,479,775 $3,050,162 $744,192 $5,274,129
Less: Taxes without Project (601,689) (1,240,222) (302,595) (2,144,505)

Net New Tax Revenue $878,086 $1,809,940 $441,597 $3,129,623

All taxes are present value with a discount rate of 3%



STORRS ASSOCIATES FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AND IMPACT ANALYSIS OF THE PLANT MANOR PROJECT, YONKERS IDA   10 | PAGE 
 

PILOT and Foregone Revenue, All Jurisdictions 15 Year PILOT, Abatement Cap 35%

PILOT Year

Total 
Estimated 

Taxes without 
PILOT

PILOT 
Payments

Foregone 
Revenue, all 
Jurisdictions

Abatement: 
Reduction from 

Full Taxes

PILOT as a 
Percent of Full 

Taxes
1 168,317$           168,317$           -$                        n/a n/a
2 170,000$           170,000$           -$                        0% 100%
3 759,157$           259,818$           (499,339)$             66% 34%
4 766,749$           262,416$           (504,332)$             66% 34%
5 774,416$           277,026$           (497,390)$             64% 36%
6 782,160$           297,954$           (484,206)$             62% 38%
7 789,982$           362,065$           (427,917)$             54% 46%
8 797,882$           427,428$           (370,454)$             46% 54%
9 805,861$           494,062$           (311,799)$             39% 61%
10 813,919$           561,986$           (251,934)$             31% 69%
11 822,058$           631,219$           (190,840)$             23% 77%
12 830,279$           701,780$           (128,499)$             15% 85%
13 838,582$           773,690$           (64,892)$                8% 92%
14 846,968$           814,197$           (32,770)$                4% 96%
15 855,437$           855,437$           -$                        0% 100%

Total 10,821,767$     7,057,394$        (3,764,373)$          35% 65%
Present Value 8,374,408$        5,274,129$        (3,100,280)$          n/a n/a
Source: Applicant, Storrs Associates. Present Value discount rate is 3.0%.

PILOT and Foregone Revenue, City of Yonkers 15 Year PILOT, Abatement Cap 35%

PILOT Year

Total 
Estimated 

Taxes without 
PILOT PILOT Payments

Foregone 
Revenue, all 
Jurisdictions

Abatement: 
Reduction from 

Full Taxes

PILOT as a 
Percent of Full 

Taxes
1 47,225$             47,225$                 -$                        n/a n/a
2 47,697$             47,697$                 -$                        0% 100%
3 212,999$           72,898$                 (140,101)$             66% 34%
4 215,128$           73,627$                 (141,502)$             66% 34%
5 217,280$           77,726$                 (139,554)$             64% 36%
6 219,453$           83,598$                 (135,855)$             62% 38%
7 221,647$           101,585$               (120,062)$             54% 46%
8 223,864$           119,924$               (103,939)$             46% 54%
9 226,102$           138,620$               (87,482)$                39% 61%
10 228,363$           157,678$               (70,686)$                31% 69%
11 230,647$           177,103$               (53,544)$                23% 77%
12 232,953$           196,900$               (36,053)$                15% 85%
13 235,283$           217,076$               (18,207)$                8% 92%
14 237,636$           228,441$               (9,194)$                  4% 96%
15 240,012$           240,012$               -$                        0% 100%

Total 3,036,288$        1,980,110$            (1,056,179)$          35% 65%
Present Value 2,349,627$        1,479,775$            (869,853)$             n/a n/a
Source: Applicant, Storrs Associates. Present Value discount rate is 3.0%.

Table 11 Table 12 



STORRS ASSOCIATES FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AND IMPACT ANALYSIS OF THE PLANT MANOR PROJECT, YONKERS IDA   11 | PAGE 
 

  

PILOT and Foregone Revenue, Yonkers School District 15 Year PILOT, Abatement Cap 35%

PILOT Year

Total 
Estimated 

Taxes without 
PILOT PILOT Payments

Foregone 
Revenue, all 
Jurisdictions

Abatement: 
Reduction from 

Full Taxes

PILOT as a 
Percent of Full 

Taxes
1 97,342$             97,342$                 -$                        n/a n/a
2 98,315$             98,315$                 -$                        0% 100%
3 439,040$           150,259$               (288,780)$             66% 34%
4 443,430$           151,762$               (291,668)$             66% 34%
5 447,864$           160,211$               (287,653)$             64% 36%
6 452,343$           172,314$               (280,029)$             62% 38%
7 456,867$           209,391$               (247,475)$             54% 46%
8 461,435$           247,192$               (214,243)$             46% 54%
9 466,050$           285,728$               (180,321)$             39% 61%
10 470,710$           325,011$               (145,700)$             31% 69%
11 475,417$           365,050$               (110,367)$             23% 77%
12 480,171$           405,857$               (74,314)$                15% 85%
13 484,973$           447,444$               (37,529)$                8% 92%
14 489,823$           470,871$               (18,952)$                4% 96%
15 494,721$           494,721$               -$                        0% 100%

Total 6,258,501$        4,081,469$            (2,177,032)$          35% 65%
Present Value 4,843,132$        3,050,162$            (1,792,970)$          n/a n/a
Source: Applicant, Storrs Associates. Present Value discount rate is 3.0%.

PILOT and Foregone Revenue, Westchester County 15 Year PILOT, Abatement Cap 35%

PILOT Year

Total 
Estimated 

Taxes without 
PILOT PILOT Payments

Foregone 
Revenue, all 
Jurisdictions

Abatement: 
Reduction from 

Full Taxes

PILOT as a 
Percent of Full 

Taxes
1 23,750$             23,750$                 -$                        n/a n/a
2 23,987$             23,987$                 -$                        0% 100%
3 107,119$           36,661$                 (70,458)$                66% 34%
4 108,190$           37,028$                 (71,162)$                66% 34%
5 109,272$           39,089$                 (70,183)$                64% 36%
6 110,365$           42,042$                 (68,323)$                62% 38%
7 111,468$           51,088$                 (60,380)$                54% 46%
8 112,583$           60,311$                 (52,272)$                46% 54%
9 113,709$           69,713$                 (43,996)$                39% 61%
10 114,846$           79,298$                 (35,548)$                31% 69%
11 115,994$           89,066$                 (26,928)$                23% 77%
12 117,154$           99,023$                 (18,131)$                15% 85%
13 118,326$           109,169$               (9,156)$                  8% 92%
14 119,509$           114,885$               (4,624)$                  4% 96%
15 120,704$           120,704$               -$                        0% 100%

Total 1,526,977$        995,815$               (531,162)$             35% 65%
Present Value 1,181,649$        744,192$               (437,457)$             n/a n/a
Source: Applicant, Storrs Associates. Present Value discount rate is 3.0%.

Table 14 Table 13 



STORRS ASSOCIATES FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AND IMPACT ANALYSIS OF THE PLANT MANOR PROJECT, YONKERS IDA   12 | PAGE 
 

ABOUT THIS REPORT 
SCOPE OF SERVICES - FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AND IMPACT 

ANALYSIS 

The purpose of the report is to provide a consistent, accurate, and 
reliable analysis of a proposed project that has asked the Agency 
for financial assistance. The three basic components are: 

1. Evaluate the capital structure, operating assumptions, and 
financial performance of the Project, calculate return on 
investment, and provide an opinion on whether the 
requested financial assistance is necessary and 
reasonable. This includes drafting a PILOT schedule for the 
Agency’s approval. 

2. Estimate the economic impact of construction, ongoing 
project operations, and household spending using jobs, 
labor income, and contribution to the Gross Regional 
Product (GRP) of the City of Yonkers. 

3. Create a benefit/cost analysis that compares new tax 
revenue resulting from the Project with the costs of the 
financial assistance. 

DATA SOURCES 
DEMOGRAPHIC AND HOUSING INFORMATION  

(Used where applicable) Esri is an 
internationally-recognized provider of 
Geographic Information Systems (GIS) and 

demographic  data and visualization tools. Esri’s demographic data 
is gathered from the U.S. Census, the Bureau of Labor Statistics, 

and Bureau of Economic Analysis. Esri uses current and historical 
data to create estimates of future demographic characteristics. 
Any estimates used by Storrs Associates are clearly labeled as 
such. 

ECONOMIC IMPACT  

IMPLAN is a regional economic analysis 
software application that is designed to 
estimate the impact or ripple effect 
(specifically backward linkages) of a given 

economic activity within a specific geographic area through the 
implementation of its Input-Output model. Studies, results, and 
reports that rely on IMPLAN data or applications are limited by the 
researcher’s assumptions concerning the subject or event being 
modeled. Studies such as this one are in no way endorsed or 
verified by IMPLAN Group, LLC unless otherwise stated by a 
representative of IMPLAN. IMPLAN® model, 2022 Data, using 
inputs provided by the user and IMPLAN Group LLC, IMPLAN 
System (data and software), 16905 Northcross Dr., Suite 120, 
Huntersville, NC 28078 www.IMPLAN.com.  

MARKET BENCHMARKS AND TRENDS  

RealtyRates.com™ is a comprehensive 
resource of real estate investment and development news, trends, 
analytics, and market research that support real estate 
professionals involved with more than 50 income producing and 
sell-out property types throughout the U.S. RealtyRates.com™ is 
the publisher of the award-winning Investor, Developer and 
Market Surveys, providing data essential to the appraisal, 
evaluation, disposition and marketing of investment and 
development real estate nationwide. 



STORRS ASSOCIATES FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE AND IMPACT ANALYSIS OF THE PLANT MANOR PROJECT, YONKERS IDA   13 | PAGE 
 

ABOUT STORRS ASSOCIATES 
Storrs Associates, LLC is a partner and advisor to public and private 
entities seeking to encourage economic growth and to make direct 
public and private investments. We deliver client-driven, high 
quality advice, customized analyses and reports, public speaking 
and learning sessions, and transaction management. Victoria 
Storrs, the company President, founded the firm in 2021 to provide 
direct, responsive service to municipal governments and the public 
and private organizations who work with and for them.  She has 
worked with municipal governments for more than 20 years, 
beginning as an investment banker at First Albany Corporation and 
managing debt financings for state public authorities. She taught 
money and capital markets at the State University of New York at 
Albany School of Business, and has been a development finance 
and economic development consultant for more than seven years, 
including five years at Camoin Associates of Saratoga Springs, NY, 
where she became the firm’s first Development Finance Practice 
Leader.  

Storrs Associates, LLC is located in Albany County, NY, and serves 
clients throughout New York and the Northeast. Learn more at 
www.storrsassociates.com and on LinkedIn. 

 

This report was prepared by Victoria Storrs, President and 
Founder. 

Vstorrs@storrsassociates.com 

(518) 512-9537 

 

 

 

 

 

Terms of Use 

This report was created for the Yonkers Industrial Development 
Agency, for its sole and exclusive use, which includes publication 
by the Agency in connection with its review of a project’s request 
for financial assistance.  

This report and the data generated may not be reproduced in any 
form or manner without attribution to Storrs Associates, LLC.

Storrs Associates, LLC is not a registered Municipal Advisor and does not provide advice regarding capital markets or publicly financed debt. 

http://www.storrsassociates.com/
https://www.linkedin.com/in/victoriastorrs/


 

 

PREPARED BY STORRS ASSOCIATES, LLC FOR  

THE YONKERS INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT AGENCY 

(518) 512-9537  •  VStorrs@StorrsAssociates.com 

Expert, Reliable Advice & Research for Economic Development 



YONKERS PROPERTY MANAGEMENT LLC 
969A Midland Ave 



RESOLUTION 
(Increase Sales and Use Tax Exemption – Yonkers Property Management LLC) 

 
 A regular meeting of the City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency was convened 
on September 13, 2022.  The following resolution was duly offered and seconded, to wit: 

 
Resolution No. 09/2022 - 13 

 
RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF YONKERS INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY (THE “AGENCY”) AUTHORIZING (i) AN INCREASE IN THE 
SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION BENEFITS APPROVED FOR 
YONKERS PROPERTY MANAGEMENT LLC IN CONNECTION WITH A 
CERTAIN PROJECT UNDERTAKEN BY THE COMPANY, AS AGENT OF 
THE AGENCY; AND (ii) THE EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF 
DOCUMENTS NECESSARY TO EFFECTUATE THE FOREGOING 

 
WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of 

New York, as amended, and Chapter 83 of the Laws of 1982 of the State of New York, as 
amended (hereinafter collectively called the “Act”), CITY OF YONKERS INDUSTRIAL 
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (hereinafter called the “Agency”) was created with the authority 
and power to own, lease and sell property for the purpose of, among other things, acquiring, 
constructing and equipping civic, industrial, manufacturing and commercial facilities as 
authorized by the Act; and 
 

WHEREAS, by resolutions previously adopted by the Agency on October 29, 2019, the 
Agency appointed YONKERS PROPERTY MANAGEMENT LLC (as assignee of Yonkers 
Contracting Company Inc., which is the successor by merger of Yonkers Property Management 
of New York, Inc.) the (“Company”) the true and lawful agent of the Agency to undertake a 
certain project (the “Project”) consisting of: (i) the acquisition or retention of certain land located 
at 969A Midland Avenue, City of Yonkers, New York (Block 5059, Lots 20, 90, 116 & 120) 
(collectively, the “Land”) and the existing improvements located thereon consisting principally 
of four small metal buildings used for garage storage and vehicle workshops (collectively, the 
“Existing Improvements”); (ii) the construction, reconstruction, renovation and refurbishment of 
the Existing Improvements consisting of a:  (a) new office building and (b) a new maintenance 
shop and supply buildings (collectively, the “Improvements”); and (iii) the acquisition and 
installation in and around the Existing Improvements and Improvements of certain items of 
equipment and other tangible personal property (the “Equipment”; and, collectively with the 
Land, the Existing Improvements and the Improvements, the “Facility”); and 

 
 WHEREAS, in connection with the Project and to effectuate the agent status of the 
Company, the Agency (i) executed, among other things, certain sales and use tax exemption 
documents and a related NYS Form ST-60, “IDA Appointment of Project Operator or Agent”, 
expiring December 31, 2022 as extended and amended from time to time, and (ii) authorized an 
exemption from New York State and local sales and use tax for goods and services purchased 
and/or rented in connection with the Project in an amount of up to $164,187.50; and 
 

DRAFT 



YIDA Resolution No. 09/2022- 13 
Resolution – Increase Sales and Use Tax Exemption – Yonkers Property Management LLC 
September 13, 2022 
TC: Harris Beach PLLC 
 

2 
 

WHEREAS, the Agency has previously granted the Company one-year extension(s) of 
the expiration date of the Company’s project operator or agent status; and 

 
WHEREAS, by letter dated August 30, 2022, attached hereto as Exhibit A,  the Company 

informed the Agency that due to continuing project delays,  increased materials costs, and supply 
chain inefficiencies related to the continuing effects of the COVID-19 Pandemic, and project 
enhancements that will better serve the needs of the Company, an increase of financial assistance 
in the form of additional sales and use tax exemption amount of $349,812.50 (from $164,187.50 
to $514,000.00) is warranted (the “Company Request”); and 

 
WHEREAS, the Company Request is necessary to complete the Project; and  
 
WHEREAS, once completed, the Company projects that the Project will create or retain 

ten (10) full time equivalent jobs; and  
 

WHEREAS, the Agency desires to (i) increase the authorized sales and use tax 
exemption amount by $349,812.50 (from $164,187.50 to $514,000.00) in furtherance of the 
Project, and (ii) authorize the execution and delivery of certain sales tax exemption documents 
reflecting such increase and a related NYS Form ST-60 to effectuate the foregoing; and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the New York State Environmental Quality Review Act, Article 

8 of the Environmental Conservation Law and the regulations adopted pursuant thereto at 6 
N.Y.C.R.R. Part 617, as amended (collectively referred to as “SEQRA”), the Agency must 
satisfy the applicable requirements set forth in SEQRA, as necessary, prior to making a final 
determination whether to provide the Financial Assistance. 

  
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the Agency (a majority of the members 

thereof affirmatively concurring) as follows: 
  

Section 1. The Agency finds that the proposed action and the providing of the 
Financial Assistance to the Company in connection with the Project constitutes a “Type II 
action” pursuant to 6 N.Y.C.R.R. § 617.5 and therefore is exempt from review under SEQRA. 

 
Section 2. The Chair of the Agency is hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to 

execute and deliver any and all documents necessary to provide the Company with an increase in 
sales and use tax exemption benefits by $349,812.50 (from $164,187.50 to $514,000.00) in 
furtherance of the continuation of the Project in a timely manner. 

 
Section 3. Based upon the representation and warranties made by the Company in the 

Company Request and initial application to the Agency for Financial Assistance, the Agency 
hereby authorizes and approves the Company, as its agent, to make purchases of goods and 
services relating to the Project and that would otherwise be subject to New York State and local 
sales and use tax with respect to the Financial Assistance in an amount up to approximately 
$349,812.50, which will result in New York State and local sales and use tax exemption benefits 
in an amount not to exceed $514,000.00.  The Agency agrees to consider any additional requests 



YIDA Resolution No. 09/2022- 13 
Resolution – Increase Sales and Use Tax Exemption – Yonkers Property Management LLC 
September 13, 2022 
TC: Harris Beach PLLC 
 

3 
 

by the Company for increase to the amount of sales and use tax exemption benefits authorized by 
the Agency upon being provided with appropriate documentation detailing the additional 
purchases of property or services, and, to the extent required, the Agency authorizes and 
conducts any supplemental public hearing(s). 

 
Section 4. Pursuant to Section 875(3) of the Act, the Agency may recover or 

recapture from the Company, its agents, consultants, subcontractors, or any other party 
authorized to make purchases for the benefit of the Project, any sales and use tax exemption 
benefits taken or purported to be taken by the Company, its agents, consultants, subcontractors, 
or any other party authorized to make purchases for the benefit of the Project, if it is determined 
that: (i) the Company, its agents, consultants, subcontractors, or any other party authorized to 
make purchases for the benefit of the Project, is not entitled to the sales and use tax exemption 
benefits; (ii) the sales and use tax exemption benefits are in excess of the amounts authorized to 
be taken by the Company, its agents, consultants, subcontractors, or any other party authorized to 
make purchases for the benefit of the Project; (iii) the sales and use tax exemption benefits are 
for property or services not authorized by the Agency as part of the Project; (iv) the Company 
has made a material false statement on its application for financial assistance; (v) the sales and 
use tax exemption benefits are taken in cases where the Company, its agents, consultants, 
subcontractors, or any other party authorized to make purchases for the benefit of the Project 
fails to comply with a material term or condition to use property or services in the manner 
approved by the Agency in connection with the Project; and/or (vi) the Company obtains 
mortgage recording tax benefits and/or real property tax abatements and fails to comply with a 
material term or condition to use property or services in the manner approved by the Agency in 
connection with the Project (collectively, items (i) through (vi) are hereby defined as a 
“Recapture Event”). 

 
As a condition precedent of receiving sales and use tax exemption benefits, the Company, 

its agents, consultants, subcontractors, or any other party authorized to make purchases for the 
benefit of the Project, must (i) if a Recapture Event determination is made by the Agency, 
cooperate with the Agency in its efforts to recover or recapture any sales and use tax exemption 
benefits, and (ii) promptly pay over any such amounts to the Agency that the Agency demands, if 
and as so required to be paid over as determined by the Agency. 
 
 Section 5. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized 
and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required 
and to execute and deliver all such certificates, instruments and documents, to pay all such fees, 
charges and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may be necessary or, in the 
opinion of the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable and proper to effect the purposes of 
the foregoing resolutions and to cause compliance by the Agency with all of the terms, covenants 
and provisions of the documents executed for and on behalf of the Agency. 
 

Section 6. These Resolutions shall take effect immediately. 
 



YIDA Resolution No. 09/2022- 13 
Resolution – Increase Sales and Use Tax Exemption – Yonkers Property Management LLC 
September 13, 2022 
TC: Harris Beach PLLC 
 

4 
 

The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on roll 
call, which resulted as follows: 
 
Mayor Mike Spano   [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 
Marlyn Anderson  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 
Melissa Nacerino  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 
Hon. Cecile D. Singer  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 
Henry Djonbalaj  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 
Roberto Espiritu  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 
  
 The Resolution was thereupon duly adopted. 
 
 
  
  



YIDA Resolution No. 09/2022- 13 
Resolution – Increase Sales and Use Tax Exemption – Yonkers Property Management LLC 
September 13, 2022 
TC: Harris Beach PLLC 
 

5 
 

CERTIFICATION 
(Increase Sales and Use Tax Exemption – Yonkers Property Management LLC) 

 
STATE OF NEW YORK  ) 
COUNTY OF WESTCHESTER ) ss.: 
 

I, MARLYN ANDERSON, the undersigned Secretary of the City of Yonkers Industrial 
Development Agency DO HEREBY CERTIFY: 
 

That I have compared the annexed extract of minutes of the meeting of the City of 
Yonkers Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”), including the resolution contained 
therein, held on September 13, 2022, with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the 
same is a true and correct copy of the proceedings of the Agency and of such resolution set forth 
therein and of the whole of said original insofar as the same related to the subject matters therein 
referred to. 
 

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that all members of said Agency had due notice of said meeting, 
that the meeting was in all respects duly held and that, pursuant to Article 7 of the Public 
Officers Law (Open Meetings Law), said meeting was open to the general public, and that public 
notice of the time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with Article 7. 

 
I FURTHER CERTIFY, that there was a quorum of the members of the Agency present 

throughout said meeting. 
 

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that as of the date hereof, the attached resolution is in full force 
and effect and has not been amended, repealed or modified. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of said 
Agency this ____ day of September, 2022. 
 
 
 
              
        Marlyn Anderson, Secretary 

 
 



D□D 
□ Yonkers Contracting Company, Inc. 

Building Quality for Over 70 Years 

August 30, 2022 

Fiona Rodriguez 
Yonkers Industrial Development Agency 
470 Nepperhan Avenue, Suite 200 

Yonkers, NY 10701 

RE: 969A Midland Avenue 

Yonkers, NY 10704 

Dear Fiona: 

969 Midland Avenue Yonkers, NY 10704 Tel 914.965.1500 

The Project referenced was expected to start in 2019 and be completed by the end of 2019. It did not 

start in earnest until sometime in late 2021. The original estimated cost was $2,500,000 with a sales tax 

exemption estimate of $180,000. Several things occurred since 2019, however, that have impacted the 

project's completion date and cost. First, the COVID pandemic hit, which impacted both the approval 

process, the ability to commence work and the workflow itself. Because of these impediments, the 

timing of work went well beyond the original term anticipated. In addition, once work commenced, 

material costs were significantly higher due to supply chain inefficiencies and other general economic 

developments that resulted from the pandemic and that persist through 2022 . Finally, the Project was 

enhanced to better serve the business needs and includes two new pre-engineered metal buildings 

which will have offices for personnel, space for equipment repair and storage for small tools and 

materials. The development included site, drainage and lighting improvements as well as a private 

refueling station and parking improvements. The first building includes an office/ break room, a shower 

and locker area for employees and six truck bays. The second building will include a small office, a tool 

shop with supplies and storage and a steam cleaning equipment area. The new estimate of cost will 

exceed $6 million. For all these reasons cited, we seek an increase in the sales tax exemption cap by 

$350,000 at this time to approximately $514,000. At this moment the project is close to substantial 
completion. 

Any questions do not hesitate to contact me. Thank you for your assistance 

Very Truly Yours, 

Chief Financial Officer 



 

 

   

(518) 512-9537  •  VStorrs@StorrsAssociates.com 

Expert, Reliable Advice & Research for Economic Development 

 

 

Memorandum 

To: Yonkers Industrial Development Agency 

Cc: Jaime McGill, Executive Director, Yonkers Industrial Development Agency 

From: Victoria Storrs 

Date: 9/9/2022 

Re: Yonkers Contracting Company Sales Tax Increase Request for 969A Midland Avenue 

Storrs Associates was asked to conduct a brief analysis comparing the estimated fiscal 

outcomes of the financial assistance awarded to 969A Midland Avenue (Project) a warehouse 

and storage facility under construction by Yonkers Contracting Company, Inc., which is 

requesting an increase in its sales tax exemption (STE) for construction materials purchases, 

from $164,188 to $514,000.   

Our analysis concludes that with the requested increase in the STE, the benefit/cost ratio 

within the City of Yonkers, including the Yonkers Public Schools, remains beneficial, providing 

an estimated $2.03 of fiscal benefits for every $1.00 of fiscal costs, or foregone revenue. The 

net benefit is estimated to be $678,328 over the life of the PILOT. 

Benefit/Cost Ratio with Increased STE: $2.03/$1.00, Net Benefit $678,328 

Benefit/Cost ratio with Originally Awarded STE: $2.42/$1.00, Net Benefit $678,3281 

 

 

Original Awarded Increased Sales 

Tax Exemption 

Value of Sales Tax Exemption on 

Construction Materials 

$164,188 $514,000 

Value of Mortgage Recording Tax Exemption $39,375 $39,375 

Value of Real Property Tax Exemption, 

Present Value 

$446,933 $446,933 

Total Value of Exemptions $650,496 $1,000,308 

 

 

1 While the ratio is lower, the net fiscal benefit does not change. This is because the dollar value of the fiscal 

benefits and the fiscal cost (foregone taxes) cancel each other out when calculating the dollar value. The ratio 

changes because it is a weighted calculation based on total benefits and costs. 























969A Midland Avenue 
Narrative Project Description 

Block 5059 Lots 20, 90, 116, & 120 
Yonkers, NY 10704 

 

The property consists of four contiguous parcels of land totaling approximately 
130,000 square feet. Presently, there are four small metal buildings used for 
garage storage and vehicle workshops.   
 
An office building that was on the property, became unusable and was recently 
demolished. Yonkers Contracting Company, Inc., the owner of the property, is 
seeking to replace this space by having a new office building constructed, as well 
as a new maintenance shop and supply buildings.  To create the desired space 
designed to house the equipment department, yard supervision and yard 
personnel, as well as potentially certain other personnel, the Company estimates 
a total cost of approximately $3 million will need to be expended, which includes 
construction period labor of approximately $750,000.  
 
The Company will be seeking a mortgage to finance this entire expenditure. If 
inducements are not provided, it will be economically advantageous for the 
Company to seek an alternative site in a more affordable, less densely populated 
area.  It is estimated that seventeen (17) jobs will be retained in the City of 
Yonkers with salaries approximating $1.6 million if the project is undertaken.  In 
addition to the jobs retained/provided, the attractiveness of the neighborhood 
will be enhanced by the development of a new office building in the area. 
 
 The inducements provided by the Yonkers IDA significantly enhance the 
feasibility of this development project, allowing the Company to (1) construct a 
modern and attractive office building for the neighborhood and (2) to retain, and 
potentially increase the number of jobs in the City of Yonkers.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



WHEELER BLOCK YONKERS LLC 

15-23 North Broadway 



 

 

INDUCEMENT RESOLUTION 
(Wheeler Block Yonkers LLC Project) 

A regular meeting of the City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency was convened in 
public session on September 13, 2022. The following resolution was duly offered and seconded, to 
wit: 

Resolution No. 09/2022 - 14 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF YONKERS INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY ACCEPTING THE APPLICATION OF WHEELER BLOCK 
YONKERS LLC (THE “COMPANY”) WITH RESPECT TO A CERTAIN 
PROJECT (AS DESCRIBED BELOW) AND (ii) AUTHORIZING A PUBLIC 
HEARING WITH RESPECT TO THE PROJECT 

 
WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of New 

York, as amended, and Chapter 83 of the Laws of 1982 of the State of New York, as amended 
(hereinafter collectively called the “Act”), CITY OF YONKERS INDUSTRIAL 
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (hereinafter called the “Agency”) was created with the authority 
and power to own, lease and sell property for the purpose of, among other things, acquiring, 
constructing and equipping civic, industrial, manufacturing and commercial facilities as authorized 
by the Act; and 
 

WHEREAS, WHEELER BLOCK YONKERS LLC, for itself or an entity to be formed 
(the “Company”) has submitted an application (the “Application”) to the Agency requesting the 
Agency’s assistance with a certain project (the “Project”) consisting of: (i) the acquisition or 
retention of the land commonly known as 15, 19 and 23 North Broadway (Section 2, Block 2003, 
Lots 22, 25 and 27) (the “Land”); (ii) the construction, renovation, improving, maintaining and 
equipping on the Land of the existing three, vacant, historic apartment buildings, including 
approximately 36 apartments (24 one-bedroom units and 12 alcove studio units, 5 units will be set 
aside as “HOME” rental units), accessibility improvements, a new residential lobby, and ground 
floor commercial space (the “Improvements”); and (iii) the acquisition and installation in and 
around the Land and Improvements of certain items of equipment and other tangible personal 
property (the “Equipment”, which together with the Land and Improvements are the “Facility”); 
and 

 
WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, the Agency desires to adopt a resolution describing the 

Project, Facility, and the Financial Assistance (as defined below) that the Agency is contemplating 
with respect to the Project; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is contemplated that the Agency will hold a public hearing and (i) negotiate 
and enter into an agent, financial assistance and project agreement, pursuant to which the Agency 
will designate the Company as its agent for the purpose of acquiring, constructing and equipping 
the Project (the “Agent Agreement”), (ii) negotiate and enter into a lease agreement (the “Lease 
Agreement”), leaseback agreement (the “Leaseback Agreement”) and tax agreement (the “Tax 
Agreement”) with the Company, and, if required by the Agency, a Tax Agreement mortgage (the 

DRAFT 



YIDA Resolution No. 09/2022-14 
Inducement Resolution – Wheeler Block Yonkers LLC 
September 13, 2022 
TC: Harris Beach PLLC 
 

Page 2 

“Tax Agreement Mortgage”), (iii) take a leasehold interest in the Land, the Improvements and 
personal property constituting the Project (once the Agent Agreement, Lease Agreement, 
Leaseback Agreement and Tax Agreement (and Tax Agreement Mortgage, if applicable) have 
been negotiated), and (iv) provide financial assistance (as that term is defined in the Act) to the 
Company in the form of (a) a sales and use tax exemption for purchases and rentals related to the 
acquisition, construction and equipping of the Project, (b) a partial real property tax abatement 
structured through the Tax Agreement, and (c) an exemption of State of New York (“State”) and 
local mortgage recording taxes (collectively, the “Financial Assistance”); and  
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE AGENCY AS 
FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. The Company has presented the Application in a form acceptable to the 
Agency.  Based upon the representations made by the Company to the Agency in the Company's 
Application, the Agency hereby finds and determines that: 
 
 (A) By virtue of the Act, the Agency has been vested with all powers necessary and 
convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of the Act and to exercise all 
powers granted to it under the Act; and 
 
 (B) The Agency has the authority to take the actions contemplated herein under the Act; 
and 
 
 (C) The action to be taken by the Agency will induce the Company to develop the 
Project, thereby increasing employment opportunities in the City of Yonkers and otherwise 
furthering the purposes of the Agency as set forth in the Act;  
 
 (D) The Project will not result in the removal of a civic, commercial, industrial, or 
manufacturing plant of the Company or any other proposed occupant of the Project from one area 
of the State to another area of the State or result in the abandonment of one or more plants or 
facilities of the Company or any other proposed occupant of the Project located within the State; 
and the Agency hereby finds that, based on the Company’s application, to the extent occupants are 
relocating from one plant or facility to another, the Project is reasonably necessary to discourage 
the Project occupants from removing such other plant or facility to a location outside the State 
and/or is reasonably necessary to preserve the competitive position of the Project occupants in 
their respective industries. 
 

Section 2. The Chairman, Vice Chairman, President, Executive Director, Secretary 
and/or the CFO are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to (A) hold a public hearing in 
compliance with the Act, and (B) negotiate (1) an Agent Agreement, pursuant to which the Agency 
appoints the Company as its agent to undertake the Project, (2) a Lease Agreement, pursuant to 
which the Company leases the Project to the Agency, (3) a related Leaseback Agreement, pursuant 
to which the Agency leases its interest in the Project back to the Company, (4) a Tax Agreement, 
pursuant to which the Company agrees to make certain payments in lieu of real property taxes for 
the benefit of affected tax jurisdictions, (5) a Tax Agreement Mortgage, and (6) related Project 



YIDA Resolution No. 09/2022-14 
Inducement Resolution – Wheeler Block Yonkers LLC 
September 13, 2022 
TC: Harris Beach PLLC 
 

Page 3 

certificates, instruments, agreements, and documents; provided (i) the rental payments under the 
Leaseback Agreement include payments of all costs incurred by the Agency arising out of or 
related to the Project and Facility and indemnification of the Agency by the Company for actions 
taken by the Company and/or claims arising out of or related to the Project; and (ii) the terms of 
the Tax Agreement is consistent with the Agency's Uniform Tax Exemption Policy or the 
procedures for deviation therefrom have been complied with. 
 

Section 3. The Agency is hereby authorized to conduct a public hearing in compliance 
with the Act. 

 
Section 4. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized 

and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required and 
to execute and deliver all such certificates, instruments and documents, to pay all such fees, charges 
and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may be necessary or, in the opinion of 
the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable and proper to effect the purposes of the foregoing 
resolutions and to cause compliance by the Agency with all of the terms, covenants and provisions 
of the documents executed for and on behalf of the Agency. 
 

Section 5. The Resolution shall take effect immediately. 
 
The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on roll call, 

which resulted as follows: 
 

    Yea  Nay  Abstain Absent 
 

Mayor Mike Spano   [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 
Marlyn Anderson  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 
Melissa Nacerino  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 
Hon. Cecile D. Singer  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 
Henry Djonbalaj  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 
Roberto Espiritu  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 
 

 
 

The Resolution was thereupon duly adopted. 



YIDA Resolution No. 09/2022-14 
Inducement Resolution – Wheeler Block Yonkers LLC 
September 13, 2022 
TC: Harris Beach PLLC 
 

Page 4 

CERTIFICATION 
(Wheeler Block Yonkers LLC Project) 

 
STATE OF NEW YORK  ) 
COUNTY OF WESTCHESTER ) ss.: 
 

I, MARLYN ANDERSON, the undersigned Secretary of the City of Yonkers Industrial 
Development Agency DO HEREBY CERTIFY: 
 

That I have compared the annexed extract of minutes of the meeting of the City of Yonkers 
Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”), including the resolution contained therein, held 
on September 13, 2022, with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the same is a true 
and correct copy of the proceedings of the Agency and of such resolution set forth therein and of 
the whole of said original insofar as the same related to the subject matters therein referred to. 
 

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that all members of said Agency had due notice of said meeting, 
that the meeting was in all respects duly held and that, pursuant to Article 7 of the Public Officers 
Law (Open Meetings Law), said meeting was open to the general public, and that public notice of 
the time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with Article 7. 

 
I FURTHER CERTIFY, that there was a quorum of the members of the Agency present 

throughout said meeting. 
 

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that as of the date hereof, the attached resolution is in full force 
and effect and has not been amended, repealed or modified. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of said Agency 
this ____ day of September, 2022. 
 
 
 
              
        Marlyn Anderson, Secretary 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 



 1 

                                       
 

  PPrroojjeecctt  EEvvaalluuaattiioonn  CCrriitteerriiaa  

 

Date July 27, 2022 

Company Name Wheeler Block Yonkers LLC 

Project Type  New Development       Rehab    Expansion 

 Commercial  

 Industrial  

 Retail  

    Housing:  Senior    Affordable    Market Rate  

 Public Use  

  
 

LLooccaattiioonn 

Address                          15 – 23 North Broadway              

Distressed Area           Yes       No 

Empire Zone               Yes       No 

   Empowerment Zone      Yes     No 

 

 
 

 

AApppprrooxxiimmaattee  PPrroojjeecctt  CCoosstt 

$11,499,623 

  

BBeenneeffiittss  RReeqquueesstteedd 

 Sales Tax Exemption        IRB       MRT Exemption       Real Property Agreement 

 

  

PPrroojjeecctt  PPuurrppoossee 

 Job Creation 

 Job Retention 

 Community Development 

 Quality of Life 

 Regionally Significant 

 Development that will attract other investment 

 

 



 2 

 

 

 

                                    
 

        PPrroojjeecctt  EEvvaalluuaattiioonn  CCrriitteerriiaa 
 

DDeessccrriibbee  BBeellooww  IIDDAA  JJuussttiiffiiccaattiioonn  ffoorr  IInndduucciinngg  PPrroojjeecctt::  

 
Description to address one or more of the following concepts 

  

(a) The economic need for the City of Yonkers (“City”) to have the applicant remain in or locate 
within the City; 

(b) The economic, charitable, cultural or other contribution that the applicant will provide to the 
City and its residents if the application is granted; 

(c)  The extent to which receiving IDA benefits adds to the viability of the applicant concerning any 

activities within the City; 

(d) The extent to which granting the application will improve the quality of life to residents in the 
City; and 

(e)    The extent to which granting the application will complement existing business development in the 

   City. 
 

       Wheeler Block Lofts comprises of three contiguous historic buildings located at 15-23 (not including 16 N 

Broadway) that represent a significant part of the landscape of North Broadway and the Mill Street Courtyard. 
In creating the Wheeler Block Lofts, we will be combining the interiors into a singular building creating 

corridors that will run through 15 to 23 North Broadway providing elevator access to a new residential lobby 
located within 23 N Broadway, each building have handicap accessibility, with ground floor commercial space, 

and three floors of residential above. The residential portion will contain thirty six (36) apartments, of which 

twenty-four (24) will be one-bedroom apartments, and twelve (12) will be alcove studios. As outline by the 
recent HOME guidelines for ‘major’ rehabilitation projects, we will be holding aside five (5) units for tenants 

that qualify for “HOME” rents. One (1) One Bedroom will be held aside for ‘Low’ HOME rent, three (3) One 
Bedrooms will be held aside for ‘High’ HOME rent, and one (1) studio will be held aside at the ‘High’ HOME 

rent. 
      We will be retrofitting the, just over 125 year old, building to bring all major Building components up to 

current standards and codes, including accessibility and fire safety. In addition, we have received the State 

Historic Preservation Office’s Approval to restore the facades of the property, and combine the interior, without 
disturbing the original integrity of the historic design and district. We current have plans submitted for our 

exterior restoration project, and intent to start the work when permits are available, and, when we have 
finalized agreements with the city and state.  

      Assuming that the RNY board is willing and able to establish a Grant Disbursement Agreement, we intent 

to commence the interior work in the Fall of 2022. We anticipate that the project will take roughly 13 months 
form the start of the interior fit out, to complete and be ready for lease-up by late-spring, mid-Summer 2023.  

     Vacant property that lay dormant for decades is not only an eyesore, but presents hardships on the 
community and ownership. The past few years have brought forth many hardships, creating hurdles that 

seemed impossible overcome. Our partnership assisted the prior sole-owners and now our partners, the Ayuso 
Family, with jumping each hurdle and reaching this moment. The project will benefit the City and specifically 

the community in many ways including: 

 Continuation of efforts of the City to revitalize the area 

 Restore currently underutilized, vacant, dilapidated properties back to their historical significance; 

reinvigorating the Downtown Yonkers area which makes up an important component of the landscape 
of the historic Mill Street Courtyard 

 Create new housing stock and retail presence, which will serve mixed income, working class residents 

 



 3 

and renters that complies with accessibility, health and safety requirements of today. 

 Create local jobs, business, and income for the City and State, through construction phase and on 
ongoing commercial and residential activities at the property following completion.  

 

 











































WY Manor LP 

354 and 358 Nepperhan Avenue 



 

 

INDUCEMENT RESOLUTION 
(WY Manor LP Project) 

A regular meeting of the City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency was convened in 
public session on September 13, 2022. The following resolution was duly offered and seconded, to 
wit: 

Resolution No. 09/2022 -15 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF YONKERS INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY ACCEPTING THE APPLICATION OF WY MANOR LP (THE 
“COMPANY”) WITH RESPECT TO A CERTAIN PROJECT (AS DESCRIBED 
BELOW) AND (ii) AUTHORIZING A PUBLIC HEARING WITH RESPECT TO 
THE PROJECT 

WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of New 
York, as amended, and Chapter 83 of the Laws of 1982 of the State of New York, as amended 
(hereinafter collectively called the “Act”), CITY OF YONKERS INDUSTRIAL 
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (hereinafter called the “Agency”) was created with the authority 
and power to own, lease and sell property for the purpose of, among other things, acquiring, 
constructing and equipping civic, industrial, manufacturing and commercial facilities as authorized 
by the Act; ands 

WHEREAS, WY MANOR LP, for itself or an entity to be formed (the “Company”) has 
submitted an application (the “Application”) to the Agency requesting the Agency’s assistance 
with a certain project (the “Project”) consisting of: (i) the acquisition or retention of the land 
commonly known as 354 and 358 Nepperhan Avenue (being a portion of the property identified 
as Section 2, Block 2067, Lot 100) (the “Land”) and the existing improvements thereon consisting 
of two 12-story buildings containing 195 residential units (32 studio, 34 one-bedroom, 60 two-
bedroom, 54 three-bedroom and 15 four-bedroom units), and a single-story building containing a 
community facility, daycare, and commercial space (the “Improvements”); (ii) the renovation, 
modernization and upgrading of such buildings; and (iii) the acquisition and installation in and 
around the Land and Improvements of certain items of equipment and other tangible personal 
property (the “Equipment”, which together with the Land and Improvements are the “Facility”); 
and 

 WHEREAS, the Facility was first renovated and modernized with the assistance of the 
Agency, in 2006, as part of a larger project; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, the Agency desires to adopt a resolution describing the 
Project, Facility, and the Financial Assistance (as defined below) that the Agency is contemplating 
with respect to the Project; and 

WHEREAS, it is contemplated that the Agency will hold a public hearing and (i) negotiate 
and enter into an agent, financial assistance and project agreement, pursuant to which the Agency 
will designate the Company as its agent for the purpose of acquiring, constructing and equipping 
the Project (the “Agent Agreement”), (ii) negotiate and enter into a lease agreement (the “Lease 

DRAFT 



YIDA Resolution No. 09/2022-15 
Inducement Resolution – WY Manor LP 
September 13, 2022 
TC: Harris Beach PLLC 
 

Page 2 

Agreement”), leaseback agreement (the “Leaseback Agreement”) and tax agreement (the “Tax 
Agreement”) with the Company, and, if required by the Agency, a Tax Agreement mortgage (the 
“Tax Agreement Mortgage”), (iii) take a leasehold interest in the Land, the Improvements and 
personal property constituting the Project (once the Agent Agreement, Lease Agreement, 
Leaseback Agreement and Tax Agreement (and Tax Agreement Mortgage, if applicable) have 
been negotiated), and (iv) provide financial assistance (as that term is defined in the Act) to the 
Company in the form of (a) a sales and use tax exemption for purchases and rentals related to the 
acquisition, construction and equipping of the Project, (b) a partial real property tax abatement 
structured through the Tax Agreement, and (c) an exemption of State of New York (“State”) and 
local mortgage recording taxes (collectively, the “Financial Assistance”); and  

WHEREAS, in order to assist in financing the Project, the YONKERS ECONOMIC 
DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION adopted a resolution on September 13, 2022, authorizing 
the assignment of all or a portion of the Agency's private activity bond volume cap allocation from 
the State of New York (the “Assignment of Volume Cap”) in the amount of up to $40,000,000. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE AGENCY AS 
FOLLOWS: 

Section 1. The Company has presented the Application in a form acceptable to the 
Agency.  Based upon the representations made by the Company to the Agency in the Company's 
Application, the Agency hereby finds and determines that: 

 (A) By virtue of the Act, the Agency has been vested with all powers necessary and 
convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of the Act and to exercise all 
powers granted to it under the Act; and 

 (B) The Agency has the authority to take the actions contemplated herein under the Act; 
and 

 (C) The action to be taken by the Agency will induce the Company to develop the 
Project, thereby increasing employment opportunities in the City of Yonkers and otherwise 
furthering the purposes of the Agency as set forth in the Act;  

 (D) The Project will not result in the removal of a civic, commercial, industrial, or 
manufacturing plant of the Company or any other proposed occupant of the Project from one area 
of the State to another area of the State or result in the abandonment of one or more plants or 
facilities of the Company or any other proposed occupant of the Project located within the State; 
and the Agency hereby finds that, based on the Company’s application, to the extent occupants are 
relocating from one plant or facility to another, the Project is reasonably necessary to discourage 
the Project occupants from removing such other plant or facility to a location outside the State 
and/or is reasonably necessary to preserve the competitive position of the Project occupants in 
their respective industries. 

Section 2. The Chairman, Vice Chairman, President, Executive Director, Secretary 
and/or the CFO are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to (A) hold a public hearing in 



YIDA Resolution No. 09/2022-15 
Inducement Resolution – WY Manor LP 
September 13, 2022 
TC: Harris Beach PLLC 
 

Page 3 

compliance with the Act, and (B) negotiate (1) an Agent Agreement, pursuant to which the Agency 
appoints the Company as its agent to undertake the Project, (2) a Lease Agreement, pursuant to 
which the Company leases the Project to the Agency, (3) a related Leaseback Agreement, pursuant 
to which the Agency leases its interest in the Project back to the Company, (4) a Tax Agreement, 
pursuant to which the Company agrees to make certain payments in lieu of real property taxes for 
the benefit of affected tax jurisdictions, (5) a Tax Agreement Mortgage, and (6) related Project 
certificates, instruments, agreements, and documents; provided (i) the rental payments under the 
Leaseback Agreement include payments of all costs incurred by the Agency arising out of or 
related to the Project and Facility and indemnification of the Agency by the Company for actions 
taken by the Company and/or claims arising out of or related to the Project; and (ii) the terms of 
the Tax Agreement is consistent with the Agency's Uniform Tax Exemption Policy or the 
procedures for deviation therefrom have been complied with. 

Section 3. The Agency is hereby authorized to conduct a public hearing in compliance 
with the Act. 

Section 4. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized 
and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required and 
to execute and deliver all such certificates, instruments and documents, to pay all such fees, charges 
and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may be necessary or, in the opinion of 
the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable and proper to effect the purposes of the foregoing 
resolutions and to cause compliance by the Agency with all of the terms, covenants and provisions 
of the documents executed for and on behalf of the Agency. 

Section 5. The Resolution shall take effect immediately. 

The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on roll call, 
which resulted as follows: 

 
    Yea  Nay  Abstain Absent 

 
Mayor Mike Spano   [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 
Marlyn Anderson  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 
Melissa Nacerino  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 
Hon. Cecile D. Singer  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 
Henry Djonbalaj  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 
Roberto Espiritu  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 
 

 
 

The Resolution was thereupon duly adopted. 



YIDA Resolution No. 09/2022-15 
Inducement Resolution – WY Manor LP 
September 13, 2022 
TC: Harris Beach PLLC 
 

Page 4 

CERTIFICATION 
(WY Manor LP Project) 

 
STATE OF NEW YORK  ) 
COUNTY OF WESTCHESTER ) ss.: 
 

I, MARLYN ANDERSON, the undersigned Secretary of the City of Yonkers Industrial 
Development Agency DO HEREBY CERTIFY: 
 

That I have compared the annexed extract of minutes of the meeting of the City of Yonkers 
Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”), including the resolution contained therein, held 
on September 13, 2022, with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the same is a true 
and correct copy of the proceedings of the Agency and of such resolution set forth therein and of 
the whole of said original insofar as the same related to the subject matters therein referred to. 
 

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that all members of said Agency had due notice of said meeting, 
that the meeting was in all respects duly held and that, pursuant to Article 7 of the Public Officers 
Law (Open Meetings Law), said meeting was open to the general public, and that public notice of 
the time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with Article 7. 

 
I FURTHER CERTIFY, that there was a quorum of the members of the Agency present 

throughout said meeting. 
 

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that as of the date hereof, the attached resolution is in full force 
and effect and has not been amended, repealed or modified. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of said Agency 
this ___ day of September 2022. 
 
 
 
              
        Marlyn Anderson, Secretary 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 



 1 

                                       
 

  PPrroojjeecctt  EEvvaalluuaattiioonn  CCrriitteerriiaa  
 

Date September 7, 2022 
Company Name WY Manor LP 
Project Type  New Development       Rehab    Expansion 

 Commercial  
 Industrial  
 Retail  
    Housing:  Senior    Affordable    Market Rate  
 Public Use  
  
 

LLooccaattiioonn 
Address                          354 and 358 Nepperhan Avenue              

Distressed Area           Yes       No 

Empire Zone               Yes       No 

   Empowerment Zone      Yes     No 
 

 
 

 

AApppprrooxxiimmaattee  PPrroojjeecctt  CCoosstt 
$79,547,336 

  

BBeenneeffiittss  RReeqquueesstteedd 

 Sales Tax Exemption        IRB       MRT Exemption       Real Property Agreement 
 

  

PPrroojjeecctt  PPuurrppoossee 

 Job Creation 
 Job Retention 
 Community Development 
 Quality of Life 
 Regionally Significant 
 Development that will attract other investment 
 
 



 2 

 
 
 

                                    
 

        PPrroojjeecctt  EEvvaalluuaattiioonn  CCrriitteerriiaa 
 

DDeessccrriibbee  BBeellooww  IIDDAA  JJuussttiiffiiccaattiioonn  ffoorr  IInndduucciinngg  PPrroojjeecctt::  

 
Description to address one or more of the following concepts 
  
(a) The economic need for the City of Yonkers (“City”) to have the applicant remain in or locate 

within the City; 
(b) The economic, charitable, cultural or other contribution that the applicant will provide to the 

City and its residents if the application is granted; 
(c)  The extent to which receiving IDA benefits adds to the viability of the applicant concerning any 

activities within the City; 
(d) The extent to which granting the application will improve the quality of life to residents in the 

City; and 
(e)    The extent to which granting the application will complement existing business development in the 

   City. 
 
        Whitney Young Manor (“Whitney Young”) is a 195-unit multifamily development located in Yonkers, New 
York. Originally constructed in 1973, Whitney Young consists of two 12-story buildings (32 studios, 34 one-
bedroom, 60 two-bedroom, 54 three-bedroom and 15 four-bedrooms), and a single-story community facility / 
daycare. There are also commercial spaces, currently occupied by a grocery store and storage facility for a 
community theater group, with frontage along Nepperhan Avenue.  
        Whitney Young Manor, L.P., an affiliate of Omni New York LLC (“Omni”) acquired the property in 
December of 2006 and thereafter performed a rehabilitation of the buildings and apartments in excess of $10 
million. Financing was provided in the form of tax-exempt bonds issued by the City of Yonkers Industrial 
Development Agency (“Yonkers IDA”), 4% as-of-right low-income housing tax credits (“LIHTC”) from New York 
State Division of Housing and Community Renewal Low Income Housing Tax Credits, and Empire State 
Development Corporation provided a subordinated mortgage for the amount of existing interest arrears with a 
current outstanding balance of $3.6MM. The property’s initial LIHTC compliance period ended in 2021.  
        Omni is now seeking to perform another rehab of the property with a new affiliated entity, WY Manor, LP, 
and anticipates financing the re-syndication and rehabilitation of Whitney Young with tax-exempt bond 
proceeds from the Yonkers IDA (“IDA”) and the syndication of another round of 4% LIHTC. The total bonds 
during construction are estimated to be $40 million with a permanent loan of $36 million.  
         As part of an RFP submission, Omni was awarded $5 million by the New York State Energy Research and 
Development Authority (“NYSERDA”) as part of its Empire State Building Challenge, which will be used towards 
the decarbonization of Whitney Young by electrifying heating loads, increasing flexibility of the building’s 
energy demand, and reducing consumption. Omni believes in building “Green.” It’s better for our tenants, 
communities and planet. Omni is playing its part in reducing greenhouse gas emissions, all while providing 
affordable housing that is energy efficient and healthier for our tenants. We understand that the future 
economic and physical health of the property will be contingent on moving towards a greener building.  
         Over $23.5 million will be spent to provide a full rehab of the building, including major upgrades to 
building systems. The rehab scope of work will include an Exterior Insulating Façade System (EFIS) that will 
dramatically improve the buildings’ insulation along with a new centralized heat pump system that will provide 
heating, cooling and domestic hot water, and the installation of new windows and roofs. These energy 
efficiency measure upgrades will reduce the property’s carbon emissions and show how to comprehensively 
retrofit energy systems and modernize a multifamily affordable housing project. In-unit capital improvements 
will include new apartment interiors as needed, such as new LVT flooring, interior finishes, replacement of 

 



 3 

kitchen cabinets, upgraded bathrooms, countertops, sinks, and faucets. It is estimated that 330 temporary 
construction jobs will be created as a part of this rehab.  
          Reliant Safety LLC, a related-party of Omni, will replace the current security cameras at the property 
with new state of the art cameras as a part of the rehab in coordination with the Yonkers Police Department. 
Additionally, new improvements to the exterior entrances will improve the safety for residents and the 
surrounding community.  
          
        The current PILOT Agreement with Yonkers IDA expires on December 1, 2027. A 13-year extension of 
the existing PILOT Agreement from the Yonkers IDA will be sought as part of this transaction in addition to a 
mortgage tax and sales tax exemption. 

 



APPLICATION�FOR��FINANCIAL�ASSISTANCE�

470�Nepperhan�Avenue�|�Suite�200��|Yonkers,�New�York�10701�
(914) 509-8651������www.yonkersida.�o��

v.2022 1�o��1��

PLEA�E����E��Confidential�information�should������e�inserted�in�this�form�as�this�form����������osted�on�our��u�li��
�e�site����ll��onfidential�information�should��e�inserted����mar�in��“see�conf��en���������c��en��no�e����e�c��

APPLICANT��INFORMATION�
Applicant’s�Na����

�ate�o���ina��app�i�ation�Su��ission��������������������������������

Na�e�o���erson��o�p�etin��App�i�ation�and��it�e��

Na�e�o���o�pany�(i��app�i�a��e)��

Address��

�hone�� �o�i�e�� ��ai���

PROJECT�INFORMATION�
�ro�e�t�Address��

��o�k(s)����ot(s)��

�resent��e�a���wner�o��Site��
�s�app�i�ant�a��i�iate�present�owner�o��the�site����� Yes���� �No

�ow�wi���the�site��e�a��uired��(if�applicable)� �hen�is�the�site�p�anned�to��e�a��uired��

�urrent�
�one��������

�roposed�
�one��

Are�any�varian�e�
needed��

�S����S������������A�����N������istressed�Area��� �Yes�� � ��or�er���pire��one��� �Yes� �No��������if�u�������i��ui�e��i���������aff

PRINCIPAL�USE�OF�PROJECT:��Atta�h�a��rie��pro�e�t�Narrative�State�ent�des�ri�in��pro�e�t�(i.e���and�a��uisition,�s�ope�o��

�onstru�tion,�ti�e�ine,�s���oota�e,�usa�e,�anti�ipated�revenues,��ontri�ution�to��o��unity,�et�.)�and�renderin�s.�

�S��������A���N������N��Y��

�a�ant��and

A�andoned

�n�use���o��upied

��ease�provide�a��rie��des�ription�o��the������N��
use�o��pro�e�t��o�ation(s)��

�����S����������’������A���N�������

�o��er�ia� �etai� �ther�������������������������

�esidentia�������elec����pe��� �Senior�� �A��orda��e�� ��arket��ate

��o��units�������������

unit��i�������������������������������������������������

street��eve��use������������������������������������������

��������S�������N�������N���A���S����������������N����������N��

Estimat����at��������t��i��������t�����i���ti�i�i��������its:�� � ������������������������������

Li���i��������a���m��is�i��������s���������t��it�i��t�����������a�s�� �ike�y�����or �n�ike�y

N� change in use

WY �an�� �� ��

�anana �i�ne� � ����ec� �anage�

��ni Ne� Y��� ��� 

��� �hi�� ��enue� ��s� ������ NY� NY �����

������������ ������������ ��i�ne���n���c�c��

��� an� ��� Ne��e�han ��enue 

�����������
Whi�ne� Y�ung �an��� ��

Ne� �e�a�e� �a��� en�i�� �i�� ac�ui�e �he si�e �n� �� ����
�n�us��� �is��ic� �a�e Yes� ��� e��e�i�� ���� ins�a��a�i�n  

������a��e �u��i�a�i�� �esi�en�ia�  
����ec� 

���

������� ������� ������� ������� ������

���ce�� ����e � ����age ��� a c���uni�� �hea�e� g��u� 

��

�� ��

�� ����



APPLICATION FOR  FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

470 Nepperhan Avenue | Suite 200  |Yonkers, New York 10701 
(914) 509-8651      www.yonkersida.com 

v.2022 2 of 13 

ESTIMATED PROJECT COSTS  (Use best estimates. Any amendments should be sent as addendum to application)

VALUE OF PROPERTY to be acquired $ 

If you intend to leverage property already owned indicate intended mortgage value: $ 

TOTAL COST OF CONSTRUCTION:  (labor + materials) $ 
 Labor:  $ ___________________        Equipment/Materials:  $ ____________________ 

NON CONSTRUCTION Equipment / Furnishings: $ 

SOFT COSTS: $ 

Other (explain): $ 

TOTAL PROJECT COST $ 

What is the estimated Fair Market Value of the project upon completion: $ 

Is there likelihood that the Project would NOT be undertaken IF NOT FOR financial assistance provided by the Agency?  
� Yes   � No   Included with project narrative provide an statement of why the Project should be undertaken by the Agency

COST (Financial Assistance)  BENEFIT (Economic Development)  ANALYSIS 

 FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE REQUESTED (check all that apply) 
Value of  EXEMPTIONS 

Estimated 

SALES AND USE TAX EXEMPTION:

Estimated value of Goods and Services to be
exempt from sales and use tax 
(see�“Recapture”�on�page�8) 

Value of taxable purchases: 

$ _____________________ 

X 
8.875% $  ______________________ 

MORTGAGE RECORDING TAX EXEMPTION:
Estimated Mortgage amount: 

$ ______________________ 

X  
1.5% 

$  ______________________ 

REAL PROPERTY TAX AGREEMENT (PILOT )
REQUESTED duration of  PILOT: YEARS:    ____________ 

$  ______________________ 

INDUSTRIAL REVENUE BOND (IRB)

Is a purchaser for the Bonds in place?

� Yes  � No

Estimated value of bond: 

$ __________________ $  ______________________ 

TOTAL VALUE OF FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE REQUESTED: 

Economic Development = BENEFIT 

Private Funds invested $ _________________ 

Estimated Bank Financing $ _________________ 

Federal, State and Local grant/credit/loans/tax incentives 
(include Public Funds sum from the attached Prevailing Wage 

Checklist): 
__________________________ $ __________________ 

__________________________ $ __________________ 

__________________________ $ __________________ 

TOTAL INVESTMENT IN PROJECT  $  _______________ 

Expected Gross Taxable Receipts:            $ _______________  

Addt’l�Revenue�to City/School District:   $ _______________ 

OTHER BENEFITS: 
Community Development

Development that will attract other investment

Regionally Significant

Improve the quality of life for the Residents  of the City

Other:

______________________________

NYSERDA Grant

LIHTC

Deferred Developer Fee

Resubordination of ESD Subdebt $ 3,660,863

37,000,000

0

14,240,978
23,734,963

9,493,985

0

18,812,373

79,547,336

40,000,000

14,240,978 1,263,887

36,255,000
543,825

13
Extension of existing PILOT

TBD

40,000,000

33,255,000

5,000,000

31,152,797

6,478,677

79,547,336 Security Improvements, Energy Efficiencies



�

�� � ��

APPLICATION�FOR��FINANCIAL�ASSISTANCE�
�

470�Nepperhan�Avenue�|�Suite�200��|Yonkers,�New�York�10701��
(914)�509-8651������www.�onkersi�a.�o��

�

� v.2022� ��o��1��

�
�

EMPLO�MENT�PLAN��
� � � If�financial�assistance�is���ante�� �

� �

�����N�����
o���o�s��
A��

the�propose��
pro�e�t��o�ation�

�

��o���o�s�
to��e�re�o�ate��

����
the�pro�e�t�
�o�ation�

�

�sti�ate���
o���

���an������o�s�
to��e�

���A�N���

�

�sti�ate�the���o��
���an������o�s��

���������A����upon�
�������ears�a�ter�pro�e�t�

�o�p�etion�

�

�sti�ate�the���o��resi�ents�o��the�
�a�or��arket�Area�in�whi�h�the�

�ro�e�t�is��o�ate��that�wi����i���the����
an������o�s�to��e��reate��upon�

�������ears�a�ter��ro�e�t�
�o�p�etion��

�u����i�e�-���� � � � � �

�art��i�e�-���� � � � � �

T����� � � � � �

��a�or��arket�Area�in��u�es����������������������������������������������������������������������������������
�

ESTIMATE��SALAR��FRIN�E��ENEFITS�FOR��O�S�TO��E�RETAINE��AN��OR�CREATE������IRECTL���

�O��CATE�OR��
������

RETAINE��
�������

CREATE��
SALAR��

(��Avera�e�or����an�e)�
FRIN�E��ENEFITS�

(��Avera�e�or����an�e)�

�ana�e�ent� � �
� �

�ro�essiona�� � �
� �

A��inistrative� � �
� �

�ro�u�tion�Ski��e���orker� � �
� �

�n�epen�ent��ontra�tor� � �
� �

�ther�������incl��in��c�nst��cti�n����s�� � �
� �

TOTAL��� � �
� �

�
�
�oes�the�e�p�o��ent�p�an�a�ove�in��u�e�esti�ate���o���reation��ro���o��er�ia��tenants�����

�Y�S��
�N��
�Not�App�i�a��e�

�
�

����our�e�p�o��ent�p�an�a�ove�in��u�es�esti�ate���o�s�that�are�not��ire�t���e�p�o�e�����the��ro�e�t�p�ease�e�p�ain��e�ow��

�

�

�

�

�
�

� � � sa�e as cu��en� nu��e� N��

� � � sa�e as cu��en� nu��e� N��
� � � sa�e as cu��en� nu��e� N��

N��

� � ������ �����

� � ������ ������

� � ������ � ������� ������

� � ������� �������



APPLICATION�FOR��FINANCIAL�ASSISTANCE�

470�Nepperhan�Avenue�|�Suite�200��|Yonkers,�New�York�10701�
(914) 509-��51������www��onkersi�a��o��

v�2022 4�o��1��

INTER-MUNICIPAL�MOVE�DETERMINATION�

�i���the�pro�e�t��

a) �esu�t�in�the�re�ova��or�a�an�on�ent�o��a�p�ant�or��a�i�it��o��the�app�i�ant��ro��one�area�o��the�State�o��New�York

to�another���� �Ye���� �N�

�) �esu�t�in�the�re�ova��o��a�p�ant�or��a�i�it��o��another�propose��o��upant�o��the�pro�e�t��ro��one�area�o��the�State�o�

New�York�to�another�area�o��the�State�o��New�York��� �Ye���� �N�

�) �esu�t�in�the�a�an�on�ent�o��one�or��ore�p�ants�or��a�i�ities��o�ate��in�the�State�o��New�York��� �Ye���� �N�

���Ye�,�to�an��o��the�a�ove�e�p�ain�how�the�Agency’s�Financial�Assistance�is�require��t���re�ent�the��r��ect��r���
re�o�atin��out�o��the�State�or�is�reasona����ne�essar��to�preserve�the��ro�e�t�o��upants�position�in�its�respe�tive�in�ustr���
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������

CONSTRUCTION�

�����sti�ate�� ��sti�ate��

�sti�ate���en�th�o���onstru�tion�� �MONT�S� �����start�� ��� �������o�p�etion�� �����
��� ���YY� ���� ����YY�

�sti�ate��ost�o��pro�e�t��onstru�tion����

�ota���ost�attri�uta��e�to��ateria�s�� ��

�ota���ost�attri�uta��e�to��a�or�� ��

E������e����������������������������������e���e��e��������e�����������������e�����

�sti�ate��a��re�ate�nu��er�o��work�hours�o���anua��workers�to��e�e�p�o�e��in�pro�e�t��onstru�tion��

�ill��r��ect�c�nstructi�n��e�g��erne���y�a��r��ect�la��r�agree�ent�����A����ith�the��uil�ing�an����nstruction��ra�es�

�oun�i��o���est�hester�an���utna���ounties,�New�York�A��-��������uncil��1�������Yes��������No�

If�you�have�answered�YE���o��he��re�ed�n���ues��on����ease�a��a�h�a��o�y�of��he������and�you�need�no���o���e�e��he�re�a�n�n���or��ons�of��h�s��e���on�

��u����ease�see�no�e��e�ow���

�� �� ���� �� ����

����������

����������

���������
���

�������



APPLICATION�FOR��FINANCIAL�ASSISTANCE�

470�Nepperhan�Avenue�|�Suite�200��|Yonkers,�New�York�10701�
(914) 509-8651������www.yonkersida.com�

v.2022 5�of�1��

CONTRACTOR�INFORMATION����f�contractor�su�contractor�has�a�permanent��ocation�in�or�around��estchester��ounty�p�ease�use�address.�

�ist�each��ro�ect��onstruction��ontractor�or�Su�contractor��e�ow�(current�y�known�or�reasona��y�e�pected�to��e�hired)�

� �ontractor � Su�contractor

Name�� �ompany�Name��

Address��

� �ontractor� � Su�contractor

Name�� �ompany�Name��

Address��

� �ontractor � Su�contractor

Name�� �ompany�Name��

Address��

�1��his�may��e�either�a���A�a�ready�in�effect�with�the��and�ord�of�the��ro�ect�faci�ity,�or�a���A�made�(or�to��e�made)��etween�the�App�icant�and�the�
�ounci��direct�y�in�connection�with��ro�ect��onstruction.�

�u�c�n��ac���s �� �e �e�e��ine� c��se� �� c�ns��uc�i�n s�a���  �ene�a� c�n��ac��� i�en�i�ie� �e���

���u��a �a��a� �ene�a� ��ns��uc�i�n �e��ices� ��� 

��� �hi�� ��enue� ��s� ������ NY� NY �����



APPLICATION�FOR��FINANCIAL�ASSISTANCE�

470�Nepperhan�Avenue�|�Suite�200��|Yonkers,�New�York�10701�
(914) 509-8651������www.yonkersida.com�

v.2022 6�of�1��

CONSTRUCTION�(continued)�

�f�some�or�a���of�the��ontractor(s)�or�Su�contractor(s)�to��e�invo�ved�in��ro�ect�construction�cannot�reasona��y��e�

identified�at�this�time,�state�whether�it�is�Applicant�s�intenti�n�t��re��ire�the�f�ll�win��in�its�c�ntract�s��f�r��r��ect�

construction��

a) �oca��hirin��(100�mi�e�radius�from�pro�ect�site)���� �Yes��� �No

�) �i���contract�re�uire��oca��hirin������ �Yes��� �No

��f�Yes,�percenta�e�of�manua��workers�that�wi����e��oca��� �%�

c) �nion��a�or����� �Yes��� �No

d) �f�Non-�nion,�wi���contract�re�uire�payment�of��revai�in���a�e����� �Yes��� �No

��f�the�answer�t����esti�n��������r���c���a���e�is���,�e�plain��missi�n��

NOTES:�

For�purposes�of�this�App�i��tio�����re��i�i������e��sh�����e���the��pre��i�i���r�te�of����e���s��efi�e��i��Article�8�of�the�New�York����or���w��

�f�A��lic��t�h���i��ic�te��herei��th�t��ro�ect��o��tr�ctio��will�i��ol�e�����A����io��l��or��loc�l�hiri��������or�����e�t�of��re��ili������e��the�
A�e�c��re�er�e��the�ri�ht�to�i�cl��e���ch�re��ire�e�t��i��the��ro�ect��oc��e�t�tio�����co��itio���for�the�e�te��io������rete�tio��of�t����e�efit���

ENVIRONMENTAL�REVIEW:�

�as�the�re�uired�environmenta��review�under�the�State��nvironmenta���ua�ity��eview�Act�(S���A)��een�comp�eted��

� Yes�����No

�f�yes,�coordinated��y�which��ead�a�ency���������������������������������������������������������������

��ease�attach�a���documentation�(e.�.�environmenta��assessment�form,�environmenta��impact�statement,�findin�s�and�

determinations�of��ead�a�ency,�to�the�e�tent�app�ica��e).�

�hase � has �een c����e�e��  ����� �i�� �e c����e�e� ��i�� �� �inancing c��sing�

We �� n�� ��an �� inc�u�e uni�n �anguage in �he su�c�n��ac��� c�n��ac�s in ���e� �� �ee� c�ns��uc�i�n 

c�s�s �ini�a� an� �e�uce �u��ic su�si�� ����a�s� �his is a ���� a�����a��e h�using ����ec��

��



APPLICATION�FOR��FINANCIAL�ASSISTANCE�

470�Nepperhan�Avenue�|�Suite�200��|Yonkers,�New�York�10701�
(914) 509-8651������www.yonkersida.com�

v.2022 7�of�1��

APPLICAN����C��N��L�

Name�of��ounse��� �hone�

Address� �mai���

PRINCIPAL�OWNERS�DIRECTORS��(�ist�owners�with�15��or�more�in�e�uity�ho�din�s�with�and�their�ownership�percenta�e)

�ype�of�entity�� ���a�a��e������a�-��empt� �sta��ishment��ate��������������������������������State�of��r�ani�ation���������������

� �orporation������artnership�� � �enera�����Num�er�of��enera���artners����������

� �imited�����Num�er�of��imited��artners����������

� �imited��ia�i�ity��ompany��artnership���Num�er�of��em�ers������

� So�e��roprietorship��������

�f�a�forei�n�or�ani�ation,�is�the�App�icant�authori�ed�to�do��usiness�in�the�State�of�New�York���� �� �Yes NO

�orporate�Structure���(Attach�a�schematic�if�App�icant�is�a�su�sidiary�or�otherwise�affi�iated�with�another�entity)�

��se�h ��nch ������������
���e� ��� �� Wes� ���h ���ee�� NY� NY ����� ����nch�ni��n�ea�����c��

�ee c�n�i�en�ia� a��ach�en�



APPLICATION�FOR��FINANCIAL�ASSISTANCE�

470�Nepperhan�Avenue�|�Suite�200��|Yonkers,�New�York�10701�
(914) 509-8651������www.yonkersida.com�

v.2022 8�of�1��

PREVAILING�WAGE�CHECKLIST�&�MWBE�GUIDANCE�
(NY�Labor�La��������a��

�n��anuary�1,�2022,�certain�pro�ects�receivin��financia��assistance�from�a�pu��ic�entity�(e.�.,�industria��deve�opment�a�encies�(��A)�and��oca��

deve�opment�corporations�(���))�wi����e�su��ect�to�prevai�in��wa�e�re�uirements.��hi�e�prevai�in��wa�e�was�previous�y��imited�to��overnment�

contractin�,�this��e�is�ation�wi���su��ect�certain�pro�ects�approved��y�an���A�or�an�����to�prevai�in��wa�e�under�the�New�York��a�or��aw�and�

�����re�uirements.� ��ease�use�the�fo��owin��ta��e�as�a�check�ist�to�confirm�if�a�pro�ect�wi����e�su��ect�to�prevai�in��wa�e�if�approved��

�� E�e���
Pro�e��:

a. �esidentia��rea��estate�(�ess�than�4�units),
�. �ertain�not-for-profit�corporations�with�revenue�under��5�mi��ion,
c. �ertain�Afforda��e��ousin��pro�ects,

d. �ertain�manufactured�home�park�pro�ects,
e. �ertain�pro�ects�performed�under�a�pre-hire�co��ective��ar�ainin��a�reement�(e.�.,

�a�or�peace�a�reement�or�pro�ect��a�or�a�reement),
f. �ro�ects�funded��y���16-n�of�the��r�an��eve�opment��orporation�Act�or�the

�owntown��evita�i�ation��nitiative,
�. �he�insta��ation�of�renewa��e�ener�y�systems,�renewa��e�heatin��or�coo�in��systems,

or�ener�y�stora�e�systems�with�a�capacity�of�five�(5)�me�awatts�(A�)�or��ess,
h. NY����A��ood��etai����pansion�to�Support��ea�th�pro�ects,
i. NY������Sma����usiness��ncu�ator�pro�rams�under�10,000�s�.�ft.,
�. NY���ept.�of��ducation�schoo��construction�under�60,000�s�.�ft.,�and
k. �ro�ects�that�receive�certain�ta���enefits�re�ated�to�historic�reha�i�itation.

Yes

No

�� Co�ere�
Pro�e��:

�onstruction�pro�ects�throu�hout�the�state�whose�tota��costs�e�ceed��5�mi��ion�and�for�

which�at��east��0��of�these�costs�are�met�throu�h�use�of�pu��ic�su�sidies.1
Yes

No� �

�� P�b����F���
E�e����o�s:

a. Afforda��e�New�York��ousin���ro�ram��enefits,
�. �unds�that�are�not�provided�primari�y�to�promote,�incentivi�e,�or�ensure�that

construction�work�is�performed,�which�wou�d�otherwise��e�considered�pu��ic�funds
(as�defined��e�ow),

c. �unds�received�for�sewer�pro�ects�or�connections�to�e�istin��sewer��ines,
d. �a���enefits�where�the�va�ue�is�unknown�at�time�of

construction,�e.��a���enefits�for�the��rownfie�d���eanup�pro�ram,

f. �unds�for�charter�schoo��faci�ities,�and
�. Any�pu��ic�monies,�credits,�savin�s�or��oans�deemed�e�empt��y�the��u��ic�Su�sidy

�oard.

E�����e�
�ro��abo�e�
�o�a��

�� P�b����F���s
(P�b���

S�bs���es�:

a. �u��ic�entity��rants,
�. Savin�s�from�fees,�rents,�interest�rates,�or��oan�costs,�or�insurance�costs�that�are��ower

than�market�rate�costs,
c. Savin�s�from�reduced�ta�es�as�a�resu�t�of�ta��credits,�ta��a�atements,�ta��e�emptions

(i.e.,�sa�es�ta��and�mort�a�e�recordin��ta�),�or�ta��increment�financin�,������s,�and
d. Savin�s�from�reduced,�waived,�or�for�iven�costs�(e.�.,�contin�ent��oan�repayments).

To�a�:�

�������������

�� E��e����e
Da�e

�he�prevai�in��wa�e�and������re�uirements�take�effect�on��anuary�1,�2022,�and�sha���app�y�to�contracts�for�
construction�e�ecuted,�incentive�a�reements�e�ecuted,�procurements�or�so�icitations�issued,�or�app�ications�
for��ui�din��permits�on�or�after�such�date.�

�� Re�or����
Re���re�e��

A�pro�ect��eneficiary�must�certify�to�the�State��a�or��ommissioner�if�a�pro�ect�is�a��overed��
�ro�ect�within�five�(5)�days�of�commencement�of�construction.�A��overed��ro�ect�is�su��ect�to�stop�

1��Notice�of���panded��e�a�����i�ations�under�NYS��revai�in���a�e��pu��ished�on�or�a�out�Septem�er�21,�2021��y�the�NYS��epartment�of��a�or�



APPLICATION�FOR��FINANCIAL�ASSISTANCE�

470�Nepperhan�Avenue�|�Suite�200��|Yonkers,�New�York�10701�
(914) 509-8651������www.yonkersida.com�

v.2022 9�of�1��

MWBE�&�SDVOB�

Additiona��y,� a��overed� �ro�ect�must� comp�y�with� the�o��ectives�and��oa�s�of�minority� and�women-owned��usiness�
enterprises� (����)� pursuant� to� Artic�e� 15-A� of� the� New� York� ��ecutive� �aw� and� service-disa��ed� veteran-owned�
�usinesses�(S����)�pursuant�to�Artic�e�17-��of�the���ecutive��aw.�

�he�newest�participation��oa��is��0��for������and�6��for�S����.��ontractors�must�demonstrate�a���ood�faith��effort�
to�comp�y�with�the������and�S�����re�uirements.��ood�faith�efforts�can�inc�ude�the�identification�of�participation�
areas�for�����s�and�S����s�and�fu���uti�i�ation�of��ists�of�certified�����s�and�S����s.�

�f,�despite��ood�faith�efforts,�a�contractor�is�not�a��e�to�retain�an������or�S�����for�a�pro�ect,�the�company��must �
su�mit�a��e�uest�for��aiver�a�on��with�documentation�of��ood�faith�efforts�and�the�reason�they�were�una��e�to�o�tain�
an������or�S����.�

�ood�faith�efforts�can��e�evidenced��y��

1. �opies�of�so�icitations�(advertisements� in������or� �S����-centered� �pu��ications,� �those� �made��to�vendors�in
�����or�S�����directories,�those�made�to������or�S����-oriented�trade�and��a�or�or�ani�ations,�etc.)

2. �f� these�so�icitations� are� answered,� the� contractor�must� a�so� record� specific� reasons�why� the������or� S����

enterprise�was�not�se�ected.��ates�of��any��pre-�id,��pre-award��or��other��meetin�s��attended���y��the��contractor,
if��any,��schedu�ed��y�the��epartment�of��a�or�with�certified������or�S�����enterprises.��nformation�descri�in�
the�steps�taken�to�ensure������and�S�����participation�in�a�pro�ect.��escriptions�of�any�other�actions�undertaken
�y�the��idder�to�document��ood�faith�efforts�to�retain������and�S�����enterprises.

�omp�iance��

A�thou�h�fu���participation�comp�iance�is�the�preferred�method,�partia��or�no�participation�is�accepta��e�so��on��as�the�
pro�ect� �eneficiary� conforms� to� the� re�uirements� to� fu�fi��� and� receive� the�waiver.��ro�ect� �eneficiaries�of��overed�
�ro�ects�may�want�to�en�a�e�monitorin��firms�to�ensure�that��ood�faith�efforts�are�met�and�proper�y�documented�to�
avoid�pena�ties.�

�esources��

�e�pfu���resources��
and��administration��forms��for��the��������and��S������pro�rams��can���e��found��on��the�����
NYS��epartment�of��a�or�we�site�in�the�midd�e�of�the�pa�e�at�the�fo��owin��address��https���do�.ny.�ov�contract-�id-
�rant-opportunities.�



APPLICATION�FOR��FINANCIAL�ASSISTANCE�

470�Nepperhan�Avenue�|�Suite�200��|Yonkers,�New�York�10701�
(914) 509-8651������www.yonkersida.com�

v.2022 10�of�1��

REPRESENTATIONS�b����e�APPLICANT�

THE�APPLICANT�UNDERSTANDS�AND�AGREES�WITH�THE�AGENCY�AS�FOLLOWS:�

A) �o���istin�s�–��n�accordance�with�Section�858-�(2)�of�the�New�York��enera���unicipa���aw,�the�App�icant�understands�and�a�rees

that,� if� the� �ro�ect� receives� and� �inancia�� Assistance� from� the� A�ency,� e�cept� otherwise� provided� �y� co��ective� �ar�ainin�

a�reements,�new�emp�oyment�opportunities�created�as�a�resu�t�of�the��ro�ect�wi����e��isted�with�the�New�York�State��epartment

of� Labor� Community� Services�Division� �t�e� �D�L��� an���it�� t�e� a�ministrative� entity� �co��ective�y��it�� t�e�D�L�� t�e� �����

�ntities���of�t�e�service�de�ivery�area�created��y�the�federa���o��trainin��partnership�act�(�u��ic��aw�97-��������������in���ic�

the��ro�ect�is��ocated.

�) �irst��onsideration�for��mp�oy�–� �n�accordance�with�Section�858-�(2)�of�the�New�York��enera���unicipa���aw,�the�App�icant

understands�and�a�rees�that,�if�the��ro�ect�receives�and��inancia��Assistance�from�the�A�ency,�e�cept�otherwise�provided��y

co��ective� �ar�ainin��a�reements,�where�practica��e,� the�App�icant�wi��� first� consider� persons�e�i�i��e� to�participate� in� ���A

pro�rams�who�sha����e�referred��y�the����A��ntities�for�new�emp�oyment�opportunities�created�as�a�resu�t�of�the��ro�ect.

�) Annua�� Sa�es� �a�� �i�in�s� –� �n� accordance� with� the� Section� 874(8)� of� the� New� York� �enera�� �unicipa�� �aw,� the� App�icant

understands�and�a�rees�that,�if�the�pro�ect�receives�any�sa�es�ta��e�emptions�as�part�of�the��inancia��Assistance�from�the�A�ency,

in�accordance�with�Section�874(8)�of�the��enera���unicipa���aw�the�App�icant�a�rees�to�fi�e,�or�cause�to��e�fi�ed,�with�the�New

York� State� �epartment� of� �a�ation� and� �inance,� the� Annua�� form� prescri�ed� �y� the��epartment� of� �a�ation� and� �inance,

descri�in��the�va�ue�of�a���sa�es�ta��e�emptions�c�aimed��y�the�App�icant�and�a���consu�tants�or�su�contractors�retained��y�the

App�icant.

�) Annua���mp�oyment��eports�–��he�App�icant�understands�and�a�rees�that,�if�the��ro�ect�receives�any��inancia��Assistance�from

the�A�ency,�the�App�icant�a�rees�to�fi�e,�or�cause�to��e�fi�ed,�with�the�A�ency�on�an�annua���asis,�reports�re�ardin��the�num�er

of�peop�e�emp�oyed�at�the�pro�ect�site�inc�udin��correspondin��payro���records�for�the�year�endin�.

�) �omp�iance�with�N.Y.�����Sec.�862(1)���App�icant�understands�and�a�rees�that�the�provisions�of�Section�862(1)�of�the�New�York

�enera���unicipa���aw,�as�provided��e�ow,�wi���not��e�vio�ated�if��inancia��Assistance�is�provided�for�the�proposed��ro�ect�

� 862.��estrictions�on�funds�of�the�a�ency.�(1)�No�funds�of�the�a�ency�sha����e�used�in�respect�of�any�pro�ect�if�the�comp�et ion

thereof�wou�d�resu�t�in�the�remova��of�an�industria��or�manufacturin���p�ant�of��the�pro�ect�occupant�from�one�area�of�the�state

to�another�area�of�the�state�or�in�the�a�andonment�of�one�or�more�p�ants�or�faci�ities�of�the�pro�ect�occupant���ocated�within

the��state,��provided,��however,�that�neither�restriction�sha���app�y�if�the�a�ency�sha���determine�on�the��asis�of�the��app�ication

�efore�it�that�the�pro�ect�is�reasona��y�necessary�to�discoura�e�the�pro�ect�occupant�from��removin��such�other�p�ant�or�faci�ity

to�a��ocation�outside�the�state�or�is�reasona��y�necessary�to�preserve�the�competitive�position�of��the�pro�ect�occupant��in�its

respective�industry.

�) �omp�iance�with�App�ica��e��aws���he�App�icant�confirms�and�acknow�ed�es�that�the�owner,�occupant,�or�operator�receivin�

�inancia��Assistance�for�the�proposed��ro�ect�is�in�su�stantia��comp�iance�with�app�ica��e��oca�,�state�and�federa��ta�,�worker

protection�and�environmenta���aws,�ru�es�and�re�u�ations.



APPLICATION�FO���FINANCIAL�A��I�TANC��

470�Nepperhan�Avenue�|�Suite�200��|Yonkers,�New�York�10701�
(914) 509-8651������www.yonkersi�a.�o��

v.2022 11�o��1��

��P����NTATION���������APPLICANT�(�ontinue�)�

�) �a�se�an���is�ea�in���n�or�ation����he�App�i�ant��on�ir�s�an��a�know�e��es�that�the�su��ission�o��any�knowin��y��a�se

or� knowin��y� �is�ea�in�� in�or�ation� �ay� �ea�� to� the� i��e�iate� ter�ination� o�� any� �inan�ia�� Assistan�e� an�� the

rei��urse�ent�o��an�a�ount�e�ua��to�a���or�part�o��any�ta��e�em�tion�c�aime��by�reason�of�t�e���ency�s�invo�vement

the��ro�e�t.

�) �e�apture���Shou���the�App�i�ant�not�e�pen��or�hire�as�presente�,�the�A�en�y��ay�view�su�h�in�or�ation�status�as��ai�in�

to��eet�the�esta��ishe��stan�ar�s�o��e�ono�i��per�or�an�e.� ��n�su�h�events,�so�e�or�a���o��the��ene�its�taken��y�the

App�i�ant�wi����e�su��e�t�to�re�apture.

�) A�sen�e� o�� �on��i�ts� o�� �nterest� –� �he� App�i�ant� has� re�eive�� �ro�� the� A�en�y� a� �ist� o�� the� �e��ers,� o��i�ers� an�

e�p�oyees�o��the�A�en�y.�No��e��er,�o��i�ers�or�e�p�oyees�o��the�A�en�y�has�an�interest,�whether��ire�t�or�in�ire�t,�in

any�transa�tion��onte�p�ate���y�this�App�i�ation,�e��ept�as�herein��es�ri�e��

�) A��� in�e�ni�i�ations�an��representations��a�e��y�the�App�i�ant� in� the�within�App�i�ation� �or��inan�ia��Assistan�e�are

�a�e��oth�to�Y��A�an��Y���.

k) Y��A�an��Y����are�represente���y��arris��ea�h������as�transa�tion��ounse�,�or�i���arris��ea�h������has�a��on��i�t�then�Y��A

an�� Y����wi��� i�enti�y� an� a�ternative� �aw� �ir�� to� a�t� as� �ransa�tion� �ounse�.� � You� are� responsi��e� �or� the� �osts� an�

e�penses�o��Y��A�an��Y�����ransa�tion��ounse��an��Y��A�an��Y����wi���esta��ish�an��have�you��aintain�es�rowe���un�s�

as� the� pro�e�t� pro�resses� to� pay� �ransa�tion� �ounse�� �ees.� � Y��� ����� �������� AN� A��N���������N�� A�����

S����SS��N� ��� ���S� A�����A���N� ��A�� �����N�S� A��� ��S�S� AN�� ��N����S� AN�� Y��� ����� N���� ��� S��N� ����

A��N��������N�����������NA��A�����A�S�A����A���A�A��A���.���

�) ��e�Com�any��as�com��ete��t�e���ency�s��revai�in���a�e�C�ec��ist����ic��is�attac�e��to�t�is�App�i�ation.

�) ��e�Com�any��ereby�ac�no��e��es�an��a�rees�t�at�any��financia��assistance���as�suc��term�is

�e�ine��in�the�A�t,�receive��from�t�e���ency�constitutes���ub�ic�fun�s��un�ess�ot�er�ise�e�c�u�e�

un�er�Se�tion�224-a(�)�o��the�New�York��a�or��aw,�an���y�e�e�utin��this�App�i�ation,�(i)��on�ir�s

that�it�has�re�eive��noti�e��ro��the�A�en�y�pursuant�to�Se�tion�224-a(8)(�)�o��the�New�York��a�or

�aw�an��(ii)�a�know�e��es�its�o��i�ations�pursuant�to�Se�tion�224-a(8)(a)�o��the�New�York��a�or

�aw.��he�A�en�y��akes�no�representations�or��ovenants�with�respe�t�to�the�tota��sour�es�o�

��ub�ic�fun�s��receive��by�t�e�Com�any�in�connection�with�the��ro�e�t.

N�ne 



�

�� � ��

APPLICATION�FO���FINANCIAL�A��I�TANC��
�

470�Nepperhan�Avenue�|�Suite�200��|Yonkers,�New�York�10701��
(914)�509-8651������www.yonkersi�a.�o��

�

� v.2022� 12�o��1��

�
�

�OL���A��L����A������NT�
�
� App�i�ant�here�y�re�eases��ity�o��Yonkers��n�ustria���eve�op�ent�A�en�y�an��the��e��ers,�o��i�ers,�servants,�a�ents�

an��em��oyees�t�ereof��t�e����ency���from��an��a�rees�t�at�t�e���ency�s�a���not�be� �ia��e��or�an��the�app�i�ant�a�rees�to�
in�e�ni�y,��e�en�,�pay�an��ho���the�A�en�y�har��ess��ro��an��a�ainst�any�an��a����ia�i�ity�arisin���ro��or�e�pense�in�urre��
by�t�e���ency�concernin������t�e���ency�s�costs�an��e��enses�in�t�e�e�amination�an���rocessin��o�,�as�we���as�a�tion�pursuant�
to�or�upon,�the�atta�he��App�i�ation,�as�we���as�veri�i�ation�o��assertions�in�the�app�i�ation�or�other�app�i�ant�su��itta�s� or�

app�i�ant���ai�s��a�e�now�or�in�the��uture,�re�ar��ess�o��whether�or�not�the�app�i�ation�or�the��ro�e�t��es�ri�e��therein�or�
the�ta��e�e�ptions�an��other�assistan�e�re�ueste��therein�are��avora��y�a�te��upon��y�the�A�en�y,�(�)�t�e���ency�s�costs�an��
e�penses� in�reviewin��any�a��uisition,��onstru�tion�an��or�insta��ation�o��the��ro�e�t��es�ri�e��therein�an��(�)�an���urther�
a�tion,��osts�an��e�penses�taken��y�the�A�en�y�–�with�respe�t�to�the�pro�e�t��in��u�in��without��i�itin��the��enera�ity�o��the�

�ore�oin�,�a����auses�o��a�tion�an���ees�an��e�penses��or�A�en�y�attorneys,�a��ountants,�e�ono�ists,�en�ineers,�ar�hite�ts�or�
other� pro�essiona�s� or� �onsu�tants� in�urre�� re�ar�in�� any� part� o�� the� app�i�ation� or� the� review� an��or� approva�� an��or�
�onitorin��o���o�p�ian�e��y�the�app�i�ant�with�a����aws,�ru�es�an��re�u�ations�an��or�in��e�en�in��any�suits�or�a�tions�whi�h�
�ay�arise�as�a�resu�t�or�any��or�the� �ore�oin�.� ��,��or�any�reason,�the�app�i�ant��ai�s�to��on��u�e�or��onsu��ate�ne�essary�
ne�otiations,� or� �ai�s,�within� a� reasona��e� or� spe�i�ie��perio��o�� ti�e,� to� take� reasona��e,� proper� or� re�ueste�� a�tion,�or�
with�raws,�a�an�ons,��an�e�s�or�ne��e�ts�the�App�i�ation,�or�i��the�A�en�y�or�the�app�i�ant�are�una��e�to�rea�h��ina��a�ree�ent�
with�the�respe�t�to�the��ro�e�t,�then,�in�the�event,�upon�presentation�o��an�invoi�e�ite�i�in��the�sa�e,�the�app�i�ant�sha���pay�
to�the�A�en�y,�its�a�ents�or�assi�ns,�a����osts�in�urre���y�the�A�en�y�in�the�pro�essin��o��the�App�i�ation,�in��u�in���ees�an��
e�penses��or�A�en�y�attorneys,�a��ountants,�e�ono�ists,�en�ineers�ar�hite�ts�or�other�pro�essiona�s�or��onsu�tants,�i��any.�

App�i�ant�upon�approva��sha����e�responsi��e��or�any�reasona��e��osts�in�urre���y�the�A�en�y�to�veri�y�e�p�oy�ent�
or�use�o���ene�its�re�eive���y�the�Y��A�or�other�in�or�ation�re�uire��un�er�the��u��i��Authorities�A��ounta�i�ity�A�t�or�other�
�aw,�ru�e�or�re�u�ation�otherwise�at�the�ti�e�sai���eri�i�ation�is�re�uire�.�

�his� �n�e�nity�an���o����ar��ess�A�ree�ent�sha��� survive�any���osin��or�other� transa�tion� in�whi�h��ene�its�are�
sou�ht�or�re�eive���y�the�app�i�ant�an��sha����ontinue��or�a�perio��o��ti�e�up�to�an��in��u�in��three�years�a�ter�the��ast��ene�it�
is�re�eive���y�the�app�i�ant��ro��the��ity�o��Yonkers��n�ustria���eve�op�ent�A�en�y.�

� �



APPLICATION FOR FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE

470 Nepperhan Avenue | Suite 200 |Yonkers, New York 10701
(914) 509-8651 www.yonkersi�a.�o�

v.2022 1� o� 1�

CERTIFICATION
�he app�i�ant an� the in�ivi�ua� e�e�utin� this app�i�ation on �eha�� o� the app�i�ant a�know�e��e that the A�en�y wi�� re�y on the
representations �a�e herein when a�tin� on this app�i�ation an� here�y represent that the state�ents �a�e herein �o not
�ontain any untrue state�ent o� a �ateria� �a�t an� �o not o�it to state a �ateria� �a�t ne�essary to �ake the state�ents
�ontaine� herein not �is�ea�in�.

S�A�� �� N�� Y��� )
���N�Y �� ��S����S��� ) ss.�

���������������������������������, �ein� �irst �u�y sworn, �eposes an� says�

1.� �hat � a� the �������������������������������� o� ����������������������������� an� that � a�
(�orporate ���i�er) (App�i�ant)

�u�y authori�e� on �eha�� o� the App�i�ant to �in� the App�i�ant.

2.� �hat � have rea� the atta�he� App�i�ation, � know the �ontents thereo�, an� that to the �est o� �y know�e��e an� �e�ie�, this
App�i�ation an� the �ontents o� this App�i�ation are true, a��urate an� �o�p�ete.

������������������������������������������������
(Si�nature o� ���i�er)

Su�s�ri�e� an� a��ir�e� to �e un�er pena�ties o� per�ury

this ���� �ay o� �������������, 20�����.

�������������������������������������
(Notary �u��i�)

APPLICATION FEE & PROCESSING

�n��ose with this App�i�ation is the non-re�un�a��e App�i�ation �ee in the a�ount o� �600.00 to re�ittan�e a��ress�

YONKERS INDUSTRIAL DE�ELOP�ENT AGENCY
470 Nepperhan Avenue, Suite 200

Yonkers New York 10701

FEES

AGENCY CLOSING FEE�

�he A�en�y wi�� �o��e�t an A�en�y �ee at the ti�e o� ��A ��osin�.
�ees are �ase� on the type o� �inan�ia� transa�tion. (Please see fee
s��e��le �el���

A����� F�� T��� F��

Strai�ht �ease �ransa�tions .5� o� �ota� �ro�e�t �ost

�on� �ransa�tions 1� o� �ota� �ro�e�t �ost

ANNUAL AD�IN FEE�

�he A�en�y wi�� �o��e�t an Annua� A��inistrative �ee �ase� on
your pro�e�t type an� a�ount. �his �ee wi�� �e �ue annua��y on �e�
28th, a�ter ��A �ene�its are provi�e� to the pro�e�t.
(Please see fee s��e��le �el���

P������ T���� S������� L���� A����� F��

�p to �10� � 500

�ver �10� �1,000

P������ T���� �ONDS A����� F��

�p to �10� �1,000

�ver �10� �2,000

PLEA�E����E��Confidentia��info��ation���o��d������e�in�e�ted�in�t�i��fo���a��t�i��fo����i����e��o�ted�on�o���
website.��All�co��i�e�ti�l�i��o���tio��s�o�l��be�i�se�te��b������i����see�co��i�e�ti�l��tt�c��e�t��ote����etc.

Managing�Direc��r ���Man�r����

��gene��c�ne�r

6th September 22 ABEL�DANNY�LANDAZURI
NOTARY�PUBLIC��STATE�O��NE��YOR�

Re���tr�t����N������LA62�����
�������e�������ee���C���t�
C�mm�������E�p�re�������2�



APPLICATION FOR  FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE 

470 Nepperhan Avenue | Suite 200  |Yonkers, New York 10701 
(914) 509-8651      www.yonkersida.com 

v.2022 7 of 13 

APPLICANT’S COUNSEL 

Name of Counsel: Phone 

Address Email: 

PRINCIPAL OWNERS DIRECTORS  (List owners with 15% or more in equity holdings with and their ownership percentage)

Type of entity:  Taxable    Tax-Exempt Establishment Date:    ______ /______ /_______    State of Organization:  ___________ 

 Corporation    Partnership :  General;   Number of General Partners:  _______

 Limited;    Number of Limited Partners:  _______

 Limited Liability Company/Partnership:  Number of Members:_____

 Sole Proprietorship________

If a foreign organization, is the Applicant authorized to do business in the State of New York?      Yes  NO

Corporate Structure – (Attach a schematic if Applicant is a subsidiary or otherwise affiliated with another entity) 

Manana Milner
Typewriter
26

Manana Milner
Typewriter
1

mmilner
Placed Image



WY Manor, L.P.
New York Limited Partnership

(Borrower)

WY Manor Yonkers Developers, LLC
New York Limited Liability Company

(Manager of General Partner)
(100% )

TBD CREA, LLC
(Limited Partner) 

(99.989%)

Omni Holding Company LLC
Delaware Limited Liability Company

(100%)

Omni New York LLC
New York Limited Liability Company

(Manager)
(48%)

WY Manor Yonkers EP, LLC
New York Limited Liability Company

(Member)
(52%)

TBD CREA LIHTC
(Special Limited Partner) 

(.001%)

mmilner
Typewriter
Organizational Chart 

mmilner
Placed Image



 

 

INDUCEMENT RESOLUTION 
(WY Manor LP Project) 

A regular meeting of the City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency was convened in 
public session on September 13, 2022. The following resolution was duly offered and seconded, to 
wit: 

Resolution No. 09/2022- 16 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF YONKERS INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT 
AGENCY TAKING OFFICIAL ACTION TOWARD ASSIGNMENT AS 
NEEDED OF ALL OR A PORTION OF ITS PRIVATE ACTIVIY BOND 
VOLUME ALLOCATION FOR CALENDAR YEAR 2022 TO THE YONKERS 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION AND AUTHORIZING THE 
EXECUTION AND DELIVERY OF ALL DOCUMENTS RELATED THERETO 

WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of New 
York, as amended, and Chapter 83 of the Laws of 1982 of the State of New York, as amended 
(hereinafter collectively called the “Act”), CITY OF YONKERS INDUSTRIAL 
DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (hereinafter called the “Agency”) was created with the authority 
and power to own, lease and sell property for the purpose of, among other things, acquiring, 
constructing and equipping civic, industrial, manufacturing and commercial facilities as authorized 
by the Act; and 

WHEREAS, the Agency received private activity bond volume cap allocation from the 
State of New York for calendar year 2022 in the amount of $3,878,060 (the "Volume Cap 
Allocation"); and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to correspondence dated September 1, 2022, the Agency has 
requested an increase to its allocation in the amount of $36,121,940 from the Mid-Hudson 
Regional Economic Development Council (the “Additional Volume Cap Allocation” and together 
with the Volume Cap Allocation, the “Maximum Volume Cap Allocation”); and 

WHEREAS, in order to assist in financing a certain eligible project, the YONKERS 
ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT CORPORATION (the "Corporation") is contemplating to 
issue its Taxable and/or Tax-Exempt multifamily housing revenue bonds or other debt obligations 
the issuance of which is subject to, among other things availability of private activity bond volume 
cap allocation therefor; and 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, the Agency desires to adopt a resolution authorizing the 
assignment of all or a portion of the Agency's Maximum Volume Cap Allocation at the discretion 
of the Chairman, Vice Chairman, President, Executive Director, or Secretary of the Agency to the 
Corporation to facilitate eligible projects of the Corporation. 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE AGENCY AS 
FOLLOWS: 

DRAFT 



YIDA Resolution No. 09/2022-16 
Inducement Resolution – WY Manor LP (Volume Cap) 
September 13, 2022 
TC: Harris Beach PLLC 
 

Page 2 

Section 1. The Agency hereby authorizes and approves the assignment of all or a 
portion of the Agency's Volume Cap to the Corporation, at the discretion of the Chairman, Vice 
Chairman, President, Executive Director, Secretary and/or the CFO of the Agency in an amount 
up to $3,878,060 (the "Assignment of Volume Cap"). 

 
Section 2. The Chairman, Vice Chairman, President, Executive Director, Secretary 

and/or the CFO are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to execute and deliver all such 
instruments and documents and to do all such further acts and things as may be necessary to 
effectuate the Assignment of Volume Cap.  

 
Section 3. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized 

and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required and 
to execute and deliver all such certificates, instruments and documents, to pay all such fees, charges 
and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may be necessary or, in the opinion of 
the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable and proper to effect the purposes of the foregoing 
resolutions and to cause compliance by the Agency with all of the terms, covenants and provisions 
of the documents executed for and on behalf of the Agency. 

 
Section 4. These Resolutions shall take effect immediately. 

The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on roll call, 
which resulted as follows: 

 
    Yea  Nay  Abstain Absent 

 
Mayor Mike Spano   [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 
Marlyn Anderson  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 
Melissa Nacerino  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 
Hon. Cecile D. Singer  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 
Henry Djonbalaj  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 
Roberto Espiritu  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 
 

 
 

The Resolution was thereupon duly adopted. 



YIDA Resolution No. 09/2022-16 
Inducement Resolution – WY Manor LP (Volume Cap) 
September 13, 2022 
TC: Harris Beach PLLC 
 

Page 3 

CERTIFICATION 
(WY Manor LP Project) 

 
STATE OF NEW YORK  ) 
COUNTY OF WESTCHESTER ) ss.: 
 

I, MARLYN ANDERSON, the undersigned Secretary of the City of Yonkers Industrial 
Development Agency DO HEREBY CERTIFY: 
 

That I have compared the annexed extract of minutes of the meeting of the City of Yonkers 
Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”), including the resolution contained therein, held 
on September 13, 2022, with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the same is a true 
and correct copy of the proceedings of the Agency and of such resolution set forth therein and of 
the whole of said original insofar as the same related to the subject matters therein referred to. 
 

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that all members of said Agency had due notice of said meeting, 
that the meeting was in all respects duly held and that, pursuant to Article 7 of the Public Officers 
Law (Open Meetings Law), said meeting was open to the general public, and that public notice of 
the time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with Article 7. 

 
I FURTHER CERTIFY, that there was a quorum of the members of the Agency present 

throughout said meeting. 
 

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that as of the date hereof, the attached resolution is in full force 
and effect and has not been amended, repealed or modified. 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of said Agency 
this ____ day of September 2022. 
 
 
 
              
        Marlyn Anderson, Secretary 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 



MARY the QUEEN HOUSING DEVELOPMENT FUND CORP. 

127 South Broadway 



 

 

 

 

INDUCEMENT RESOLUTION 

(Mary the Queen Senior Housing Project) 

A regular meeting of the City of Yonkers Industrial Development Agency was convened in 

public session on September 13, 2022. The following resolution was duly offered and seconded, to 

wit: 

Resolution No. 09/2022 - 17 

 

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF YONKERS INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT 

AGENCY ACCEPTING THE APPLICATION OF MARY THE QUEEN 

HOUSING DEVELOPMENT FUND CORP. (THE “COMPANY”) WITH 

RESPECT TO A CERTAIN PROJECT (AS DESCRIBED BELOW) AND (ii) 

AUTHORIZING A PUBLIC HEARING WITH RESPECT TO THE PROJECT 

 

WHEREAS, by Title 1 of Article 18-A of the General Municipal Law of the State of New 

York, as amended, and Chapter 83 of the Laws of 1982 of the State of New York, as amended 

(hereinafter collectively called the “Act”), CITY OF YONKERS INDUSTRIAL 

DEVELOPMENT AGENCY (hereinafter called the “Agency”) was created with the authority 

and power to own, lease and sell property for the purpose of, among other things, acquiring, 

constructing and equipping civic, industrial, manufacturing and commercial facilities as authorized 

by the Act; and 

 

WHEREAS, MARY THE QUEEN HOUSING DEVELOPMENT CORP., for itself or 

an entity to be formed (the “Company”) has submitted an application (the “Application”) to the 

Agency requesting the Agency’s assistance with a certain project (the “Project”) consisting of: (i) 

the acquisition or retention of the land commonly known as 35 Vark Street (Section 1, Block 493, 

Lot 65) and existing improvements (the “Land”); (ii) the construction, renovation, improving, 

maintaining and equipping on the Land of an approximately 66,000 square foot affordable senior 

housing facility, including 73 residential units (52 studio apartment units, 20 one-bedroom 

apartments and 1 two-bedroom superintendent's unit), community space, management offices and 

a reception area (the “Improvements”); and (iii) the acquisition and installation in and around the 

Land and Improvements of certain items of equipment and other tangible personal property (the 

“Equipment”, which together with the Land and Improvements are the “Facility”); and 

 

WHEREAS, pursuant to the Act, the Agency desires to adopt a resolution describing the 

Project, Facility, and the Financial Assistance (as defined below) that the Agency is contemplating 

with respect to the Project; and 

 

WHEREAS, it is contemplated that the Agency will hold a public hearing and (i) negotiate 

and enter into an agent, financial assistance and project agreement, pursuant to which the Agency 

will designate the Company as its agent for the purpose of acquiring, constructing and equipping 

the Project (the “Agent Agreement”), (ii) negotiate and enter into a lease agreement (the “Lease 

Agreement”), leaseback agreement (the “Leaseback Agreement”) and tax agreement (the “Tax 

Agreement”) with the Company, and, if required by the Agency, a Tax Agreement mortgage (the 

DRAFT 



YIDA Resolution No. 09/2022-17 
Inducement Resolution – Mary the Queen Senior Housing 
September 13, 2022 
TC: Harris Beach PLLC 

 

Page 2 

“Tax Agreement Mortgage”), (iii) take a leasehold interest in the Land, the Improvements and 

personal property constituting the Project (once the Agent Agreement, Lease Agreement, 

Leaseback Agreement and Tax Agreement (and Tax Agreement Mortgage, if applicable) have 

been negotiated), and (iv) provide financial assistance (as that term is defined in the Act) to the 

Company in the form of (a) a sales and use tax exemption for purchases and rentals related to the 

acquisition, construction and equipping of the Project, and (b) a partial real property tax abatement 

structured through the Tax Agreement (collectively, the “Financial Assistance”). 

 

 NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MEMBERS OF THE AGENCY AS 

FOLLOWS: 

 

Section 1. The Company has presented the Application in a form acceptable to the 

Agency.  Based upon the representations made by the Company to the Agency in the Company's 

Application, the Agency hereby finds and determines that: 

 

 (A) By virtue of the Act, the Agency has been vested with all powers necessary and 

convenient to carry out and effectuate the purposes and provisions of the Act and to exercise all 

powers granted to it under the Act; and 

 

 (B) The Agency has the authority to take the actions contemplated herein under the Act; 

and 

 

 (C) The action to be taken by the Agency will induce the Company to develop the 

Project, thereby increasing employment opportunities in the City of Yonkers and otherwise 

furthering the purposes of the Agency as set forth in the Act;  

 

 (D) The Project will not result in the removal of a civic, commercial, industrial, or 

manufacturing plant of the Company or any other proposed occupant of the Project from one area 

of the State to another area of the State or result in the abandonment of one or more plants or 

facilities of the Company or any other proposed occupant of the Project located within the State; 

and the Agency hereby finds that, based on the Company’s application, to the extent occupants are 

relocating from one plant or facility to another, the Project is reasonably necessary to discourage 

the Project occupants from removing such other plant or facility to a location outside the State 

and/or is reasonably necessary to preserve the competitive position of the Project occupants in 

their respective industries. 

 

Section 2. The Chairman, Vice Chairman, President, Executive Director, Secretary 

and/or the CFO are hereby authorized, on behalf of the Agency, to (A) hold a public hearing in 

compliance with the Act, and (B) negotiate (1) an Agent Agreement, pursuant to which the Agency 

appoints the Company as its agent to undertake the Project, (2) a Lease Agreement, pursuant to 

which the Company leases the Project to the Agency, (3) a related Leaseback Agreement, pursuant 

to which the Agency leases its interest in the Project back to the Company, (4) a Tax Agreement, 

pursuant to which the Company agrees to make certain payments in lieu of real property taxes for 

the benefit of affected tax jurisdictions, (5) a Tax Agreement Mortgage, and (6) related Project 

certificates, instruments, agreements, and documents; provided (i) the rental payments under the 



YIDA Resolution No. 09/2022-17 
Inducement Resolution – Mary the Queen Senior Housing 
September 13, 2022 
TC: Harris Beach PLLC 

 

Page 3 

Leaseback Agreement include payments of all costs incurred by the Agency arising out of or 

related to the Project and Facility and indemnification of the Agency by the Company for actions 

taken by the Company and/or claims arising out of or related to the Project; and (ii) the terms of 

the Tax Agreement is consistent with the Agency's Uniform Tax Exemption Policy or the 

procedures for deviation therefrom have been complied with. 

 

Section 3. The Agency is hereby authorized to conduct a public hearing in compliance 

with the Act. 

 

Section 4. The officers, employees and agents of the Agency are hereby authorized 

and directed for and in the name and on behalf of the Agency to do all acts and things required and 

to execute and deliver all such certificates, instruments and documents, to pay all such fees, charges 

and expenses and to do all such further acts and things as may be necessary or, in the opinion of 

the officer, employee or agent acting, desirable and proper to effect the purposes of the foregoing 

resolutions and to cause compliance by the Agency with all of the terms, covenants and provisions 

of the documents executed for and on behalf of the Agency. 

 

Section 5. The Resolution shall take effect immediately. 

 

The question of the adoption of the foregoing Resolution was duly put to a vote on roll call, 

which resulted as follows: 

 

    Yea  Nay  Abstain Absent 

 

Mayor Mike Spano   [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

Marlyn Anderson  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

Melissa Nacerino  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

Hon. Cecile D. Singer  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

Henry Djonbalaj  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

Roberto Espiritu  [ ] [ ] [ ] [ ] 

 

 

 

The Resolution was thereupon duly adopted. 



YIDA Resolution No. 09/2022-17 
Inducement Resolution – Mary the Queen Senior Housing 
September 13, 2022 
TC: Harris Beach PLLC 

 

Page 4 

CERTIFICATION 

(Mary the Queen Senior Housing Development Project) 

 

STATE OF NEW YORK  ) 

COUNTY OF WESTCHESTER ) ss.: 

 

I, MARLYN ANDERSON, the undersigned Secretary of the City of Yonkers Industrial 

Development Agency DO HEREBY CERTIFY: 

 

That I have compared the annexed extract of minutes of the meeting of the City of Yonkers 

Industrial Development Agency (the “Agency”), including the resolution contained therein, held 

on September 13, 2022, with the original thereof on file in my office, and that the same is a true 

and correct copy of the proceedings of the Agency and of such resolution set forth therein and of 

the whole of said original insofar as the same related to the subject matters therein referred to. 

 

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that all members of said Agency had due notice of said meeting, 

that the meeting was in all respects duly held and that, pursuant to Article 7 of the Public Officers 

Law (Open Meetings Law), said meeting was open to the general public, and that public notice of 

the time and place of said meeting was duly given in accordance with Article 7. 

 

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that there was a quorum of the members of the Agency present 

throughout said meeting. 

 

I FURTHER CERTIFY, that as of the date hereof, the attached resolution is in full force 

and effect and has not been amended, repealed or modified. 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed the seal of said Agency 

this ____ day of September 2022. 

 

 

 

              

        Marlyn Anderson, Secretary 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 1 

                                       
 

  PPrroojjeecctt  EEvvaalluuaattiioonn  CCrriitteerriiaa  
 

Date September 6, 2022 
Company Name Mary the Queen 
Project Type  New Development       Rehab    Expansion 

 Commercial  
 Industrial  
 Retail  
    Housing:  Senior    Affordable    Market Rate  
 Public Use  
  
 

LLooccaattiioonn 
Address                          35 Vark Street              

Distressed Area           Yes       No 

Empire Zone               Yes       No 

   Empowerment Zone      Yes     No 
 

 
 

 

AApppprrooxxiimmaattee  PPrroojjeecctt  CCoosstt 
$42,600,000 

  

BBeenneeffiittss  RReeqquueesstteedd 

  Sales Tax Exemption        IRB       MRT Exemption       Real Property Agreement 
 

  

PPrroojjeecctt  PPuurrppoossee 

 Job Creation 
 Job Retention 
 Community Development 
 Quality of Life 
 Regionally Significant 
 Development that will attract other investment 
 
 



 2 

 
 
 

                                    
 

        PPrroojjeecctt  EEvvaalluuaattiioonn  CCrriitteerriiaa 
 

DDeessccrriibbee  BBeellooww  IIDDAA  JJuussttiiffiiccaattiioonn  ffoorr  IInndduucciinngg  PPrroojjeecctt::  

 
Description to address one or more of the following concepts 
  
(a) The economic need for the City of Yonkers (“City”) to have the applicant remain in or locate 

within the City; 
(b) The economic, charitable, cultural or other contribution that the applicant will provide to the 

City and its residents if the application is granted; 
(c)  The extent to which receiving IDA benefits adds to the viability of the applicant concerning any 

activities within the City; 
(d) The extent to which granting the application will improve the quality of life to residents in the 

City; and 
(e)    The extent to which granting the application will complement existing business development in the 

   City. 
 
        Mary the Queen Senior Housing seeks to create an affordable senior community that will provide quality 
affordable housing to low-income seniors, including those that have difficulties with activities of daily living in 
Westchester County. The Project, is sponsored Finian Sullivan Corporation, a Yonkers based not for profit 
whose mission is to provide quality low-income senior housing. 
  
        Mary Queen consists of the adaptive reuse of the former Convent of Mary the Queen into seventy=two 
units of affordable senior housing. The 4 story, 66,000 square foot building was initially constructed in 1957 
and been vacant since 2015. It is located adjacent to St. Joseph’s Medical Center at 35 Vark Street, between 
Riverdale Avenue and Route 9 (Broadway) in Downtown Yonkers. The building will be reconstructed to include 
73 units, including 52 studio apartment units, 20 one-bedroom apartments and 1 two-bedroom 
superintendent’s unit. Studio apartment units will range in size from 390 square feet to 475 square feet. The 
one-bedroom units will range in size from 507 to 650 square feet. The project will also contain community 
space, management offices, and a reception area.  
 
         Mary Queen will use ESSHI funding to provide affordable housing with case management and care 
coordination services to the frail elderly and disabled. St. Joseph’s Medical Center received a conditional ESSHI 
award in January 2021 for 52 units, and will be the service provider for the Project. Among the services that 
will be provided for the residents through the ESSHI funding are health-monitoring, primary care and care 
coordination services to the frail and disabled elderly population thereby enabling them to remain in the 
community in a supportive housing setting, instead of being place in a nursing home setting, thereby saving 
Medicaid costs associated with long-term institutional care. The care coordination services will provide linkages 
to the overall health care delivery system in Yonkers. The contracting agency for the ESSHI units is the New 
York State Department of Health.  
 
         Mary Queen is requesting a 30 year PILOT.  

 


















































	Agenda
	Minutes - July 5, 2022
	Financials - May and June 2022
	Final Resolution - The Plant Manor LLC (Phase 2)
	Resolution - Yonkers Property Management (969A Midland Ave) Sales and Use Tax Exemption Increase
	Inducement Resolution - Wheeler Block Yonkers LLC
	Inducement Resolution - Whitney Young 
	Inducement Resolution - Whitney Young Volume Cap
	Inducement Resolution - Mary the Queen Housing Development Fund Corp.

	Name of Counsel: Joseph Lynch 
	Phone_2: 212-940-3717
	Address_5: Tower 46, 55 West 46th Street, NY, NY 10036
	Email_2: jjlynch@nixonpeabody.com
	PRINCIPAL OWNERS DIRECTORS List owners with 15 or more in equity holdings with and their ownership percentageRow1: WY Manor, LP (100%)
	PRINCIPAL OWNERS DIRECTORS List owners with 15 or more in equity holdings with and their ownership percentageRow1_2: 
	PRINCIPAL OWNERS DIRECTORS List owners with 15 or more in equity holdings with and their ownership percentageRow1_3: 
	PRINCIPAL OWNERS DIRECTORS List owners with 15 or more in equity holdings with and their ownership percentageRow2: TBD LP (99.99%) of WY Manor, LP
	PRINCIPAL OWNERS DIRECTORS List owners with 15 or more in equity holdings with and their ownership percentageRow2_2: 
	PRINCIPAL OWNERS DIRECTORS List owners with 15 or more in equity holdings with and their ownership percentageRow2_3: 
	Taxable: On
	TaxExempt: Off
	undefined_34: 2022
	State of Organization: NY
	Partnership: On
	undefined_35: 1
	Corporation: Off
	Limited Liability CompanyPartnership  Number of Members: Off
	Sole Proprietorship: Off
	General Number of General Partners: On
	Limited: On
	Number of Limited Partners: 1
	undefined_36: 
	undefined_37: 
	If a foreign organization is the Applicant authorized to do business in the State of New York: Off


